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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
I am pleased to present to you the annual report of the Company and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the principal activities of
the Group include: (1) oil production representing the business of oil
production; (2) oil and liquefied chemical terminal representing the
business of leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal, together
with its storage and logistics facilities (the “Port and Storage
Facilities”) and (3) insurance brokerage service representing the
business of providing insurance brokerage service.

BUSINESS REVIEW

OIL PRODUCTION

Our oil production business continued to suffer loss during the year,
principally due to the fluctuations in oil price. The oil price increased
significantly in most of time in 2018 due to factors such as crude oil
price was at low level for certain years, decline in global oil production
and growth in demand for crude oil in India and China. The crude
oil price for New York Mercantile Exchange West Texas Intermediate
("NYMEX WTI"), one of the oil price benchmarks, reached a four-
year high of US$75 per barrel in October 2018. However, due to the
trade frictions and geopolitical uncertainties, the oil price in late 2018
underwent a downward plunge. Even though China’s GDP hit RMB 90
trillion for the first time, the growth rate slowing down to 6.6%. Given
that China is one of the key consumers of the global oil, a slow down
of the economy could hamper its demand for crude oil and may cause
oil price to fall.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

OIL AND LIQUEFIED CHEMICAL TERMINAL

Following all requisite licenses and regulatory approvals for operation
have been obtained, the Port and Storage Facilities located at
Dongying Port Economic Development Zone, Shangdong Province,
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") has achieved full-scale
operation in May 2018. The Group is entitled to receive full rental
income from the lessee (an independent third party) at RMB125 million
per annum (including value-added tax (“VAT")). This stable rental
income provides an opportunity for the Group to expedite its recovery
of investment costs and delivers reasonable return to the Group.

As a result of the increase in average crude oil price as well as full
operation from the Port and Storage Facilities, for the financial year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a revenue from
continuing operations of approximately HK$152 million (2017: HK$30
million), representing a significant increase by approximately HK$122
million as compared to last year. The gross profit in 2018 increased
by more than 14 times to approximately HK$126 million (2017: HK$9
million).

The loss attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$76 million, which was improved from last year of
approximately HK$187 million, and resulting in the decrease in the
basic loss per share from HK4.7 cents last year (restated) to HK1.2
cent this year. Despite the improvement in revenue and gross profit
of the Group, an impairment loss of approximately HK$63 million
(2017: HK$176 million) was recognised in relation to the Group's oil
production business.

PROSPECTS

Since the commencement of operation of the Port and Storage
Facilities in September 2017, the rental income of the project has
started to contribute a significant and consistent operating cash inflow
and revenue to the Group going forward. In view of the fluctuations
in the oil market, the Group will carefully monitor the oil production
business by adopting conservative investment strategy to lower the
business risk.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

The Board is actively looking for new opportunities to diversify
the income stream of the Group. Following the completion of
the acquisition of an insurance brokerage entity in August 2018,
the Company has entered into two memoranda of understanding
(individually referred to as the “MOU") on 30 October 2018 and 19
November 2018 for the purpose to invest in the fast-growing fintech
industry and a port and building material related project in the
PRC respectively. Even though the negotiations in respect of these
investments are ongoing, the Directors recognise the opportunity
to expand into existing and different business segments and believe
the proposed entry into new sector can benefit to the Company as a
whole.

Looking ahead, we believe the year of 2019 will be a very challenging
year. In view of the trade tension between the United States and
China, the business environment remain uncertain. Meanwhile,
coupled with uncertainty of Brexit and economic situation in Europe,
the investment market is filled with uncertainty. However, the Group
remains optimistic and is actively exploring opportunities in expanding
our business in existing and different industries to drive the Group's
sustainable growth and strengthen its financial position.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere appreciation
to our shareholders, business partners, colleagues and my fellow
Directors who have continuously supported the Group.

Lan Yongqiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWmE DT

OPERATING RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged in the oil production, the leasing of
oil and liquefied chemical terminal and insurance brokerage service.

()

(ii)

(iii)

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group’s record
revenue from continuing operations was approximately
HK$152 million (2017: HK$30 million), representing an
increase of approximately HK$122 million or approximately
407 % as compared to last year. The Group's revenue is mainly
contributed from the sale of crude oil of the oil production
business and rental income of the oil and liquefied chemical
terminal.

Gross profit

As compared to gross profit made in 2017 of less than
HK$9 million, the Group enhanced the gross profit position
during the year, representing a significant improvement of
approximately HK$117 million. The improvement of gross
profit is mainly attributable to the increase in oil selling
price, the result from certain cost saving measures and the
commencement of leasing of the Group’s oil and liquefied
chemical terminal since late September 2017.

The Board believes that the stable rental income generated
from the leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal, coupled
with the continuation of the cost saving measures, enable the
Group to maintain the gross profit position.

Loss attributable to the owners of the
Company

The loss attributable to the owners of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2018 was approximately HK$76 million
(2017: HK$187 million). The loss of the Group has decreased
by approximately HK$111 million or approximately 59% as
compared to last year. The loss was mainly resulted from (1) the
impairment losses on property, plant and equipment (“PPE") and
intangible assets relating to the cash-generating unit to which
the PPE and intangible assets of the Group’s oil production
business belong (the “Oil Production CGU"”) amounted to
approximately HK$63 million in total; and (2) the finance costs
amounted to approximately HK$64 million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

BUSINESS REVIEW

Oil business

The international crude oil market has fluctuated significantly during
the year. The price increased significantly in most of the time in 2018
due to factors such as crude oil price was at low level for certain years,
decline in global oil production and growth in demand for crude oil in
India and China. The crude oil price for NYMEX WTI reached a four-
year high of US$75 per barrel in October 2018. As compared with
2017, average oil selling price of the Group increased by approximately
40% in 2018. However, due to the trade frictions and geopolitical
uncertainties, the oil price in late 2018 underwent a downward
plunge. The oil selling price of the Group in December month end
dropped significantly to a similar level as in late December 2017.
Overall, benefit from the increased average selling price, the Group
has extracted approximately 11,306 metric tonnes (2017: 8,932 metric
tonnes) of oil during 2018.

The results from operations and costs incurred in oil business are detailed
as below. In 2018, the Group achieved a turnover of approximately
HK$37 million (2017: HK$20 million), representing an increase of
approximately 85% as compared with last year. The reportable segment
profit of oil production before write-off of PPE and impairment losses
on PPE and intangible assets for 2018 amounted to approximately HK$5
million (2017: loss of HK$22 million). The significant improvement is
primarily due to the increase in the average oil selling price and sale
volume.
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Results from operations ERE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\EF —E—+F
TET FHET
Net sales to a customer —fEFHEFRE 37,247 20,192
Other income HAtb g A 6 42
Operating expenses R (29,369) (36,813)
Depreciation E (2,633) (5,097)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment WEEYE - BB MRE (1,559) (13,051)

Impairment loss on property, ME - BE NEEZREBE

plant and equipment (526) (5,469)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EmEAEZRERBE (62,801) (170,710)
Results from operations before income tax METEFRIS e 24 (59,635) (210,906)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

#ﬁﬂiﬁﬁﬁj Zin$ﬁ

Songliao Contract impairment

As at 31 December 2018, the Company reviewed the carrying
amounts of its assets related to the petroleum contract entered into
between China Era Energy Power Investment Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and China National Petroleum Corporation
on 13 August 2007 (the “Songliao Contract”), and determined that
impairment would be necessary. The impairment losses were mainly
due to the accumulative decrease in the projected volume of drilling
and extraction and decrease in the projected crude oil prices. The
planned drilling and extraction schedules were adjusted mainly due to
the following factors:

o The drop in projected crude oil price based on the rate of
change in the forecast from NYMEX WTI;

. More time spent on the research on the detail structure of
underground oil reserve;

o Further determination of the type of wells to be drilled;
. Insufficient funding to expand the production; and
° Environmental concern near the site areas expressed by the

local authority.

Accordingly, the Company determined that the carrying amounts of
the assets related to the Songliao Contract before any impairment is
likely to exceed their recoverable amount based on the revised timing
of future cash flows projected from the Songliao Contract.

In assessing the recoverable amount of the Oil Production CGU at 31
December 2018, the Company calculated the value-in-use derived by
the discounted cash flow analysis to reflect deferral of development
of the property by the revised price and cost considerations. The
projected cash flows are based on the following key assumptions:

° Total estimated operating and construction costs of wells of the
PRC oil field for the remaining terms of the Songliao Contract;
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

o The discount rate by reference to market comparable; and

o The crude oil price projection basis by reference to market
price of NYMEX WTI at the end of 2018 and the selling price
of the Group. The oil price projections between the years 2019
and 2021 were based on the rate of change in the forecast
from NYMEX WTI. For the years from 2022 to 2031, an annual
growth rate for the oil price of 3% was assumed, reflecting the
long-term average growth rate for China, being the country in
which the Oil Production CGU operates.

The review on the carrying amounts of the Oil Production CGU
resulted in total impairment losses of approximately HK$63 million
(2017: HK$176 million). The impairment losses have been presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement and relates to the
Company’s oil production segment.

For the purpose of calculating the recoverable amount of the Oil
Production CGU, the following major variables and assumptions were
adopted:

(i) According to the terms of the Songliao Contract, when
determining the oil price, reference should be made to the
transaction prices in the world’s major oil markets. Same as last
year, the Company has adopted crude oil prices with reference
to the rate of change of NYMEX WTI forecast on crude oil
prices.

(ii) The average of the next five years’ projected crude oil price
based on the rate of change in the forecast from NYMEX WTI
and adopted in the cash flow projection of the Oil Production
CGU has dropped from US$70.0 per barrel as at 31 December
2017 to US$64.4 per barrel as at 31 December 2018.

(iii) The estimated operating costs of the PRC oil field for the
remaining terms of the Songliao Contract would increase and
a growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%) was being adopted, which
reflected the long-term average growth rate for China, being
the country in which the Oil Production CGU operates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ﬁqﬁﬂﬁgnj- BZZJ$E

(iv)

(vi)

The exchange rates used for conversion between (a) Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$"”) and Renminbi (“RMB") is RMB1.00 = HK$1.14
(2017: RMB1.00 = HK$1.20); and (b) United States dollars
("US$") and RMB is approximately US$1.00 = RMB6.88 (2017:
US$1.00 = RMB6.51).

The discounted cash flow analysis on the Oil Production CGU
was based on cash flow projection for a period of 13 years up
to 2031,
term of the Songliao Contract unless extended.

being the year of expiry under the fixed contractual

As compared with last year’s calculation, the management
has adopted an adjusted drilling and extraction schedules as
detailed below:

Variables used in
current year projection

(iv)

(v)

(vi)
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Drilling and extraction schedules

ERRBAREER
Variables used in
previous year projection

rEERNFACEE BEFERURACEE

Million Million
Years New wells metric tonnes New wells metric tonnes
FE mA BEQAH m EEPL
2018 —E-N\F (actual) (BB )~  (actual) (EF#)0.011 18 0.015
2019 —E-NF - 0.011 20 0.113
2020 to 2031 —E-%FR 64 0.510 76 0.686

—F-F

Total B 64 0.532* 114 0.814
* For the current year projection, as compared with * MAEEEImMES  HAEBAF

previous year projection and having considered the
production capacity, approximately 282,000 metric
tonnes of oil production are assumed to be deferred
after the Songliao Contract period i.e., year 2031.

The adjustments are mainly due to the following factors:
- Cost effective consideration as the projected crude oil

price based on the rate of change in the forecast from
NYMEX WTI dropped;

- Additional time spent on the research on the detail
structure of the underground oil reserves;

[ETE R Mt M EERETR + #9282,000
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWE D

- Additional time required to determine the type of wells — BErEr#EZEz2hHEEFESE
to be drilled; SRR

- Insufficient funding to expand the production in the — HHARZEHESETEE
short run; and M

3 75 4 B T A ER P 3 o [ U B2 IR
expressed by the local authority. BRI -

- Tighten environmental concern near the site area -

(v) The funding requirements for capital expenditure, including (v) FrEIBHEZEARRSZ( B8 HHZ &R
well development and well maintenance, on the planned HHE NELSERFEBOT -
drilling were detailed below:

Capital expenditure
BEARRX
Variables used in Variables used in

current year previous year

projection projection
REETEA BEFEER
FTAzEE FTRAz%E
Years HK$' million HKS$’ million
FE BEET BEEBT
2018 —E-N\F (actual) (BEFE) - 51
2019 —E-NF - 57
2020 to 2031 —ETFET=—F 197 215
Total &5t 197 323

EIDERTEI N N EF R NS E R B A B AR
THEED  RAFE BARAEHZE
EEAMBA RS FEL /76,000,000
B BHEERE - R RIERHE K
HTREEBREESCAREARYHAEER
YWk o Bt - EREBHR T AERFE
ZERRY -

The management planned to obtain necessary funding for
the capital expenditure from both internal and external
sources. In current year, since the net cash used in operating
activities of the Group amounted to approximately HK$76
million, the management is of the view that it was not
beneficial to the Group to spend significant amount on capital
expenditure under the current and forecast oil price. Therefore
the management has reduced the capital expenditure for
subsequent years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(vi) The management assumed that the discount rate will be close
to market comparable and a pre-tax discount rate used to
determine value-in-use is 15.4% (2017: 17.7%). The pre-tax
discount rate was used to discount the free cash flows to the
Qil Production CGU, by reference to the weighted-average-
cost-of-capital derived from the cost of equity and the cost of
debt. The cost of equity is calculated using the Capital Assets
Pricing Model based on the risk-free rate of 3.31% (2017:
3.9%) per annum (by reference to China sovereignty bond
yield), the expected market return (by reference to the internal
rate of return of China stock markets), the equity risk premium
(being the difference between the expected market return
and the risk-free rate), the small company risk premium (by
reference to research results of international consulting firms),
the relevered beta (by reference to the average unlevered
beta and average debt to equity ratio of market comparable
companies listed in Hong Kong engaging in similar industries)
and the tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) in China. The cost of
debt is calculated using the standard long-term (for loans with
a term of over five years) lending rate quoted by the People’s
Bank of China of 4.9% (2017: 4.9%) per annum, after 25%
(2017: 25%) tax.

The review on the carrying amounts of the Oil Production CGU resulted
in total impairment losses of approximately HK$63 million (2017:
HK$176 million), which is mainly due to the accumulative decrease
in the projected volume of drilling and extraction and decrease in the
projected crude oil prices.

Information of oil reserves

Changes in estimated quantities of proved crude oil reserves for the
years ended 31 December 2017 and 2018 are indicated as follows:

(viy BEEEBRINREIBELOTSAE LS
WE MANEEEREAE BB
REI154%(ZFB—+F :17.7%) - B
AT AU RERRSELEEN B
HRERE  TERERBENAREBK
Rt BB EHZ MEFTERKA - K
ARBEAEETCERAGE  ERER

SHMEFSF3I31%(ZZFE—CF :3.9%)
(2EHRBEETEELFKREER) BEHMEHEO
H(2EPBEBRMHANBLEIHKE)  EaxE
RmE(AEHMSEREERRFE 2
=) PR RARKREE(2EEEE
AARMARER) BRIECEBE(ZE
WEBEUTEZBRELLTMHEIELER
RIZFHEBEICEEERFHEREE
HHER)EFEBERIS% ( ZE— 4
25%) o B AKARREARIRITARZ
EERP(RBAAFHZERME)EE
REFA49% (ZF—£F:4.9%) Mk
25% (—ZT—+ 45 : 25%)FHIERTE -

S EMREELSENEAEELERAEAS
18 4 % #) 563,000,000 T( = F — £ F:
176,000,000 7C) * FEZ RN TERISLIE R FAH
2E2FHRD RIERI R R EE T

AHFEEEH

BE_Z—tHFR_F-N\Ft_A=1+—HL
FE - Tﬁ%ﬂﬂJ%'?/EET‘%EZﬁﬁ%ﬁ(gzi‘@bﬂﬁﬁu?-

Crude oil

JRH

(million metric tonnes)

(B8 AME)

Reserves as at 1 January 2017 RZZE—tHF—RB—HZMHE 3.648
Changes resulted from: Production A TEEMESSE - &5 (0.009)
Changes resulted from: Loss of reserves ALTEEmMEEZE - FREX (0.708)
Reserves as at 31 December 2017 RZZBE—EFF+_A=1+—HZEHE 2.931
Changes resulted from: Production AN TEEMEA RS A& (0.011)
Reserves as at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+ZA=+—HZHE 2.920

Note: Based on the Group's share of participated interests in the oil field

through jointly controlled operations.

Mia: BREASESEARZEHEEIENRBZS
HRESETE

RREBMREERERAT @ T \FFH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage
and logistics facilities business

By end of 2015, the Group has injected RMB115 million (approximately
HK$136 million) to Shandong Shundong Port Services Company
Limited (“Shundong Port”) to obtain 51% equity interest in
Shundong Port. Shundong Port owns two sea area use rights covering
an aggregate area available for land-forming and reclamation
construction of approximately 31.59 hectares in Dongying Port,
Shandong Province, the PRC and permitting the construction of
reclamation and land-forming for use in sea transportation and port
facilities for a 50-years’ period running from 13 November 2014
to 12 November 2064 and 23 February 2016 to 22 February 2066
respectively. Shundong Port has completed the construction and
commenced leasing of its Port and Storage Facilities during 2017.
Full commercial operation has been achieved in May 2018 and
approximately HK$115 million rental income was generated during the
year.

GOING CONCERN BASIS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred a
loss of HK$73,847,000 (2017: HK$201,430,000) and recorded net
current liabilities of HK$228,926,000 (2017: HK$1,075,777,000) as at
31 December 2018. As at 31 December 2018, the total outstanding
construction costs included in current liabilities which are repayable
within one year after the reporting date amounted to HK$344,955,000
(2017: HK$484,044,000), out of which HK$307,223,000 (2017:
HK$403,946,000) and HK$37,732,000 (2017: HK$80,098,000) were
recognised under other payables and other borrowings respectively,
and the capital commitments for construction costs were HK$2,452,000
(2017: HK$3,078,000) as at 31 December 2018. In addition, other
borrowings included in current liabilities of HK$42,795,000 (2017:
HK$30,054,000) have been overdue for repayments as at 31 December
2018. These conditions indicate a material uncertainty exists that may
cast significant doubts about the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, the
appropriateness of which depends upon the outcome of the underlying
assumptions and measures as detailed in note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements and extracted as below:
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REBRBLELIRTE RERYAR
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HE-ZT - AFFRK  AEECHEILURIBEEER
BRAR(TERE]) ) EE AR 115,000,000
JC(#7136,000,000%7T) « LAEUSIERAE51%
BHE - IERBHEAMIEER S ZER - RE
FEIREREBRAEL TR REGERE
EEA31.59 8 WEHFERBESRTHF
B QMUEEER S ORMEER - LEHAS0
F o E—HNF+—A+=-HEBEZ-ZT
ANOF+—A+ AR _ZTE—ARF-_A=-+=
BEE-ZANF-_A=-+=-HIE -RZZT—+
F o ERABBEEHEITHREBELEORE
GEE R-E—\FREABRI2EREEY
NEFGEEMRES AL 115,000,000 T -

HEKERE

Bz Z—-\F+-_A=+—HILFE &
EEELEIBT73,847,0008 T( T —+4F:
201,430,000 ) R=ZZFT — ) \F + = A
=+ —B&%1E R A HEFE228,926,000%
T(=—ZF—+4%:1,075,777,00087T) - ¥ =
T-NF+ZA=+—8 WARDEBENR
HERHE—FAEENREEERRABLER
344,955,000/ jt ( = Z — £ 4 : 484,044,000
BT ) 0 HA307,223,0008 0 ( - — 4
403,946,000) }% 37,732,000 0 (=& —+F :
80,098,000 7 7T ) 7 5l 7 H A &< ZUE & B b
FIE T HER - R ANE RNAEIE R 2,452,000
BIT(=ZZT —+ 4 :3,078,000/8 L) ° Lo
R-Z—-NE+-_F=+—HB WARDE
B2z EMfE 42,795,000 (=T —+F
30,054,00078 ) BHAARE - ZSIB AR
BATHARER g HAEBEBFELE ZEN
EEEXNEL -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEESWmE DT

Subsequent to the reporting date, in February 2019, the Group
successfully obtained a five-year credit facility from a financial
institution in the PRC in the amount of RMB150,000,000
(approximately HK$171,000,000) which includes a three-year loan
facility of RMB90,000,000 (approximately HK$102,600,000)
for the purpose of repaying the outstanding construction costs
and bank and other borrowings that are repayable within
one year after the reporting date. In March 2019, the Group
obtained another loan facility from another financial institution
in the PRC in the amount of RMB300,000,000 (approximately
HK$342,000,000), with a credit period of 36 months;

In light of the above new loan facilities, the Group has plans
to repay the outstanding construction costs amounting
to HK$232,903,000 in the coming twelve months after
the reporting period. For the remaining balances of total
construction costs, based on the good relationship with the
contractors, it is assumed that the contractors will extend the
repayment dates over twelve months after 31 December 2018;

The Directors are of the view that since its full operation in May
2018, the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment is able
to contribute and generate a significant and consistent operating
cash inflow to the Group in the coming twelve months after the
reporting date which mainly derived from rental income receipt
in the amount of RMB125,000,000 before VAT (approximately
HK$142,500,000) as stipulated in the lease agreement;

The Directors are of the view that the loan receivables in the
amount of HK$72,098,000 will be recovered without default in
the coming twelve months after the reporting date under the
loan agreements and the management’s assessment of their
recoverability; and

(a)

(b)

(o)

®EBHE RZTE—hLh&=-A £&
B —MPEGEEERINES —F
hFEEERE AKK150,000,0007T
(#171,000,0008 L) HEFABE—%
—“FHERME ARM®90,000,0005T
(#7102,600,0008 ) + LLEE®REH
Hig—FAREEZRNTEERAE R
BHMER - RZE—ANE=F - £&
EEETEBIN—EPEEEES RN
—EEFME AR 300,000,000 (4
342,000,000 ) * EEH A=+~
A

ERELAMERRE  AEBEHERTE
SHHBERARTZEARNEEREERZR
X 7ZX 232,903,000 7% JT o 1M Bt 48 12 3% Ak
Rz THEGgmE - EREABER R
R BEAPEEEREEANHE-ZS
—N\F+_A=+—RH%EBB+ A

FEERE R )\FHAZzEER
%BomMmEREECTIRBESBERRE
BHERRTZEARNENARERE
BEREARBENCERSRA £
ZREHEREETH ARG E T 1A
& U A UE A R EE 125,000,000 7T (49
142,500,000 7T)

BEEZHEIEEBYHETRE T
- EERAE72,098,0008 T2 EKE
RERHmERBERKTZ@EARKE
(WEEL) &

RREBMREERERAT @ T \FFH
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD

(e) During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company paid an
amount of RMB100,000,000 (approximately HK$114,000,000)
as refundable deposits under the terms of MOU, which was
entered into between the Company and the potential vendors,
pursuant to which the Company proposed to invest in not less
than 45% issued shares in a target company. The Directors are of
the view that the investment is still under preliminary negotiation
and it is uncertain as to whether the transaction will proceed to
completion with the potential vendors before the lapse date of
the MOU (i.e. 30 April 2019), and therefore, the balance will be
recovered in the coming twelve months.

The Directors have reviewed the Group’s cash flow forecast prepared by
management which covers a period of not less than twelve months from
31 December 2018. After taking into account the above assumptions
and measures, the Directors consider that the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due within twelve months from 31
December 2018 and believe that the Group will continue as a going
concern and consequently have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity, financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,217 million (2017: HK$1,993 million), total liabilities of
approximately HK$1,287 million (2017: HK$1,622 million), indicating
a gearing ratio of 0.58 (2017: 0.81) on the basis of total liabilities
over total assets. The current ratio of the Group for the year was 0.70
(2017: 0.12) on basis of current assets over current liabilities.

Loan receivables amounted to approximately HK$72 million represented
loans to independent third parties which bear fixed interest rate ranging
from 4% to 10% annually. Deposits amounted to approximately RMB100
million (approximately HK$114 million), which is included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, relating to the deposit paid for the
proposed investment in a fintech project in the PRC. Details of which
can be referred to the announcement of the Company dated 30 October
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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As at 31 December 2018, the Group had bank and other borrowings of
approximately HK$235 million and HK$172 million respectively (2017:
HK$295 million and HK$160 million respectively). The aggregate
bank deposits and cash in hand of the Group were approximately
HK$277 million (2017: HK$57 million), represented an increase by
approximately 385%, due primarily to the issuance of convertible
bonds during the year.

Movements of convertible bonds during the year are as follows:

As at 31 December 2017, the convertible bonds outstanding principal
amount of approximately HK$628 million, had been due on 31
December 2015 not carrying any interest with right to convert the
convertible bonds into ordinary Shares of the Company (the “Shares”).
The adjusted conversion price is HK$0.8 per Share (subject to
adjustments) and a maximum number of 785,200,000 Shares may be
allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights attached to
the convertible bonds in full. During the year, full conversion of these
convertible bonds to 785,200,000 Shares has been made.

As at 31 December 2018, the convertible bonds outstanding principal
amount of HK$32 million are due on 15 September 2018 (2015 CB")
carrying interest of 5% per annum with right to convert the convertible
bonds into shares. The conversion price is HK$0.158 per share (subject
to adjustments) and a maximum number of 202,531,645 Shares
may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the conversion rights
attached to the convertible bonds in full. During the year, convertible
bonds with principal amount of HK$158 million were converted to
999,999,996 Shares, leaving behind outstanding principal amount of
HK$32 million unconverted and unredeemed beyond its maturity on 15
September 2018 up to the year end date of 31 December 2018.

On 17 September 2018, the Company completed and issued
convertible bonds (“CB9"”) with the principal amount of HK$200
million and HK$249 million to Giant Crystal Limited (“Giant Crystal”)
and independent third parties respectively, both carrying interest of
3% per annum with right to convert the convertible bonds into Shares.
The conversion price of these convertible bonds is HK$0.255 per share
(subject to adjustments) and a maximum number of 784,313,725 and
976,470,588 Shares may be allotted and issued upon exercise of the
conversion rights attached to the convertible bonds in full to Giant
Crystal and independent third parties respectively. During the year, no
CB9 was converted into the Shares.

R-_E—NFE+_A=+—8B ' "EE$
7k B #b & 3 9 5l & #235,000,000% 7T
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Capital and other commitments

The Group had capital and other commitments contracted but not
provided for of approximately HK$2 million (2017: HK$3 million) and
HK$43 million (2017: HK$47 million) respectively as at 31 December
2018.

Charges on assets

As at 31 December 2018, entire investment properties of
approximately HK$1,425 million, entire paid up capital of Shundong
Port and certain trade receivables of approximately HK$12 million were
pledged for the Group’s bank and other borrowings and finance lease
liabilities.

As at 31 December 2017, entire investment properties of
approximately HK$1,500 million and bank deposits of approximately
HK$51 million were pledged for Group’s bills payables, bank
borrowings and finance lease liabilities.

Exchange exposure

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and PRC and the exposure in
exchange rate risks mainly arises from fluctuations in the HK$ and RMB
exchange rates. Exchange rate fluctuations and market trends have
always been the concern of the Group. The policy of the Group for its
operating entities operates in their corresponding local currencies to
minimise currency risks. The Group, after reviewing its exposure for
the time being, did not enter into any derivative contracts aimed at
minimising exchange rate risks during the year. However, management
will monitor foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure if necessary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Employee information

As at 31 December 2018, the Group employed 132 full-time employees
(2017: 149). The Group’'s emolument policies are formulated on the
performance of individual employees and are reviewed annually in
line with industry practice. The Group also provides provident fund
schemes (as the case may be) to its employees depending on the
location of such employees.

Dividend

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

FUTURE PLAN AND PROSPECTS

Oil business

In 2019, since the international crude oil price is highly sensitive to
the economic condition and market sentiment, the trade war between
China and the United States of America loomed in the early 2018 and
getting fierce since late 2018, resulting a negative expectation on the
economy as well as worsening the oil price. Even though China’s GDP
hit RMB 90 trillion for the first time, the growth rate slowing down to
6.6%. Given that China is one of the key consumers of the global oil,
a downturn of the economy could hamper its demand for crude oil,
which may causes oil prices to fall. Despite the complicated operation
environment, the Group will continue to improve extraction techniques
as well as adopt a stringent standard on its internal control to enhance
production efficiency.

Taking into accounts the production capacity of existing wells and
facilities and the demand in oil market, it is estimated that the annual
oil production of the oil field of the Lower Cretaceous System Quantou
Formation Third Member Yangdachengzi Layer which is situated at
Liangjing Block of the Songliao Basin at Jilin Province of the PRC in
2019 would be approximately 11,000 metric tonnes (equivalent to
80,300 barrels of oil).

In the meantime, the Group has also explored the possibility of
disposing the oil business so as to focus on other businesses with
brighter prospect. During the year, the Company has entered into a
non-legally binding MOU with a third party purchaser in relation to
the proposed disposal of, either entirely or partially, the oil production
business. No formal agreement has been signed as at the date of this
annual report.
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Operation of liquid chemical terminal, storage
and logistics facilities business

Since the completion of the acquisition of 51% effective interest
in Shundong Port by the Group in December 2015, the Group had
been proactively promoting the continual construction of the Port
and Storage Facilities. The original design of the Port and Storage
Facilities anticipated four berths for chemical tankers of 10,000
tonnage and two berths for chemical tankers of 5,000 tonnage. The
construction was completed in late September 2017 and the terminal
had commenced operation partially in late September 2017 and fully in
May 2018.

On 24 October 2016, Shundong Port entered into a lease agreement
(the "Lease Agreement”) to lease the Port and Storage Facilities to an
independent third party (the “Lessee”). The rent payable by the Lessee
to Shundong Port for the Port and Storage Facilities under the Lease
Agreement before VAT is RMB125 million (approximately HK$145
million) per annum, which shall be payable in twelve equal instalments
on monthly basis in advance. The Lease Agreement became effective
in May 2018. Details of the Lease Agreement can be referred to the
circular of the Company dated 17 February 2017.

The Lease Agreement provides an opportunity for the Company to
generate a stable rental income from the Port and Storage Facilities,
which is expected to expedite the Group’s recovery of investment
costs and to deliver reasonable return on capital to the Group on this
project. In addition, the Lease Agreement is expected to improve the
Group's asset and liabilities position in the long run, and to enhance
the fund-raising capabilities of Shundong Port in the short run. It is
currently expected that any cash derived from the rental income of the
Lease Agreement will be retained by Shundong Port for its settlement
of indebtedness, ongoing expansion and development plans.

Exploration and mining business

As disclosed in the Company’s 2015 annual report, the Board found
out that in 2010, the exploration licence held by Qinghai Forest Source
Mining Industry Developing Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) had been
transferred to Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan Yuen Xian Mining
Industry Company Limited (AR &/PDLLRAREZEGRAF) (“Yuen
Xian Company”) without the Company’s knowledge, consent or
approval (the “Change of Exploration Right Agreement”).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

ﬁqﬂiﬁgﬁj Zin$ﬁ

Since then, the Group had commenced legal proceedings (the “Mining
Litigations”) against Yuen Xian Company with the view to invalidating
the Change of Exploration Right Agreement dated 11 November 2009
(which caused the loss of the exploration license by QHFSMI) and
seeking to regain the control of QHFSMI and the exploration license.
In the past few years, the Group suspended its exploration and mining
business pending the outcome of the Mining Litigations.

As announced by the Company on 11 June 2015, 12 June 2015 and 9
March 2016, the Higher People’s Court of Qinghai Province had made
a final judgment that the change of exploration right agreement was
between QHFSMI and Yuen Xian Company was invalid and the Qinghai
Province People’s Procuratorate had expressed its “no-support” as to the
review of the abovementioned final judgement, respectively. Following
the conclusion of the Mining Litigations, the Company has appointed the
legal advisers in the PRC to enforce the judgement to uphold the Group’s
right. In the event that the Group could regain the control of QHFSMI, the
Group will be in the position to have access to the relevant exploration
and mining license and thereafter the Group will perform due diligence
review on the mining site. The Group is conducting regular re-assessment
on the progress made by its legal advisers and the prospect of the Group’s
mining segment from time to time.

Insurance brokerage business

Following the completion of the acquisition of an insurance brokerage
entity (as detailed in the Company’s announcement dated 7 May
2018), the Group creates an independent business segment in
August 2018. The Board believes that the Group can benefit from the
diversification of its operations into this industry and through better
deployment of available resources, can bring values to the Group and
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) as a whole.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

EEBEFR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lan Yonggiang, aged 51, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in July 2014 and was re-designated as an
executive Director in December 2014. Mr. Lan was appointed as the
Chairman of the Board in March 2018. He holds a Bachelor of Laws
Degree from Lanzhou University. Mr. Lan has extensive experience
in investment, mergers and acquisitions as well as in the business of
public listing laws. Mr. Lan is currently a director of Shenzhen Kangmei
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. (stock code: 835541) which is quoted on the
National Equities Exchange and Quotations System (the New Third
Board); and a director of Jinhui Liquor Co., Ltd. (stock code: 603919)
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. Mr. Lan was an
independent director of Guangdong Shunna Electric Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Guangdong Macro Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 000533) from
August 2010 to October 2015 and the chairman of Guangdong Golden
Dragon Development Inc. (stock code: 000712) from July 2016 to
June 2018, both of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange;
and an independent director of Top Score Fashion Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as Topscore Fashion Shoes Co., Ltd.) (stock code: 603608),
which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, from May 2015 to
May 2018.

Ms. Wang Meiyan, aged 56, was appointed as executive Director in
January 2011. She graduated from a vocational education institute.
She was a senior officer of the Office of Dongying Municipal
Committee, Shandong Province, Geology Research Institute of Shengli
Qilfield, Huaren Group of Shenyang Military Area Command, Chinese
Enterprises Daguan Magazine, the Association of Chinese Enterprises
Television Stations, American Pan Asia Investment Group Corporation
and Kashgar project of Tarim QOilfield in Xinjiang. Ms. Wang has
extensive experience in corporate management and leadership.

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, aged 45, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in March 2012 and was
re-designated as an executive Director in November 2013. He was also
appointed as the company secretary of the Company in November
2016. Mr. Chan is currently the member of each of the nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a
Bachelor of Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from City University of Hong
Kong. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He has extensive experience in the accounting
and auditing fields. Mr. Chan is a non-executive director of China
Nonferrous Metals Company Limited (stock code: 8306), which is listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Mr. Chan is also an independent non-executive director
of each of Carnival Group International Holdings Limited (stock code:
996), SFund International Holdings Limited (stock code: 1367) and
Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (stock code: 1538), all of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (“Main Board”). He was
an independent non-executive director of EJE (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Jia Meng Holdings Limited) (stock code:
8101), which is listed on GEM, from September 2013 to May 2016.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Ms. Jin Yuping, aged 47, was appointed as executive Director in July
2014. She graduated from the undergraduate program in Petroleum
Engineering from China University of Petroleum (Huadong) and holds
a Master’s Degree in Qil and Gas Engineering from China University
of Petroleum (Huadong). Ms. Jin has served as head of oil production
team and deputy director of oil production in Gudong Oil Production
Centre of Sinopec Shengli Qilfield during the period from 2006 to
2012. Currently, Ms. Jin is a Vice President of Beijing Huaxia Taiyue
Energy Investment Company Limited. Ms. Jin has accumulated over 20
years of working experience in oil production.

Mr. Cao Sheng, aged 45, was appointed as executive Director in
March 2018. He graduated from Shandong Academy of Governance
in 1999 majoring in Economics and Management. Mr. Cao has many
years of management experience in China in the industries of vessel
and offshore platform engineering and business consultancy.

Mr. Yu Zhiyong, aged 49, was appointed as executive Director in
March 2018. He graduated from Shenyang Gold Institute (now part
of the Northeastern University, China) in 1994 majoring in Mining
and Engineering Surveying. Mr. Yu has many years of management
experience in China in the industries of logistics, system engineering
and business consultancy. Mr. Yu has been the president of Hong
Kong Dongying Chamber of Commerce since February 2017. Mr. Yu
has been appointed as a member of the Eighth Dongying Municipal
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference
since March 2019.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tang Qingbin, aged 55, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in January 2019. Mr. Tang is currently the
chairman of each of the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a Bachelor
of Economics degree from Shandong Economics College. Mr. Tang
is registered as a member of the Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and has over 20 years of experience in the accounting and
auditing field in China. He is currently an independent non-executive
director of Shandong Molong Petroleum Machinery Company Limited
(stock code:568), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He is also an independent director of Luxin Venture Capital
Group Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
(stock code: 600783)
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
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Mr. Wang Jinghua, aged 37, was appointed as independent non-
executive Director in July 2011. Mr. Wang is currently the member of
each of the audit committee, nomination committee and remuneration
committee of the Company. He graduated from University of Exeter,
United Kingdom. He holds two Bachelor of Arts degrees with major in
Internet Computing and Economics & Finance and a Master of Science
degree with International Management. From 2009, Mr. Wang acted
as a General Manager Assistant in China Western Holdings Co., Ltd.
He has most experience in the investment program and contract in the
urban construction project.

Mr. Fung Nam Shan, aged 42, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director in May 2015. Mr. Fung is currently the
member of each of the audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s
degree in commence awarded by the University of Newcastle,
Australia. Mr. Fung is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a CPA member of the Australian Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Fung is currently the company
secretary and authorised representative of each of Seamless Green
China (Holdings) Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8150) and Yat
Sing Holdings Limited (listed on Main Board, stock code: 3708) and the
company secretary of each of Camsing International Holding Limited
(listed on Main Board, stock code: 2662) and Thelloy Development
Group Limited (listed on Main Board, stock code: 1546). Mr. Fung
was the joint company secretary of Future Bright Mining Holdings
Limited (listed on Main Board, stock code: 2212) during the period
from November 2015 to October 2016, and the company secretary
and authorised representative of China Ocean Fishing Holdings Limited
(listed on GEM, stock code: 8047) during the period from May 2015
to May 2017 and China Investment Development Limited (listed on
Main Board, stock code : 204) during the period from August 2018
to November 2018. Mr. Fung served Zhejiang Chang’an Renheng
Technology Co., Ltd. (listed on GEM, stock code: 8139) as the financial
controller and company secretary from April 2013 to March 2014. Mr.
Fung was employed as the financial controller and company secretary
of South China Land Limited (listed on GEM, stock code: 8155) from
February 2010 to April 2013. Mr. Fung served for a reputable property
development group as the financial controller from 2009 to 2010.
He has worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers as an audit manager
for several years which brought him strong experience in auditing,
accounting and taxation in Hong Kong and the PRC. He has been one
of the marketing committee members of The Hong Kong Youth Hostels
and also a member of its charity walk organising committee since
2012.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance, holding the beliefs of transparency, honesty and
accountability. The Board considers that sound corporate management
and governance practices are essential to the Company’s healthy
growth under all business environments. Therefore, we continuously
review and improve our corporate governance standards to ensure
maximum compliance with the relevant laws and codes.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company and the Board have applied the principles in the
code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) by adopting the code provisions of the CG Code.

During the year, the Board has adopted and complied with the code
provisions of the CG Code in so far they are applicable with the
exception of the deviation from A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (the “CEQ") should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual. The division
of responsibilities between the chairman and CEO should be clearly
established and set out in writing. Since the position of the CEO is
vacated, the Company is still looking for a suitable candidate to fill the
vacancy of the CEO.

A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive directors should be appointed
for a specific term, subject to re-election. For the year under review,
all independent non-executive Directors have not been appointed for
a specific term but they are subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every three years in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association (the “Articles”).

A.6.7 of the CG Code, independent non-executive directors should
attend general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders, Mr. Wang Jinghua, the independent non-
executive Director, was unable to attend the annual general meeting
(the “AGM") and the extraordinary general meeting (the “"EGM") of
the Company held on 11 June 2018 and 17 August 2018 respectively
due to his other prior engagements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRSE

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules. The Company has made specific enquiries with
all Director and all of them confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the year
ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board determines and keeps under review the objectives of the
Group. It makes decisions on overall strategies and actions necessary
for achieving these objectives, monitors and controls financial
and operating performance, formulates appropriate policies, and
identifies and ensures best practices of corporate governance. The
Board members are fully committed to their roles and have acted in
good faith to maximise the Shareholders’ value in the long run, and
have aligned the Group’s goals and directions with the prevailing
economic and market conditions. Daily operations and administration
are delegated to the management. It has given clear directions as
to the powers of management, in particular, with respect to the
circumstances where management should report back and obtain prior
approval from the Board before making decisions or entering into any
commitments on behalf of the Company.

Board Composition

As at the date of this annual report, the Board comprises nine
members, including six executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The Board members during the year and up to
the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lan Yonggiang (Chairman)

Ms. Wang Meiyan

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral

Ms. Jin Yuping

Mr. Cao Sheng (Appointed on 15 March 2018)
Mr. Yu Zhiyong (Appointed on 15 March 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan (Resigned on 1 January 2019)
Mr. Tang Qingbin (Appointed on 1 January 2019)
Mr. Wang Jinghua

Mr. Fung Nam Shan
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

Biographical details of the Directors as at the date of this annual report
are set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” section on pages
22 to 24 of this annual report. None of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of its independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmation,
the Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors are independent and that they have met the specific
independence guidelines as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Rotation of Directors

All Directors were not appointed for any specific terms and they are
subject to re-election by the Shareholders at the AGM of the Company
and at least once every three years on a rotation basis in accordance
with Article 108 of the Articles. A retiring Director shall be eligible for
re-election at the AGM of the Company and shall continue to act as
a Director throughout the meeting which he retires. Where vacancies
arise at the Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the
Board by the nomination committee of the Company as more fully
explained below under the section headed “Nomination Committee”.

Directors’ Training

In compliance with the Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the
Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge, skills and
understanding of the Group and its business or to update their skills
and knowledge on the latest development or changes in the relevant
regulations, the Listing Rules and corporate governance practices.
The Company will also update the Directors of any material changes
in the rules and regulations from time to time. According to the
confirmations provided by the Directors, all Directors have participated
in the continuous professional developments during the year.

Board Diversity Policy

On 29 August 2013, the Company adopted the board diversity policy
(the "Board Diversity Policy”) in accordance with the requirement set
out in the CG Code. The Company recognises that the Board diversity
is an essential element contributing to the sustainable development
of the Company. In designing the Board’s composition, the Board
diversity has been considered from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to the skills, knowledge, gender, age, cultural and
educational background or professional experience. All Board
appointments are based on merits and considered against a variety of
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.

The nomination committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.
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Nomination Policy

The Company has a nomination policy of having a board of directors
with a diversity of skills and experience. The selection and proposed
appointment of the Directors are submitted to the nomination
committee of the Company for consideration prior to Board approval,
and the re-election of Directors is conducted in accordance with the
Articles. The criteria of assessing a candidate include his/her ability
to devote sufficient time and attention to participate in the affairs
of the Company including the attendance of Board meetings and
serving on committees, to bring business experience to the Board
and to contribute to the Board diversity. If the candidate is proposed
to be appointed as an independent non-executive Director, his/her
independence shall be assessed in accordance with the requirements
under the Listing Rules. The totality of the candidate’s education,
qualifications and experience shall be evaluated in assessing his/her
suitability.

Board Meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2018, thirteen Board meetings,
one AGM and one EGM were held and details of attendance are set
out as follows:

REBK

ARBBE-—HAGZLILRERERESTTNIR
AR BMENEZREZEETHESTTIER
RETARARRELZESEE  AREERAA
EREF - JEREAZEEREERTRENR
ARAKERIBEN2EARRER BELESE
ERLRBEEE  UAEZSHREHLER
WREEEREZTELER  WEHRREA
RBUFPTES  HBUMARBLETRAZ
R TLARHE o RIBAZHE - BRREREAEFN
HEAEIER T AR

Exeel

HEZZ-)\F+ZA=+—HIFE KRF
BITT=ZREFEEH  —ABRRAFAER—
RBERFRARE  EEFEZHFERFANT

Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend
HE/REREEEERY

Board meetings AGM/EGM
BRBEEAE/
Exg8a3 RREIAE
Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Lan Yonggiang (Chairman) oK EA (LE) 12/13 12
Ms. Wang Meiyan TEEL 10/13 0/2
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral fREBELE 13/13 212
Ms. Jin Yuping EFLL 8/13 0/2
Mr. Cao Sheng (Appointed on 15 March 2018) BREE(R=ZF—N\F=A+AAEZ() 9/10 12
Mr. Yu Zhiyong (Appointed on 15 March 2018) FEBEE (R=F-NFZA+HAEZE) 10/10 22

Independent Non-Executive Directors BAUEHTES
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan (Resigned on 1 January 2019) Y BEE (R =F—NF—H—HEIE) 12/13 2/2
Mr. Tang Qingbin (Appointed on 1 January 2019) EEREE(R=ZF-—NF—H—HEZT) N/A N/A
TER TiEA
Mr. Wang Jinghua THELLE 8/13 0/2
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BELEE 13/13 212
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Every Board member has full and timely access to Board papers
and related materials and has unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary, and has the liberty to seek external
professional advice if so required.

The Company has attached much importance to the risk management
about Directors’ liabilities and has arranged appropriate liability
insurance for the Directors and senior management of the Company.
The insurance coverage is reviewed on an annual basis.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee, established in compliance with the CG
Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
and one executive Director, is responsible for reviewing and evaluating
the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management of
the Company and making recommendations to the Board from time to
time.

The remuneration committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code. The terms of reference
of the remuneration committee has been uploaded to the Company’s
website.
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During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration committee BE_ZTZ—\F+_A=1+—HILFE HFMNZ

held three meetings to review and consider the remuneration package BEEgRITT= /’Z;\E% L,Wﬁfj‘&%)%iﬁﬁq&%ﬁ%

of the existing and newly appointed Board members and the senior TrzEFEEKE BIE 2 NS o BN
management. Composition of the remuneration committee and details ZEeZHKNMEE "\W,\Ztlj}* SFFan T

of the members’ attendance to the committee are as follows:

Number of meetings

attended/eligible

to attend

HEEEE

HESBRY™

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan (Resigned on 1 January 2019) FYBRLEE (R-_FE—NF—H—HEE) 3/3
Mr. Tang Qingbin (Appointed on 1 January 2019) BEEWEE (R -_F—N1F—H—HEZ(T) N/A iE A
Mr. Wang Jinghua FrEELE 1/3
Mr. Fung Nam Shan R L& 3/3
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral FRIZFE A 3/3

ERERRAERERAT @

—E-NEFFER 29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRSE

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee, established in compliance with the
CG Code, currently comprises three independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director, is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors and
management of the Board succession.

The nomination committee has adopted written terms of reference
prepared by reference to the suggested terms of reference stated
under the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code. The terms of
reference of the nomination committee has been uploaded to the
Company’s website.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, four meetings of the
nomination committee were held. Details of the members’ attendance

REZES

ARABREFERTUINIRERZES @ BHE
KEBRE=-RBIUFATEETR —BRNTES
BERERAEERETSEEERZETETERE
FeRMERRSE -

ELEARDRAREEEEAT FAEX
A.5.2 15 P 2 R 5 D 7 4 2 9
#E - BAZARIMENED LRERAAS
b o

BEZZT—)/\E+A=T—BHILFE REZ
BERTANREH KELFZEGZFEBEW

to the committee are as follows: T~
Number of meetings
attended/eligible
to attend
HE B
HESRRE
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan (Resigned on 1 January 2019) TYBEE (RZF—NF—H—HEFHE) 3/4
Mr. Tang Qingbin (Appointed on 1 January 2019) EERLE (R -ZF—NF—H—HEZ(T) N/A 36 F
Mr. Wang Jinghua FHEELE 2/4
Mr. Fung Nam Shan KSR o A 4/4
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral PRIZEE ST 4 4/4

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company was established with written
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules
and the suggested terms of reference stated under the Code Provision
C.3 of the CG Code. The audit committee currently comprises three
independent non-executive Directors and is chaired by Mr. Tang
Qingbin. The audit committee is responsible for review of the Group's
accounting principles, practices internal control procedures and
financial reporting matters including the review of the interim and final
results of the Group prior to recommending to the Board for approval.

The terms of reference of the audit committee has been uploaded to
the Company’s website.
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Two meetings of the audit committee were held during the year to
review and approve the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2017 and for the six months period ended
30 June 2018, and to review the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control systems. The attendances at these meetings are as follows:

FRAEZZEGERITMADHE  UEBHLAQA
BHE-_Z—tF+-_A=+—HULEFEREZE=
T-NFARA=Z+HIENEA BB FB®RE
Wi AEEANBELERNNN - 2Ega
HERS|EFHOT -

Number of meetings
attended/eligible

to attend

HE S EER

HESERE

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan (Resigned on 1 January 2019) FYBEE (R=ZF—NF—H—HAFT) 2/2
Mr. Tang Qingbin (Appointed on 1 January 2019) EERELE (R -FE—NFE—H—HEZE) N/A i
Mr. Wang Jinghua FWRELE 0/2
Mr. Fung Nam Shan SEIL S A 2/2

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The audit committee reviews and monitors the independent auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit process.
It holds meetings with representatives of the independent auditor to
consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The
audit committee also makes recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and retention of the independent auditor.

During the year, BDO Limited (“BDO") was appointed as the auditor of
the Company and to hold office until the conclusion of the next AGM
of the Company.

The following table sets forth the types of, and estimated fees for, the
principal audit services and non-audit services provided by BDO to the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018:

P BB B

ERZEERNNEEBUREM B RE
B EBIULER NG BREZE e B RH
fizcRERBITEHR TREZEE HEEE
R ARESREZIFELRE (WF) 28E R
EREE  BERZESNTAZERERBIZH
fhEEERHEBEE -

FR BRELGEERSAMEEMERARD(E
BUGERR])BERBRARBZZHE - LEE
EARAB T -ERRBFRETHERL -
TERBINBE-_F-N\FT_A=T—"HLFE
HEBYERRERTAREZ T ERBUIRE &
FERBIRE 2 ERARMFT W E

Fees paid/payable

HK$'000

et/ ENER

Services rendered FriR iR % FET
Audit services =R 1,050
Non-audit services FEIZ B AR 7% -
Total =t 1,050
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has delegated its responsibilities of (i) reviewing risk
management and internal control to the audit committee; and (ii)
designing, implementing and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems to the management. The Group’s internal
audit staff is responsible for analysing and appraising the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management and internal control systems.

The Board, through the audit committee, has conducted a review
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018, including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management
function.

The management shall report to the Board as soon as practicable for
any event which may constitute inside information, and the Board shall
decide to make relevant disclosure in a timely manner, if required.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral, the executive Director, was appointed
as the company secretary of the Company in November 2016. Mr.
Chan is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. He is responsible to the Board for ensuring the Board
procedures and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
According to the requirements of Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr.
Chan had taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHT

The rights of the Shareholders and the procedures for them to demand
a poll on resolutions at the Shareholders’ meetings are contained
in the Articles. Details of such rights to demand a poll and the poll
procedures are included in all circulars to the Shareholders and will
be explained during the proceedings of meetings. Poll results, if any,
will be posted on both the websites of the Stock Exchange and of
the Company on or before the next business day of the Shareholders’
meeting.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles, an EGM shall be convened on the
written requisition of one or more Shareholders for the attention of the
Board or the company secretary of the Company.

The written requisition shall specify the purpose of requiring the EGM
and signed by the requisitionist(s), provided that such requisitionist(s)
held as at the date of deposit of the written requisition not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right of
voting at general meetings.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed
to convene the EGM, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for Shareholders to propose a person
for election as a Director

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles, no person, other than a retiring
Director, shall, unless recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election to the office of Director at any general meeting,
unless notice in writing of the intention to propose that person for
election as a Director and notice in writing by that person of his
willingness to be elected shall have been lodged at the head office or
at the registration office at least seven clear days before the date of the
general meeting.

Accordingly, if a Shareholder wishes to nominate a person to stand
for election as a Director at the AGM, the following documents must
be validly served at the Company’s head office or the registration
office within the period specified in Article 113 of the Articles, namely,
(1) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution to elect a
nominated candidate as a Director at the AGM; (2) a notice signed by
the nominated candidate of the candidate’s willingness to be elected;
(3) the nominated candidate’s information as required to be disclosed
under rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules; and (4) the nominated
candidate’s written consent to the publication of his/her personal data.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The general meetings of the Company provide a platform for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Our
Directors are available at the Shareholders’ meetings to answer
questions and provide information which the Shareholders may
enquire. The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

Taking advantages of various resources, the Company keeps
communicating with its shareholders regularly and properly to ensure
that the Shareholders are adequately aware of any important issues
during the course of the Company’s operations, and then exercise their
rights as the Shareholders with sufficient knowledge. Investors are
welcome to write directly to the Company at its Hong Kong registered
office for any inquiries.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopts a dividend policy. The Board shall consider the
following factors before declaring or recommending dividends:

current and prospective financial performance of the Company;
growth and investment opportunities;

other macro and micro economic factors; and

other factors/events that the Board may deem as relevant.

The payment of dividend is also subject to any restrictions under the
applicable laws and the Articles.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR PREPARING
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group and for ensuring that the
financial statements are prepared in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards. The Board also
ensures the timely publication of the financial statements of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group incurred
a loss of HK$73,847,000 and recorded net current liabilities of
HK$228,926,000 as at 31 December 2018. Construction costs
of HK$344,955,000 are recorded as current liabilities which are
repayable within one year after the reporting date, out of which
HK$307,223,000 and HK$37,732,000 were recognised under other
payables and other borrowings respectively. The capital commitment
for construction costs was HK$2,452,000 as at 31 December
2018. In addition, other borrowings included in current liabilities
of HK$42,795,000 was overdue as at 31 December 2018. These
conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubts about the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Directors have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis, the
appropriateness of which depends upon the outcome of the
underlying assumptions and measures as detailed in note 3(a)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 51 to 59 of this
annual report.

VOTING BY POLL

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. As such, all the resolutions
set out in the notice of the forthcoming AGM of the Company will be
voted by poll.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
principal subsidiaries are engaged in the oil production, the leasing
of oil and liquefied chemical terminal together with its storage and
logistics facilities and insurance brokerage service. Details of the
Company'’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are set out in
note 38 to the financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group
and an indication of likely future development in the Group’s business,
can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 4 to 6 and
pages 7 to 21 respectively of this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the Consolidated Income Statement and Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income on pages 60 and 61 respectively.

The state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December 2018 is set out in
the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position on pages 62 to 63.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.
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EEEHE

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published consolidated results of
the Group for the last five financial years, and the assets, liabilities
and non-controlling interests of the Group as at each of the reporting

MBERBE

TXHEAEBBEAEAYRFEZETESS
EEARAREER S REAH2EE BEMSF

ZRR RS 2 E -

dates.
Results E 4
Year ended 31 December
BE+-—B=+—HLEE
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ENE | FT—+F —T—FRFE —T—HF —T—NOF
FExT FHT FET T FHET
Revenue & 152,328 30,338 40,926 87,480 227,923
(Loss)/profit attribute to: MR (B1B) %A
Owners of the Company RARER A (76,478) (187,121) (189,971) (492,568) (673,621)
Non-controlling interests IR AR R AE A 2,631 (14,309) (10,993) (39,408) (86,153)
(73,847) (201,430) (200,964) (531,976) (759,774)
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests &EE > AERFEZERBRRER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—8H
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
HK$"000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-NE | ZT—+tF ZT-RF ZE—RHF ZT—OF
FHxT FHET FHET FHET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,687,493 | 1,843,919 1,483,549 1,115,057 1,257,568
Current assets MENEE 529,038 149,327 362,881 395,769 122,577
Total assets BEMAE 2,216,531 1,993,246 1,846,430 1,510,826 1,380,145
Current liabilities mEaE 757,964 | 1,225,104 716,008 500,682 216,374
Non-current liabilities IRBaE 529,296 397,402 665,140 322,933 305,846
Total liabilities BERE 1,287,260 | 1,622,506 1,381,148 823,615 522,220
Net assets BEFE 929,271 370,740 465,282 687,211 857,925
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR AR R AE = 165,946 167,210 115,494 134,411 24,361
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2018 in
the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 20 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital during the year are set out in note 33 to the
financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 34(b) to the financial
statements and in the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
respectively. The Company had no reserve available for distribution to
the Shareholders as at 31 December 2018.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the sales to the Group's five largest customers
accounted for 100% of the Group’s total sales for the year and sales
to the largest customer included therein amounted to approximately
76%.

During the year, none of the Group’s supplier accounted for more than
5% of the Group’s purchases.

None of the Directors, any of their associates or Shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital), had any beneficial interests in the
Group's five largest customers and/or suppliers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company Board members during the year and up
to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Lan Yonggiang (Chairman)
Ms. Wang Meiyan

Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral
Ms. Jin Yuping

Mr. Cao Sheng

Mr. Yu Zhiyong

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan (Resigned on 1 January 2019)
Mr. Tang Qingbin (Appointed on 1 January 2019)
Mr. Wang Jinghua

Mr. Fung Nam Shan

In accordance with Article 108(A) of the Articles, Ms. Jin Yuping, Mr.
Wang Jinghua and Mr. Fung Nam Shan will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming AGM of the Company and are eligible to offer themselves
for re-election as Directors.
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In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles, Mr. Tang Qingbin, who
was newly appointed as Director since the last AGM of the Company,
shall hold office until the next general meeting of the Company
following his appointment and being eligible, offer himself for re-
election.

Details of the resolutions to be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company for the re-election of retiring Directors will be proposed
in the Company’s circular in relation to re-election of Directors and
notice of AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 22 to 24 of
the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM of
the Company has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Details of the remuneration of the Directors during the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 14(a) to the financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity against
liability incurred by Directors and officers of the Group is currently in
force and was in force throughout the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, no Director had
a significant beneficial interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or were in existence during the year.

FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES THROUGH ISSUE OF
EQUITY/CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Set out below is the fund raising activities of the Company during the
year:

There were two fund raising activities of the Company during the year:

(1) The net proceeds from the placement of 609,940,000
new Shares at the placing price HK$0.143 per Share were
approximately HK$85.1 million, which was completed on 14
February 2018.

BEEEH

FRALEITIXFEEEARAEEREMEKR
O EB 2 ERRITHER °

BRBTHES TEREFETE

BES

TRENRNFEARRRZEE TR

KEE  RRARETTMRERLY

(1) REEEHER0.1438 Ll %5 609,940,000
A& A% (D - FT1S FIB $ 584 85,100,000 /%8
T REER_ZTE—/\F_A+WARZTK °

Amount utilised

up to Unused as at
Intended use 31 December 31 December
of proceeds 2018 2018
BE-Z-N\H§ RZZ-N\F
frié®%E +=A=+-H +=ZA=t-—H
E A& EBALHE ZARE A
HKS$ million HKS$ million HK$ million
AR BEET AEET
Repayment of debt and EEEELAR
liabilities 63.3 (63.3) -
General working capital of FEE-REEES
the Group 21.8 (2.7) 19.1
85.1 (66.0) 19.1

40 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018



mw

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ESERE

A\

L

(2)  The total net proceeds from the subscription of HK$449 million 2) BEZEETLPR B AR ANARE
convertible bonds by Giant Crystal and not less than six placees 449,000,000 LAl MK EH - TS 5A
were approximately HK$441.0 million, which was completed on 48 % 58 B 441,000,000 0 BN ZE
17 September 2018. —N\FRATEHEK -

Amount
Revised Amount Amount utilised
allocation utilisedupto unusedasat  subsequent Amount
Intended use afterthe 31 December 31 December tothe  unused as at
of proceeds changes 2018 2018 yearend 17 April 2019*
BECR-NE RCR-NE R=E-nE
Fr85E #4& t-A=t-8 TZA=t-R EXKSEA WAttA
BERE  BBITIE CBASE 2RBALE 8 2ABRSE:
HKS'million ~ HKS'million ~ HKS'millon ~ HK§'million ~ HK$'million ~ HK$'million
BE#T BERT BERTL BEAET BEER BEER
Repayment of debt and liabilities (including ~ ERERRAE
the amounts set aside for liabilities (BEREERTEELATEELR
accrued or imminently accruing) E) 37110 2820 (128 269.2 (255.4) 138
Expansion and business development of REERNBZ MBBRER 2 BRRE
the Group's newly acquired financial KRR
consulting business 20.0 20.0 (0.4) 19.6 (0.5) 19.1
Maintenance of the Group's existing BERSEREEREE RS RREL
businesses of ol production and oil and IRBERERITER
liquefied chemical terminal, storage and
logistics 25.0 25.0 - 25.0 - 250
Possible financing of acquisition AR e RE ()
opportunities (Note) 25.0 114.0 (114.0) - - -
441.0 4410 (1272) 3138 (255.9) 51.9
* 17 April 2019 was the latest practicable date for ascertaining these * ZT—NEMNA+ - BRFIEARRE A #EE

figures prior to the publication of this report ZEET o REERAIITES
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Note:

Subsequent to the completion of the issue of CB9, the Company has
entered into a non-legally binding MOU with the vendors, pursuant
to which the Company proposed to invest in a target company which
is engaged in the fintech industry in the PRC. A refundable deposit of
RMB100 million (approximately HK$114 million) had been paid under the
terms of MOU, details of which are disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 30 October 2018. No legally binding agreement has been
entered between the Company and the vendors as at the date of this

annual report.

The acquisition opportunity of the fintech project only arose after the
completion of the issue of CB9. In addition, subsequent to the issue
of CBY9, it transpired to the Company that out of principal amount of
the 2015 CB of HK$98 million which has remained outstanding and
unconverted as at July 2018, HK$66 million were converted prior to
maturity in September 2018 leaving behind only approximately HK$32
million unconverted at maturity requiring cash redemption by the
Company. The Company has therefore reallocated part of its net proceeds
from the issue of CB9 originally set aside for debt repayment to the
potential acquisition of this fintech project. As disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 30 October 2018, the Company considered that the
proposed investment in the fintech project as contemplated by the MOU,
if materialises, provides the Company with the opportunity to invest in
the fast-growing fintech industry in the PRC and enable the Group to
broaden its recurring income stream. Therefore, the Directors (including

the independent non-executive Directors) considered that the entering

i

SEREBETARBESSENAMESE AR HE
BHNAARBORNGHEERS - Bt &
RAIEHBER %ﬁ‘%/&ﬂ(ﬁ@ﬁéi%%ﬂﬂ&ﬁ
%) c AAR D RIEREESIEAR I RE
& AR #100,000,0007T (47114,000,000%
) BBHBENARRBHAZT—NE+
AZTHZRAENEE - BEAFHAL AR
BIERE FWEET L EEROR N1 -

SREBHRIEE MR EESER TR ETIRRE
HENBEHFBET o WHN  BITAIRRESS
NitEH%  RZT—NFL AXARMNKER
BARERN —F — A F o #AREF 98,000,000
BILAEEEF » 66,000,000 TR =T —)\F
nﬁ T HRATE ¥R - {282 T 4932,000,0004 7T
BARAFENIHAIREER - RARIALEF
EE%TEJWXE%%Mktﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁré/ﬂﬁ
HREREEEEHFEBERESRBIE AR
EEWDZIKLETEI/HJ%F%:Y NE+A=+BZRE
i ARRARARBESHBETHRETHE
FRECABKBERMAEETER  BARNARIRM
BERPHEREEROSBBIHRITEORE - I
BEERE AR AL EHERARIR - Bt - BEF
(BEBIUFPTES) BRI LABERHRRE
TRBEARBATABYFAARG RBERE

into of the MOU for the investment in the fintech project is fair and R o
reasonable and in the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole.
Save as disclosed above, the Company has not conducted other fund BREXFrAEN REZE-_Z—N\NF+=A

raising activities through equity/convertible securities during the year Z+—ALEFE  ARRMEEGEREZ 1R
ended 31 December 2018. BHETHMEEREES -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), which had been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which were required to be entered in the register
referred to therein pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, are set out below:

EERFERETHRAEBRKRSD - HE
RO RESEERAXR

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H EFERARFE
ZITBABRAARISEEMMAREZE (EER
BHREEERN(TEFERBEGD]DEXVEH) 2
& - HEAROKEFTHEBEREBEZS LAE
TEBIZE XV EE 7 R85 H MmN =] REE 22 FT
HARBE S KB GROIE 352 GRERZBATE
Frigc & Madsr - SKZBERE LRI E+Fr
o BETFRBMARRI LB ERIKE
T

Long positions

#E Approximate

Total number  percentage of

of shares and the issued

Underlying underlying  share capital of

Name of Directors Capacity Shares shares shares held the Company

EAAF

FiERH R BRTRE

BEpg &t i HERG HERGEY AR

Mr. Cao Sheng (“Mr. Cao") Interest of controlled corporation 1,370,000,000 784,313,725  2,154,313,725* 39.57%
ERnAE(ERE]) RIEH AR RS

Mr. Yu Zhiyong (“Mr. Yu") Interest of controlled corporation 1,370,000,000 784,313,725 2,154,313,725* 39.57%
TEERE(FRE] R EE RS
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* According to the filings under Disclosure of Interest (the “DI Filings”)
under Part XV of the SFO retrieved by the Company from public
records, these 2,154,313,725 shares and underlying shares comprise
(a) 1,370,000,000 Shares held by Giant Crystal;, and (b) 784,313,725
underlying Shares falling to be issued upon full conversion of the
CB9 subscribed by Giant Crystal. Giant Crystal is 100% legally and
beneficially owned by Cosmic Shine International Limited (“Cosmic
Shine”), which is in turn legally and beneficially owned as to 50% by
Mr. Cao and as to the other 50% by Mr. Yu, both being executive
Directors. Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal are regarded as controlled
corporations of Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu and therefore, Mr. Cao and Mr.
Yu are deemed to be interested in all the 2,154,313,725 shares and
underlying shares interested in by Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal.
The deemed interest under Part XV of the SFO of Mr. Cao and Mr. Yu

duplicate with each others completely.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2018, so far as any Directors are aware based on
the DI Filings, persons (other than the Directors or chief executives of
the Company) who have interests or short positions in the Shares or
underlying Shares which were required to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required
to be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

FERRRBRORABRG 2B
599

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H8 BEAESH
HMoREEREESRH ATAL(EFHAR
AIXETHRABRIN RO EEERD T ES
RIBEFEFLBAEROIIEXVIBE2REIHIHER
AR E 2 R RR B HALHERRRRRE
EHRRPERIEBKRATHFEZELMZ#E

SL—poagal .
mIRE

Long positions

39}

Total number Approximate

of Shares and percentage of

underlying issued share

Underlying Shares capital of

Name of Shareholders Capacity Shares Shares held the Company

RN

PR & BRITRA

RERE A a4 R4 HER B HEROEE BB

Giant Crystal Beneficial owner 1,370,000,000 784,313,725 2,154,313,725* 39.57%

S ExlEEA

Cosmic Shine Interest of controlled corporation 1,370,000,000 784,313,725 2,154,313,725* 39.57%
Cosmic Shine REGERER

* Based on the DI Filings, these 2,154,313,725 Shares and underlying * RIS E R R Z%2,154,313,725

Shares comprise (a) 1,370,000,000 Shares held by Giant Crystal; and (b)
784,313,725 underlying Shares falling to be issued upon full conversion
of the CB9 subscribed by Giant Crystal. Giant Crystal is 100% legally
and beneficially owned by Cosmic Shine. Giant Crystal is regarded as
controlled corporation of Cosmis Shine and therefore, Cosmic Shine is
deemed to be interested in all the 2,154,313,725 Shares and underlying
Shares interested in by Giant Crystal. The deemed interest under Part XV
of the SFO of Cosmic Shine and Giant Crystal duplicate with each others

completely.

Bl REERGG BEQIESIFTAEZ
1,370,000,000 f% A% 15 ¢ M (b)4E & FT R fE
ZABRBREFENAMESTERZBITERK T
B 17 2 784,313,725/ 16 B8 X 19 o 4E & M
Cosmic Shine& AR Em#EAS 100% s  6E
& 118 & Cosmic Shine 2 45 A - A It -
Cosmic Shine#W R AR RFTEAER 22
#82,154,313,725 A 19 R ABRE AR (5 7 A
%% ° Cosmic Shine B @M B 5 M EEMIE
XVEETHRAEBEZERBLETE2EE -
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All the interests stated above represent long positions in the Shares. As
at 31 December 2018, no short positions were recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware up to 31
December 2018, no other person had an interest or short position in
the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of the Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which was recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the EGM of the Company
held on 24 June 2013, the Stock Exchange granted approval of the
listing of and permission to deal in the Shares to be issued under the
share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 26 June 2013.
The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme
include Directors, employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner or adviser of or contractor to the Group or a company in which
the Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company. The Share
Option Scheme was adopted on 24 June 2013 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that date.
The Share Option Scheme will expire on 23 June 2023. There was no
share option granted and exercised during the year under review and
no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2018.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year, save for the Share Option Scheme as previously
mentioned, the Company has not entered into any equity-linked
agreements, and there did not subsist any equity-linked agreement
entered into by the Company as at 31 December 2018.
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

On 14 June 2018, the Company entered into the subscription
agreement with Giant Crystal pursuant to which Giant Crystal
has conditionally agreed to subscribe for convertible bonds in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000, carrying interest
at 3% per annum and maturing on the date falling on the second
anniversary of the date of issue. The subscription was approved by
independent Shareholders at the EGM held on 17 August and was
completed on 17 September 2018. Details of the subscription are set
out in the circular of the Company dated 27 July 2018.

Save and disclosed herein and elsewhere in the financial statements,
there were no other transactions required to be disclosed as connected or
continuing connected transactions in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year and up to the date of this report, no Directors are
considered to have an interest in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group, as defined by the Listing Rules, other than those businesses of
which the Directors have been appointed as Directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and maintaining a high standard of corporate social
governance essential for creating a framework for motivating staff,
and contributes to the community in which we conduct our businesses
and creating a sustainable return to the Group.

Particulars of the Company’s corporate governance practices and
principles are set out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25
to 34 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company maintained the amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018.

LITIGATIONS

Details of the litigations of the Group are set out in note 48 to the
financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of the events after the reporting date are set out in note 49 to
the financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group is committed to operate in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of its various stakeholders including customers,
suppliers and employees. Through regular stakeholder engagement
via different channels, the stakeholders are encouraged to give their
opinions regarding the environmental, social and governance policies
of the Group.

This includes providing quality services to customers, developing
effective and mutual beneficial working relationships with its suppliers,
and offering competitive remuneration package with safety working
environments to employees.

The details of environmental, social and governance policies
and performance of the Group will be disclosed in a standalone
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, which will be issued in
or before July 2019.
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CHANGE IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS ES5EREH

During the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this BE-—ZE-N\E+-_A=+—AILEEREEAN
annual report, the update information on Directors required to be EWAE RIELTRE13.51B) KB TH

disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as follow: EEHHNEEEEMT

Name of Directors Details of changes

EENR BEFE

Mr. Lan Yonggiang - Ceased to act as the chairman of Guangdong Golden Dragon Development Inc. (listed on the
BE Sk Ba 4 Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 000712) with effect from June 2018.

- THECERBEZRBRNERAF(RIIEFZXSHA LT - BHKSE : 000712)EEK - B
ZE - N\FRBER-

- Ceased to act as an independent director of Top Score Fashion Co., Ltd. (formerly known
as Topscore Fashion Shoes Co., Ltd.) (listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
603608) with effect from May 2018.

- THEFREIREHRMNDBR AT (FIBEMNREIFRSEXRNHERAT) (RLEEEHZSHME
o BRORSE - 603608) BUESE B-E—N\FRHAER -

Mr. Yu Zhiyong - Appointed as a member of the Eighth Dongying Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s
FEBLE Political Consultative Conference since March 2019.
- B - NEF=ZAREERENETREBAHAGEREMEELE °

Mr. Tang Qingbin - Appointed as an independent non-executive Director and chairman of each of the audit
EE LA committee, nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company in January
2019.
- RNIE-NF-ARZAERBRTEERANAELZES  REZBERFMZEE]
& o

- Remuneration of his appointment as an independent non-executive Director is fixed at
HK$10,000 per month.

- EAEFNITESTHFMNAS A 10,0008 7T ©

- Appointed as an independent director of Luxin Venture Capital Group Co., Ltd. (listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600783) in January 2019.

- NZE-NF-RAEZERBREAXREEERNBERDA (R LEBELRRSHM ET - RiHK
5% : 600783) B ESE o

Mr. Fung Nam Shan - Acted as the company secretary and authorised representative of China Investment
ERT LA Development Limited (listed on Main Board, stock code: 204) from August 2018 to November
2018.

- RIE-NFNAEZE-N\FE+—AEIHERERBEEARAT(RIRLET  BHNKYE
204) REIMERBERE -

Mr. Lee Hoi Yan - Resigned as a non-executive Director and chairman of each of the audit committee,
Y| B8 4 nomination committee and remuneration committee of the Company with effect from January
2019.
- BEFRTEERARRIELZZES REZBERFMZESIR UN-_F-NAF—AX%
2 e
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEE®RE

AUDIT COMMITTEE EREE®

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed with management ARNBzEREEer HEREBEMNAEBFTR
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group, and Mz esRARED - WA EE RIS
discussed internal controls and financial reporting matters including EFEETHR  EREEMHAAFEHEZZ—/\F
a review of the audited financial statements of the Company for the F+ZA=Z+—HLEFEZEERVERE - AR
year ended 31 December 2018. The audit committee of the Company AMNEZZESKEREZZBIIERTESE -
comprises three independent non-executive Directors.

AUDITOR = EEm

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 were 22— N\F+_A=1+—"HILFEZVHER
audited by BDO. BDO retired and, being eligible, offer themselves for FEEBLGEEREZ BALEERH/RE -

reappointment. A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM WHEEEABRERESET - NRFAIKRENGE
of the Company to re-appoint BDO as auditor of the Company. TZRERFRE HIEE —TBREE  UEHZE

EBRBUGERERRARBZZHEED -

On behalf of the Board REESE

Mr. Lan Yonggiang TE

Chairman EEKBEE

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019 BE ZET-hE=A=+/N\H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B A BE RS

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2218 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EEE 1 +852 2218 8288
{8E : +852 2218 2239

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ENERGY INTERNATIONAL INVESTMENTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Energy
International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 228,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants” (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

25™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EATHER11158
KB HI251
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that (i) the Group incurred a loss of
HK$73,847,000 during the year; (ii) as at 31 December 2018, the
Group had net current liabilities of HK$228,926,000; (iii) as at 31
December 2018, included in current liabilities were total outstanding
construction costs of HK$344,955,000, that are repayable within one
year after the reporting date, in which amounts of HK$307,223,000
and HK$37,732,000 were recognised under other payables (note
26) and other borrowings (note 29) respectively and the capital
commitments for construction cost was HK$2,452,000 (note 42);
and (iv) as at 31 December 2018, included in current liabilities were
other borrowings of HK$42,795,000 that have been overdue for
repayments. As stated in note 3(a)(ii), these conditions indicate that
a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubts about
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. In addition to matter described in
the “Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we have
determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.
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Impairment assessment on non-financial assets

(Refer to note 18 and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
judgements in relation to impairment of non-financial assets set out in
notes 4(v) and 4(vii) to the consolidated financial statements.)

The continuing reporting loss of the Oil Production segment for the
year is the factor which heightens the risk of impairment associated
with its non-financial assets carried at cost, comprising property, plant
and equipment and intangible assets amounting to HK$1,237,000 and
HK$154,141,000 as at 31 December 2018 respectively.

Management has performed impairment test on non-financial assets
of the Qil Production cash-generating unit (“CGU") in accordance
with the Group's accounting policies. Management also appointed an
independent valuation firm to estimate the recoverable amounts of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets attributable to their
relevant CGU determined by higher of fair value less cost of disposal
and value-in-use calculation, as detailed in note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements and concluded that there is impairment in respect
of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets amounting to
HK$526,000 and HK$62,801,000 respectively.

We have identified impairment assessment on non-financial assets as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because estimation of the value-in-use calculation of the
CGU involve significant management judgement with the respect to its
underlying 13-years period cash flow forecasts, discount rate and future
growth rates and the estimation of fair value less cost of disposal.

M BEERERT G

(FB2HFEEMEHRERME 18 RENGR A P IEHREK
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Our response:

Our procedures in relation to the management’s impairment assessment
on non-financial assets included:

o Evaluating the independent valuation firm’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

o Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions based on our
knowledge of the business and industry, in particular those
relating to the 13-year period cash flow forecasts underlying the
value-in-use calculation and the estimation of fair value less cost
of disposal,

o Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the
data provided by the management, such as growth rate and
discount rate used;

o Conducting in-depth discussions with the management about
the cash flow projections used in the value-in-use calculation
and assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions
and critical judgement areas which affect the value-in-use
calculation;

o Benchmarking the growth rate and discount rate used in the
value-in-use calculation against independent industry data and
comparable companies; and

o Evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key

assumptions used in the value-in-use calculation and fair value
less cost of disposal calculation.
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Fair value measurement of investment properties

(Refer to note 20 and the Group’s critical accounting estimates and
judgements in relation to the fair value measurement of investment
properties set out in note 4(ii) to the consolidated financial statements.)

Management estimated the fair value of investment properties at
approximately HK$1,425,000,000 as at 31 December 2018, with a fair
value loss of approximately HK$5,986,000 recognised in the profit or
loss for the year. The fair value of the investment properties was arrived
on the basis of the valuation carried out by an independent valuation
firm.

We have identified the fair value measurement of investment properties
as a key audit matter because of its significant to the consolidated
financial statements and the valuation of the Group’s investment
properties are dependent on valuation model used by management,
certain key assumptions and estimations that require significance
management judgement. Details of the valuation technique and
significant unobservable inputs used in valuation are disclosed in note 20
to the consolidated financial statements.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to the management’s fair value measurement
on investment properties included:

3 Evaluating the independent valuation firm’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

° Assessing the reasonableness of the key assumptions based on
our knowledge of the business and the industry, in particular
those relating to the 5-year period cash flow projection used by
the income approach for the fair value measurement;

° Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of the
data provided by the management, such as capitalisation rate
and discount rate used;

o Conducting in-depth discussions with management about the
cash flow projections used in the income approach calculation
and assessing the appropriateness of the significant assumptions
and critical judgement areas which affect the income approach
calculation; and

. Evaluating and assessing the appropriateness of the key
assumptions used in the income-approach calculation.
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38 3 B BT R S

Other Information in the Annual Report

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that

fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in

discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Au Yiu Kwan

Practising Certificate Number PO5018

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEeEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—+t5F
B =E FER FAT
Continuing operations BHEGEER
Revenue Wz 5 152,328 30,338
Cost of sales $HEE Ak N (26,801) (21,532)
Gross profit EF 125,527 8,806
Other income and gains H AU A R Yz 5 9,685 7,095
Selling and distribution expenses HE R HAT (6,790) (6,219)
Administrative expenses A (37,955) (36,248)
Other operating expenses H & (2,116) (20,207)
Fair value loss on investment properties SEMERNTEEE 20 (5,986) -
Impairment loss on property, plant M - HEREE2REER
and equipment 15 (526) (5,469)
Impairment loss on intangible assets EIVEEREERE 18 (62,801) (170,710)
Finance costs BETE B AR 7 (64,155) (8,587)
Loss before income tax M ETS R AT E 1B 8 (45,117) (231,539)
Income tax (expenses)/credit e (Fx), He 9 (28,730) 39,679
Loss for the year from BELSEEL Y
continuing operations REEEE (73,847) (191,860)
Discontinued operation BRIEKEER
Loss for the year from BRIEEEEL 2
discontinued operation REEZEEIE 11 - (9,570)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (73,847) (201,430)
(Loss)/profit for the year FEEAREE (HE) GEF
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZIN/NGTEZ 2SN
— from continuing operations — BB ERS (76,478) (178,056)
— from discontinued operation — B IEEEET - (9,065)
(76,478) (187,121)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR AR PR fE
— from continuing operations — B EEEETE 2,631 (13,804)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER - (505)
2,631 (14,309)
(73,847) (201,430)
Loss per share for loss attributable to AT #EAE AEMLEER (Restated)
the owners of the Company 2 EREE 12 (&%)
Basic and diluted EXRREE
— from continuing operations —FEEEEB (HK cent 1.2384l) | (HK cents 4.5&(L)
— from discontinued operation — BRI EER N/A T iE B (HK cent 0.2 7&1lI)
— from continuing and discontinued —REREEBR
operations B IEE T (HK cent 1.2384l) | (HK cents 4.7 &)

60 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2-N\F —T—+F
FET FAT
Loss for the year AEEEE (73,847) (201,430)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax HithZEWA - HIRFIE
Item that will not be reclassified TEEH P HEERm2HEA -
to profit or loss:
Fair value adjustment upon transfer from e RAYEEEE AR
owner-occupied properties to investment R AT EFAZE
properties - 66,402
Items that may be reclassified subsequently BHEGEEH 7 EFTHEH
to profit or loss: ZIER :
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of MEFINETS T TEREK 2
financial statements of foreign operations N (F58), W (26,621) 28,842
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of & E A &) B #RER
subsidiaries bE H 1 - (10,888)
Other comprehensive income for the year, ZAEEHEM2EUEA -
net of tax HIRHIR (26,621) 84,356
Total comprehensive income for the year AEEE2HERALLE (100,468) (117,074)
Total comprehensive income attributable to: FE{52E U A& %E :
— Owners of the Company —ARREEEA (99,016) (146,258)
— Non-controlling interests — IEE R AR R A (1.452) 29,184
(100,468) (117,074)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2018 R=ZE— \F+=-F=+—H
2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —tF
B 5E FExT Tt
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERER
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RENEE 15 6,519 9,650
Prepaid land lease payments TET 4 4 & FRIE 16 - -
Sea area use rights VB {50 FR A 17 - -
Intangible assets EmREE 18 154,141 217,769
Goodwill [GES 19 1,440
Investment properties A 20 1,425,000 1,500,000
Deposits and other receivables 7R K& H {th fE UG ZRI8 22 57,204 66,116
Deferred tax assets RIERIA & B 32 43,189 50,384
1,687,493 1,843,919
Current assets RBEE
Trade receivables W E 5 8R18 21 15,211 8,372
Prepayments, deposits and other TBfRIE - 'Be &
receivables A pE YR IE 22 150,791 68,087
Loan receivables EUE K 23 72,098 -
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABRZ
profit or loss B 184 = 24 14,407 15,809
Pledged bank deposits EBIRITFERK 25 - 51,360
Cash and bank balances e RIBTTETF 25 276,531 5,699
529,038 149,327
Current liabilities nBEE
Bills and other payables and accruals JFEAST 2 R H A B 3R IR
N et A 26 389,097 542,976
Amounts due to non-controlling JE {5 S 2= A% IS R FR0A
shareholders 27 - 101,600
Bank borrowings RITRERK 28 157,320 68,984
Other borrowings Hib = 29 126,877 158,956
Finance lease liabilities MEHESE 30 39,584 146,863
Convertible bonds AR ES 31 35,258 195,400
Tax payables JE A F 18 9,828 10,325
757,964 1,225,104
Net current liabilities HREBEEFE (228,926) (1,075,777)
Total assets less current liabilities EEABERABAERS 1,458,567 768,142
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BRI R

As at 31 December 2018 R=E—\F+=A=+—H

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —+F
B oE FHET FHIT
Non-current liabilities EREEE
Amount due to a non-controlling A5 FE 5= % A 3R R
shareholder 27 259,418 -
Bank borrowings RITIE 28 77,520 225,600
Other borrowings HibER 29 44,649 1,036
Finance lease liabilities BmEHEAE 30 2,459 68,994
Convertible bonds AR E S 31 25,250
Deferred tax liabilities FEEFIBEEE 32 120,000 101,772
529,296 397,402
Net assets BEEFE 929,271 370,740
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners RATHEE AL
of the Company =
Share capital A& s 33 544,484 304,970
Reserves i 34 218,841 (101,440)
763,325 203,530
Non-controlling interests e L 165,946 167,210
Total equity AR 929,271 370,740
The consolidated financial statements on pages 60 to 228 were FO0REF228BFEHGEEMBEHRRER-_ZE—N
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of the F=A-F+NBHRAQDRES S & RIZET
Company on 28 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by: WA THEESRRES

Lan Yonggiang

BEK A
Director

BF
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Cao Sheng
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Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

NG EIN 1
*Convertible
bonds Non-
Share *Share *Capital ~ *Exchange equity  *Revaluation  *Accumulated controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
HK$000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$1000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$ /000 HK$1000 HKS'000
HTARES FER
ke REEE  EARE EXRE EERE  CERER *BitR it Rx#: 1
Tin Thn Thn Tin Tin Thn Tin Tin ThL Thn
At 1 January 2017 304,970 2363920 177,021 5070 462,108 - (2983907 349,788 115,494 465,282
Derecognition of non-controlling interests
upon disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) - - - - - - - - 0,53 20,53
Transaction with owners - - - - - - - - 0,532 053
Loss for the year - - - - - - (187,121) (187,121) (14309) (201,430)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  Ef2EUA - 1B
Item that willnot be recessfied fo TEENAEEERFA -
profit or foss:
-Farvalve adjustment upon transfer -~ ABAEEATRENZES
from owner-occupied properties DT{EEE (3 20)
to investment properties (note 20) - - - - - 33,865 - 33,865 30,537 66,402
Items that may be reclassfied subsequently AT EH 757k BE
to profit or loss:
- Bxchange gains on transation of -BEEEHIRRRL
financialstatements of foreign operations ~ [E S - - - 17886 - - - 17886 10,95 28842
- Release of exchange reserve upon disposel  ~HENBLARERES
of subsidiaries (note 11) Gl (Ft11) - - - (10,838 - - - (10,888 - (10,888)
Total comprehensive income for the year A%E2ERALE - - - 6,998 - 33,865 (187121 (146,58) 29,184 (117,074
At 31 December 2017 R-8-tEt-B=1-A 304970 2,363,920 177,021 12,008 462,708 33,865 (3,151,028) 203530 167,210 370,140
At 1 January 2018 HWoE-NE-R-R 304,970 2,363,920 1m0 12,068 462,708 33865 (3,151,028) 203,530 167,210 370,40
Issuance of shares upon placing (note 33(i))  EEBEARMA (iz33(i) 60994 26,21 - - - - - 87,2 - 81,201
Share issue expenses (note 33(i) RiELIR (HEE33) - (2.125) - - - - - (2.125) - 125)
Release upon maturty of convertile THRERS SR ER (h331)
bonds (note 31) - - - - (9,145) - 9,145 - - -
Recogniton of equity companent of EITERERERIA (HiF31)
convertible bonds (note 31) - - - - 416,628 - - 416,628 - 416,628
Issuance of shares upon conversion FETARERREIRA (K1)
of convertible bonds (note 31) 178,520 82,130 - - (453,563) - - 157,087 - 157,087
Acauisiton of non-controling interests SRR R BB (HizE40)
(note 40) - - - - - - - - 4 4
Capital contrbution from a non-controlling R 14
shareholder - - - - - - - - 139 139
Transaction with owners EREAZR5 239514 456,232 - - (46,080) - 9,145 658,811 188 658,999
(Loss)fprofit for the year KEE(BE) /5 - = = = 5 = (76,478) (16478) 2631 (13.847)
Other comprehensive income, net of tax  Ef2ERA  IB#E
Item that may be reclssified subsequently AT EH 7 EEEEIEE -
to profit or loss:
- Bxchange losson tranlation of -EERNERIBRRL
financialstatements of foreign operations ~ E B8 - - - (22,538) - - - (22,538) (4,083) (26,621)
Total comprehensive income for the year AFE2ERALE - - - (22539) - - (76,478) (99,016) (1452 (100468)
At 31 December 2018 R-E-NE+ZB=1-R 544,484 2,820,152 11,01 (10470) 416,628 33805 (3.218361) 163,325 165,946 9291
& The total of these reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of & ZEHRIR B A BERS#15218,841,000 %

HK$218,841,000 (2017: deficits of HK$101,440,000).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-N\E —T—tF
B = FET FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REXBHRESRE
Loss before income tax R AT1S B S R B 1
— From continuing operations —RBEREER (45,117) (231,539)
— From discontinued operation —ERIEREFER - (9,570)
Adjustments for: Tt REIE B fEH TR -
Depreciation of property, plant Y BB RERETE 8
and equipment 3,498 5,624
Amortisation of intangible assets 8 Y 8 870 1,023
Amortisation of sea area use rights VI3 15 R M B 8 - 1,824
Impairment loss of property, plant ME - R NRERE 15
and equipment 518 526 5,469
Impairment loss of intangible assets E A EREER 18 62,801 170,710
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEYE - HE &KX EKE 5
and equipment (19) (65)
Gain on disposal of financial assets at HERAFESFABEZ 5
fair value through profit or loss B 5 & ER IS (76) =
Write-off of property, plant WEEYIZE - BB &R 8
and equipment 1,559 13,051
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial assets BAFEFAEBZZ 8,5
at fair value through profit or loss MBEEZ A TE
BB (M) 920 (2,290)
Fair value loss on investment properties REWMENFEERE 20 5,986 =
Interest income FLEYA 5 (1,894) (826)
Interest expenses B FHZ 7 64,155 8,587
Operating profit/(loss) before working EEESBER 2 LE
capital changes mAl (&) 93,209 (38,002)
Increase in inventories a2z - (54)
Increase in trade receivables JEUE 5 BRTA 2 38 N (7,258) (4,332)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERROE -~ e REAM
deposits and other receivables JFE U FRIE 2 R A (35 n) 33,676 (79,000)
Payment to acquire financial assets at BISRAFEFTABRZ
fair value through profit or loss WG EE 2K - (163)
Increase in trade payables FEfE 5 8RI8 2 3800 - 212
(Decrease)/increase in bills and EREE - B RIEU R
other payables and accruals FEETEIEZ (), /i (192,201) 80,024
Net cash used in operating activities AR 2 LB P > B SR (72,574) (41,315)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—=E-N\F —tF
B 5E FERT FAT
Cash flows from investing activities BEITHEESHE

Purchases of property, plant and equipment g = %)% « R & & E& (6,197) (283,752)
Additions to investment properties AREREMZE - (164)

Proceeds on disposals of property, plant HEME - BEREREZ

and equipment Fr5 38 - 90
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at e N At AIBS Y

fair value through profit or loss B 7% 4 EE B 2018 558 1,251
Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries &N B AR 2R ERAFRE 11 - 1,178
Net cash outflow from business acquisition ZEFUWEEIR € m H F58 40 (1,307) -
Payment of refundable deposit ALREZ ST 22 (114,000) =
Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits ETEEW?ETTT FOR A (48 0) 48,792 (4,537)
Decrease in short-term deposits with & HRHAMR 4826 = & A /9

an original maturity of more than ?E,Hﬂﬁ%’\ﬁ?

3 months - 5,500
Loans to third parties FE=HER (71,480) =
Interest received EUHLE 1,276 826
Net cash used in investing activities B G BT % F5R (142,358) (279,608)
Cash flows from financing activities BEEEHRERE
New bank borrowings %ﬁfﬁmﬁﬁx 44 21,420 343,200
New other borrowings FTIE H M fE R 44 143,357 41,754
New finance leases %ﬁi BEMRE 44 - 132,000
New non-controlling shareholder’s loans %ﬁ#? AR A% B B K 44 246,044 =
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds TR NRE S PSR 44 441,601 =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares E’iféﬂ BIRFTS RR 33(ii)

upon share placing 85,096 =
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER 44 (67,830) (229,793)
Repayments of other borrowings BB EMER 44 (61,321) (70,040)
Repayments of obligations under BEREHEEE 44

finance lease (167,372) (82,800)
Repayments of non-controlling BEFERRRER 44

shareholders’ loans (132,315) -
Interest paid BERFLE 44 (24,833) (1,000)
Net cash generated from financing activities @& % BFE 4+ 2 3 & F5H 483,847 133,321
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RekASEEERZ

cash equivalents #in CGRd) B 268,915 (187,602)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—HA—HZERER

REEEERA 5,699 190,393

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EREH) v & 1,917 2,908
Cash and cash equivalents R+-—A=+—RHAZHER

at 31 December HEZEEEH 276,531 5,699
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Energy International Investments Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated and domiciled in the
Cayman Islands. Its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands
and its principal place of business is changed from Unit 1508,
15th Floor, The Center, 99 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
to Units 4307-08, Office Tower, Convention Plaza, 1 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong with effect from 7 December 2018.
The Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

During the year, the principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”) include:

- oil production representing the business of oil
production;

- oil and liquefied chemical terminal representing the
business of leasing of oil and liquefied chemical terminal
together with its storage and logistics facilities; and

- insurance brokerage service representing the business
of providing insurance brokerage service (new segment
during the year and acquired on 31 August 2018 (note
40)).

The principal activities and other particulars of its subsidiaries are
set out in note 38.

The financial statements on pages 60 to 228 have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") which collective term includes all applicable
individual HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). The financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
("HK$"), which is also the functional currency of the Company
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand (“HK$'000")
unless otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2.

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
first effective on 1 January 2018

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following new or amended HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA, which are relevant to and effective for
the Group’s financial statements for the annual period
beginning on 1 January 2018:

Annual Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Improvements Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
to HKFRSs Reporting Standards
2014-2016
Cycle

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers

Amendments to Revenue from Contracts with
HKFRS 15 Customers (Clarifications to HKFRS
15)

Amendments to Transfers of Investment Property
HKAS 40
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018
(Continued)

A.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016
Cycle - Amendments to HKFRS 1, First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently
unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS
1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, removing transition
provision exemptions relating to accounting
periods that had already passed and were
therefore no longer applicable.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on the financial statements as the periods to
which the transition provision exemptions related
have passed.

2. BEAFHITIRLETERBY K
WEZER (@)

(a) BRI ET REBTEEY
BHREZEAN-R=-F-N
F-—A—BERER &)

A.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments
(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018, bringing together all
three aspects of the accounting for
financial instruments: (1) classification
and measurement; (2) impairment and
(3) hedge accounting. The adoption of
HKFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 has resulted
in changes in accounting policies of the
Group and the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities from
HKAS 39, except for financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL"), where the amount of
change in fair value attributable to change
in credit risk of the liability is recognised in
other comprehensive income unless that
would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for
derecognition of financial assets and
financial liabilities. However, it eliminates
the previous HKAS 39 categories for
financial assets of held to maturity
financial assets, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale financial assets.
The adoption of HKFRS 9 has no material
impact on the Group's accounting policies
related to financial liabilities and derivative
financial instruments. The impact of
HKFRS 9 on the Group'’s classification and
measurement of financial assets is set out
below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9, except for certain trade
receivables (that the trade receivables
do not contain a significant financing
component in accordance with HKFRS
15), an entity shall, at initial recognition,
measure a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVTPL, transaction costs. A financial
asset is classified as: (i) financial assets
at amortised cost; (ii) financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"); or (iii) FVTPL (as
defined in above). The classification of
financial assets under HKFRS 9 is generally
based on two criteria: (i) the business
model under which the financial asset
is managed and (ii) its contractual cash
flow characteristics (the “solely payments
of principal and interest” criterion,
also known as “SPPI criterion”). Under
HKFRS 9, embedded derivatives is no
longer required to be separated from a
host financial asset. Instead, the hybrid
financial instrument is assessed as a whole
for the classification.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2.
(Continued)

(a)

RMF T RREIERTE BB &
WEZER (@)

(a) BRI ET REBTEEY
BHREZEAN-R=-F-N

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued) F—HA—HEXEX#E)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) B. BB B EERIE 95 —
BHIA (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of (i) BT ASERE
financial instruments (Continued) = (%)
A financial asset is measured at amortised BB EERBER
cost if it meets both of the following BLATEE B
conditions and it has not been designated EIETEAFER
as at FVTPL: Az Bz
& E R K AN AT
=
. It is held within a business o ZMIEEEMR—
model whose objective is to hold & & fEmbBsa
financial assets in order to collect M EENRDA
contractual cash flows; and MRS MERFE
EEAMEFA
X
. The contractual terms of the s ZHMBEEMSG
financial asset give rise on specified AR E R
dates to cash flows that meet the HaliReRE R
SPPI criterion. 2 MzREen
EFEEINAE

& RIS IZ%E -

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if HEKEERES
it meets both of the following conditions SR TEME - B
and it has not been designated as at JEE TR A F A
FVTPL: AtEs - BIZER
BREEANFETA

Hith 2 A
. It is held within a business model o ZEBIREMR—
whose objective is to achieved by & & FE W EE 4
both collecting contractual cash RemE MHE
flows and selling financial assets; M5B ERER

and

BAFRHE - &
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments (Continued)

. The contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that meet the
SPPI criterion.

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. All other financial
assets not classified at amortised cost or
FVOCI as described above are classified as
FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial
assets. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI at
FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise arise.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Classification and measurement of

financial instruments (Continued)

The accounting policies would be applied

to the Group's financial assets as follows:

At FVTPL

At amortised
cost

These are subsequently
measured at fair value.
Changes in fair value,
dividends and interest
income are recognised in
profit or loss.

These are subsequently
measured using effective
interest rate method.
Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and
losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss.
Any gain on derecognition
is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. HAFIIRLBITIE BB B

(Continued) WEXER (&)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (@) BHAFITIRKLBITIEBH
- first effective on 1 January 2018 BBREEHN-R=-ZF—N
(Continued) F—A—HEXRENM &)

B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) B. BB BHEERE I —
BHIA (&)
(i) Classification and measurement of (i) BT A%
financial instruments (Continued) = (%)
The following table summarises the TR AEFBR
original classification and measurement —E-—NF—A—
categories under HKAS 39 and the new ASEVBEEER
classification and measurement categories BERBEERSE
under HKFRS 9 for each class of the 39 RIRB D E NG
Group's financial assets as at 1 January EHARRBERE
2018: I HmE LA FE9
T BE K=
7l
Carrying amount as ~ Carrying amount as
Original classification under New dlassification at 1January 2018 at1January 2018
Financial assets HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9 under HKAS 39 under HKFRS 9
HK$000 HK$'000
REEASTEN REBBNERE
XL RRIBIHR
REEEHHRE L “g-\§-f- ZE-)\§-B-H
HBEE REERETEAE EREEA £ WEREE WEREE
T Thn
Listed equity securities Financial assets at fair value through AtFVTPL 15,809 15,809
profit or loss (note 2(@)B(i)(a))
FAES BATEH ERNIHEE (W 2aB()@) BATESARR
Trade receivables Loans and receivables (note 2(a)B{(i) At amortised cost 8,372 8,372
ERE55E EFRIEYEIA (P 2(2)B(i) R EIA
Deposits and other receivables Loans and receivables (note 2(a)B(i) At amortised cost 52,002 52,002
fee REMEYGE SN RIBMA (R 2(a)B(ii) RSN
Pledged bank deposits Loans and receivables (note2(a)B()) At amortised cost 51,360 51,360
BEREAER EFRIEYEA (M 2(2B() REEIA
Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables (note2(a)B(ii) At amortised cost 5,699 5,699
BERBER EFRIEYEIA (P 2(2)(i) R EIA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018
(Continued)

B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)

(i) Classification and measurement of
financial instruments (Continued)

(a) As of 1 January 2018, certain
investments in listed equity
securities were classified as FVTPL.
The Group intends to hold these
equity instruments for short-term
trading purpose. Under HKFRS 9,
the Group has designated these
equity investments at the date of
initial application as measured at
FVTPL.

(i) Impairment of financial assets

The adoption of HKFRS 9 has changed the
Group’s impairment model by replacing
the HKAS 39 “incurred loss model” to the
“expected credit losses (“ECLs"”) model”.
HKFRS 9 requires the Group to recognised
ECLs for trade receivables, financial assets
at amortised costs, contract assets and
debt investment at FVOCI earlier than
HKAS 39.

2. HWMHEATNEBITERYE

WEER (@)

(a) BRI ET REBTEEY
BHREZEAN-R=-F-N
F-—A—BERER &)

B.

BB BHEERE IS —
HETA (&)

(1)

(i1)

B % T ASHEELE

(&)

R=—ZF—NF—H
—B BETLEHK
ABHZDBBER
FEFAER - K
KERSRIEZS
HETRAEEHE
HRE - RIEFB
MBHEEAE
B AEEERE
RER B H® I E
IRAR B E RIE
R FERT AR

=
=

HBEEENRE

FEME B BRE
HRIF9SRE L T A
SEHNBREERESR -
BB SR ERIE
395 [ B EABER
| B AEHEE
BEER(BHEEE
BEX]) -  FHY
BHREERE9 57
MEAEEURSE
PEEEFTERIZE 39 5
BEGE S EKR
IR~ R BE SRR AR AT
ENMBEEE . A
NEEREAFE
Bl CE 2 RS
MEBKEEBRE
H{EEEE -

HREEREERERAT @ —Z— \FFEH

77



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Under HKFRS 9,loss allowances are
measured on either of the following bases:
(1) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs
that result from possible default events
within the 12 months after the reporting
date; and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

Measurement of ECLs

The Group’s financial assets which are
subject to the new ECLs model include
trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables, pledged
bank deposits and cash and bank
balances. The Group is required to revise
its impairment methodology under HKFRS
9 for these financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses and are measures as the
difference between the contractual cash
flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

Other financial assets are measured as
12-months ECLs. The 12-months ECLs
is the portion of the lifetime ECLs that
results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. However,
when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since origination, the
allowance will be based on the lifetime
ECLs. When determining whether the
credit risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information
and analysis, based on the Group's
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to
be in default when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 75 R A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(ii) Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impact of the ECLs model

As mentioned above, the Group applies
the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECLs which recognises a lifetime
ECLs for trade receivables. To measure the
ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due. Other financial
assets at amortised cost of the Group
includes deposits and other receivables,
loan receivables, pledged bank deposits
and cash and bank balances. Since there
is no increase in credit risk, the loss
allowance recognised during the year
was therefore limited to 12-months ECLs.
Management considers the probability
of default is low on deposits and other
receivables and loan receivables since the
counterparties are in good credit quality
and no historical default is noted. Besides,
management considers the probability of
default is low on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances since they are placed
at the financial institutions with good
credit rating. The Group has assessed
and concluded that impact of ECLs on
trade receivables, deposits and other
receivables, loan receivables and pledged
bank deposits and cash and bank balances
are insignificant as at 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018

(Continued)
B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued)
(iii) Hedge accounting

(iv)

Hedge accounting under HKFRS 9 has no
impact on the Group as the Group does
not apply hedge accounting in its hedging
relationships.

Transition

The Group has applied the transitional
provision in HKFRS 9 such that HKFRS
9 was generally adopted without
restating comparative information. The
reclassifications and the adjustments
arising from the new ECLs rules, if any, are
therefore not reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, but are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position on 1 January 2018. This mean
that differences in the carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
resulting from the adoption of HKFRS
9 are recognised in accumulated losses
and reserves as at 1 January 2018.
Accordingly, the information presented
for 2017 does not reflect the requirements
of HKFRS 9 but rather those of HKAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
501 75 S A B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. HAFIIRLBITIE BB B

(Continued) WEXER (&)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (a) AT LEBITETAE
- first effective on 1 January 2018 BBREEHN-R=-ZF—N
(Continued) F—A—HEXRENM &)

B. HKFRS 9 - Financial Instruments (Continued) B. BB EIREERE 9 —
BT A (&)

(iv) Transition (Continued)

The assessments of the determination
of the business model within which a
financial asset is held, have been made on
the basis of the facts and circumstances
that existed at the date of initial
application of HKFRS 9.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

HKFRS 15 supersedes HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts, HKAS 18 Revenue and related
interpretations. HKFRS 15 has established a five-
steps model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15,
revenue is recognised at the amount that reflects
the consideration to which an entity expects to
be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. Based on the assessment,
the adoption of HKFRS 15 has no significant
impact on the Group's revenue recognition of sale
of crude oil and agency income and the revenue
recognition of interest income and rental income
are not within the scope of HKFRS 15.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 15 using
cumulative effect method without practical
expedients. The Group has recognised the
cumulative effect of initially applying HKFRS
15 as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at the date of initial
application (that is, 1 January 2018). As a result,
the financial information presented for 2017 is
not restated.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HHZ =T — \F+=A=+—HILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. BRAFITIRNEBIEBHE

(Continued) WMEXER (&)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs (a) ERAWFETRRETE R
— first effective on 1 January 2018 BBREEN-R=2—N
(Continued) F—A—BBERER @A)

C. HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with C BEEYBHEERES
Customers (Continued) H-REEFEHZHKA
(#)
Details of the new significant accounting policies HASBERIBEmERREE
and the nature of the changes to previous A EESFTECR RBE
accounting policies in relation to the Group's SETBEREE) 2 EEFIFE
various goods and services are set out below: FanR
Notes Product/service Nature of the goods or services, satisfaction of performance obligations and payment Nature of change in accounting policy
terms and impact on 1 January 2018
Wi ER/BE ERdARE - ERERARERNRAIME “E-N\5-R-REHHEED
LHERZE

(@  Saleof crude oil  Customer obtains control of crude oil when the crude oil is delivered to and have been accepted. HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
Revenue is thus recognised from the Group’s share of income (including cost recovery o, investment  impact on the Group’s accounting policies.
recovery oil and share oil) according to the terms stipulated in the contract, details of which are set out
in note 36, upon when the customer accepted the crude oil. There is generally only one performance
obligation. Invoices are usually payable within 30 days. In the comparative period, revenue from sale
of crude oil is recognised on its transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which was taken as at the
time of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Right of retum
Customer has no right of return under the contract terms.

Volume rebate
There is no rebate under the contract terms.
() HERM BEROBIRE  BPRRARARERDRRERAEHE - Al MANBTRANEAEE BANBREERE PRUEHAEEN
PEXRR (BERERARRKERARRREZRE)  FEANHE30 BORE-RRA— EHEBRELEATE
B BZEEN0ANER - SR - HERBOUERFERENERREEEVERT - IRR
[TEFAEEERF IR«

RiEE
RERNOE EPRENERS -
HEEA
RERHK  LEEREN-

(b)  Insurance Agency income is recognised at point in time as contracts are signed with the ultimate customers. ~ HKFRS 15 did not result in significant
brokerage Invoices for brokerage service usually payable within 30 days. impact on the Group's accounting policies
service

b) FRELHEE REGARERNEPEITSORERRED  SERBEZAT0RARN « BENBREERS 1SR HAEE S ]

LU ENNE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018
(Continued)

C. HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (Continued)

Upon the adoption of the HKFRS 15, if there is
any satisfied performance obligation but where
the Group does not have an unconditional right
to consideration, the Group should recognise a
contract asset. No contract asset and contract
liabilities is recognised upon transition and at the
end of the reporting period.

D. Amendments HKFRS 15 — Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (Clarifications to
HKFRS 15)

The amendments to HKFRS 15 included
clarifications on identification of performance
obligations; application of principal versus agent;
licenses of intellectual property; and transition
requirements.

The adoption of these amendments has no impact
on the financial statements as the Group had not
previously adopted HKFRS 15 and took up the
clarifications in this, its first, year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs

(Continued)

(a)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs
- first effective on 1 January 2018
(Continued)

E.

Amendments to HKAS 40, Investment
Property — Transfers of Investment Property

The amendments clarify that to transfer to or
from investment properties there must be a
change in use and provides guidance on making
this determination. The clarification states that a
change of use will occur when a property meets,
or ceases to meet, the definition of investment
property and there is supporting evidence that a
change has occurred.

The adoption of these amendments has no
impact on the financial statements as the clarified
treatment is consistent with the manner in which
the Group has previously assessed transfers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. HAFIIRLBITIE BB
(Continued) WEXER (&)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been (b) CEMEEKERZHE

issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group'’s current intention is to
apply these changes on the date they become effective.

HKFRS 16 - Leases

This is effective for accounting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2019. HKFRS 16, which upon the effective
date will supersede HKAS 17 “ Leases “
interpretations, introduces a single lessee accounting
model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and
liabilities for all leases with a term of more 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. Specifically,

and related

under HKFRS 16, a lessee is required to recognise a
right-of-use asset representing its right to use the
underlying leased asset and a lease liability representing
its obligation to make lease payments. Accordingly, a
lessee should recognise depreciation of the right-of use
asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies
cash repayments of the lease liability into a principal
portion and an interest portion and presents them in
the statement of cash flows. Also, the right-of-use asset
and the lease liability are initially measured on a present
value basis. The measurement includes non-cancellable
lease payments and also includes payments to be made
in optional periods if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise an option to extend the lease, or to exercise an
option to terminate the lease. This accounting treatment
is significantly different from the lessee accounting for
leases that are classified as operating leases under the
predecessor standard, HKAS 17.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

Lessees will be also required to re-measure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g. a
change in lease term, a change in future lease payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to
determine those payments). The lessee will generally
recognise the amount of the re-measurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16
substantially carries forward the lessor accounting
requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues
to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently.

The Group will elect to use the exemptions proposed
by the standard on lease contracts for which the lease
terms ends within 12 months as of the date of initial
application, and lease contracts for which the underlying
assets is of low value.

Transition of HKFRS 16

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of approximately
HK$20,347,000 (note 41(b)). Of these commitments, an
amount of approximately HK$621,000 relates to short-
term leases which will be recognised on straight-line
method as an expense in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. HAFIIRLBITIE BB

(Continued) WEXER (&)
(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have (b) CEMEEKERZHE
been issued but are not yet effective BEETEBMEREE

(Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

Transition of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

During the year, the Group has performed a detailed
impact assessment of HKFRS 16. In summary of the
impact of the adoption HKFRS 16, based on the operating
lease commitment as at 31 December 2018, is expected
to be, as follows:

Impact on consolidated statement of financial position
(increase/(decrease)) for the year ending 31 December

Bl &)

BB B HEERIE 167 —HE ()
BB E2ERE 16552 )% ()

FA - AEBEHTEWBHREE
I 165 ETRANTZERNH - 1R
B-ZE-\F+ZA=1T—HHK
EHEAE  RNBEEUBREE
A 16T ETRRBENT

HRBE-FT-NE+=A=+—
AEEGANBRARHTE

2019: mn/Crid))
2019
HK$'000
—E-hF
FBx

Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BEREE(EREEE)

(right-of-use assets) 11,354
Liabilities =E
Lease liabilities HEARE 12,549
Other payables H th FE < 5RIE (877)
Net impact on equity ERVETE (318)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs 2. BRAFITIRNEBIIEBHE

(Continued) WEXER (@)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have (b) EEMEEKRERZHE
been issued but are not yet effective REETEBMIEHREE
(Continued) Al &)

HKFRS 16 - Leases (Continued) BB BIREERE 1659 —H & ()
Transition of HKFRS 16 (Continued) BRI &R 16 552 )% ()
Impact on consolidated income statement (increase/ HEBE-_Z—NE+-_A=+—
(decrease)) for the year ending 31 December 2019: BIEFEFEHZARARNTE(E
m/Crd))

2019

HK$'000

—E-hEF

FET

Lease-related depreciation HERETE 6,802

Operating lease expenses e ERE (7.345)

Operating profit B g A 543

Finance costs BETE B 861

Net impact of results for the year HRFEXEENTEE (318)
As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group's HE-_ZT-NFT+ZA=1+—H81t
operating profit and finance costs will increase for the FE - ARFENEET BHREER
year ending 31 December 2019. This is due to the change 1657 - NGB S E T & BT
in the accounting for expenses of leases that were AN o BTN B ER X g5
reclassified as operating lease under HKAS 17. BRESHOEAEESERE 17

SR NEEMEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

This interpretation is effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The interpretation
supports the requirements of HKAS 12, Income Taxes,
by providing guidance over how to reflect the effects of
uncertainty in accounting for income taxes.

Under the interpretation, the entity shall determine
whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment
separately or together based on which approach better
predicts the resolution of the uncertainty. The entity shall
also assume the tax authority will examine amounts that
it has a right to examine and have full knowledge of all
related information when making those examinations. If
the entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with its
tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable, then
the uncertainty in the determination of tax is reflected
using either the “most likely amount” or the “expected
value” approach, whichever better predicts the resolution
of the uncertainty.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKFRS 11, Joint Arrangements

These amendments are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendments
issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKFRS 11
which clarify that when a party that participates in, but
does not have joint control of, a joint operation which is
a business and subsequently obtains joint control of the
joint operation, the previously held equity interest should
not be remeasured to its acquisition date fair value.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

These amendments are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendments
issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they
are currently unclear. They include amendments to
HKAS 12 which clarify that all income tax consequences
of dividends are recognised consistently with the
transactions that generated the distributable profits,
either in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle -
Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

These amendments are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019. The amendments
issued under the annual improvements process make
small, non-urgent changes to standards where they are
currently unclear. They include amendments to HKAS
23 which clarifies that a borrowing made specifically to
obtain a qualifying asset which remains outstanding after
the related qualifying asset is ready for its intended use
or sale would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a Business

These amendments are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Amendments
to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance on
the definition of a business. The amendments clarify
that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an
input and a substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create output. A business can
exist without including all of the inputs and processes
needed to create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable
of acquiring the business and continue to produce
outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.
The amendments have also narrowed the definition
of outputs to focus on goods or services provided to
customers, investment income or other income from
ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process
is substantive and introduce an optional fair value
concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a
business.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

2. ADOPTION OF NEW OR AMENDED HKFRSs
(Continued)

(b)

New or amended HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
Material

These amendments are effective for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition of material.
The new definition states that information is material if
omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis
of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude
of information. A misstatement of information is material
if it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions
made by the primary users.

Save as disclose in the foregoing paragraphs about the
impact of HKFRS 16 to the Group’s financial statements,
the directors of the Company have also performed an
preliminary assessment on other new standards and
amendments, and have concluded on a preliminary basis
that other new standards and amendments would have
no significant impact on the Group’s financial statements
in subsequent years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of preparation

The significant accounting policies that have been used
in the preparation of these financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared under
historical cost convention, except for investment
properties and financial assets at FVTPL, which are
measured at fair value. The measurement bases are fully
described in the accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in the preparation of the financial
statements. Although these estimates are based on
management’s best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately differ
from those estimates. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements,
are disclosed in note 4.

(i) Oil production sharing contract (the
“Songliao Contract”)

In 2010, the Group completed the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in China International
Energy Investments (Hong Kong) Limited
(“China International Energy”) which holds the
oil production sharing contract entered into
between China Era Energy Power Investment
Limited (“China Era”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of China International Energy, and a state-
owned enterprise engaged in oil exploration
industry, namely China Petroleum Corporation
(to be referred as the “State-owned Enterprise”
throughout the notes to the consolidated
financial statements ) on 13 August 2007 (the
“Songliao Contract”) from the vendor, Greater
China Limited (“Greater China"), details of which
are set out in note 36. China International Energy
was wholly owned by an individual (“Mr. A”) at
the time of obtaining the Songliao Contract.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Oil production sharing contract (the
“Songliao Contract”) (Continued)

In 2015, the directors of the Company was
informed that Mr. A was formally charged by
prosecution authorities in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") for illegal operation (the
“Charge”), possibly involved allegations about
improper conduct in obtaining of the Songliao
Contract.

As soon as the directors of the Company found
the Charge, the Group commenced legal
proceedings in the Cayman Islands against various
parties including Mr. A, Greater China, Mr. Li
Weijun (Greater China’s warrantor) and Giant
Crystal Limited (“Giant Crystal”) (which was
nominated by Greater China as the allottee of
the promissory notes, consideration shares and
convertible bonds for the consideration of the
Songliao Contract) (the “Defendants”) on the
basis that (a) the Greater China’s warranties and/
or representations given in the acquisition were
false and misleading and knowing that the Group
entered into the acquisition agreement in reliance
thereon; and (b) the Defendants of the litigation
wrongly conspired and combined together to
defraud the Group to pay the consideration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Oil production sharing contract (the
“Songliao Contract”) (Continued)

In the litigation, the Group sought (1) a
declaration that they are entitled to validly rescind
the acquisition agreement; (2) an order that the
consideration be repaid, a declaration that the
promissory notes and convertible bonds are at
all material times null and void and of no legal
effect; (3) a declaration that Giant Crystal held
and continue to hold the consideration shares
and any shares issued upon exercise of the
convertible bonds on trust for the Company; (4)
an injunction against all Defendants that they
be restrained from disposing of, encumbering
or otherwise dealing with or diminishing the
value of, and/or exercising any rights or powers
(including but not limited to voting rights in
general and/or extraordinary meeting(s) in respect
of, and/or entering into any agreement to effect
any transaction in relation to, the consideration
shares and the converted shares; (5) an injunction
against all Defendants from completing and/or
procuring the conversion and/or transferring of
the convertible bonds; (6) damages for fraud and/
or deceit; and (7) an order that the Defendants
compensate the Group in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—F— \F+=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Oil production sharing contract (the
“Songliao Contract”) (Continued)

In December 2017, the Group received a legal
letter from the representative lawyer of Mr. A
that the Charge was acquitted after the Municipal
Court had issued the first adjudication of the
Charge. As Mr. A was not found guilty in respect
of the Charge, the Songliao Contract should
continue to be valid to the Group and the Group
is able to carry out business relating to the oil
production as stipulated under the Songliao
Contract without the questioning of its validity.
On that basis, after taking the legal advice from
the Company’s legal advisers, on 4 January 2018,
the Company reached a settlement with the
Defendants pursuant to which the Company will
apply to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands
(the “Cayman Court”) for discontinuance of the
litigation, as a result of which the injunction order
and the Company’s undertaking are expected to
be discharged in the foreseeable future such that
the Defendants should no longer be restrained
from disposing of, encumbering or otherwise
dealing with or diminishing the value of, and/
or exercising any rights or powers (including
but not limited to voting rights in general and/
or extraordinary meeting(s) in respect of, and/
or entering into any agreement to effect any
transaction in relation to, the consideration
shares and the converted shares). In May 2018, a
consent order was granted by the Cayman Court
regarding the discontinuation of the litigation and
the discharge of the injunction order.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Oil production sharing contract (the “Songliao
Contract”) (Continued)

Included in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018 are
property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$1,237,000 (2017: HK$6,977,000) and
HK$154,141,000 (2017: HK$217,769,000)
respectively. Property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets are collectively referred to as
the “Oil Production Assets”. The Oil Production
Assets relate to the operation of oil production
business, pursuant to the Songliao Contract,
entered into with the State-owned Enterprise to
develop and produce crude oil in Liangjing Block
on Songliao Basin in Jilin, the PRC, details of
which are set out in note 36.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(i)

Oil production sharing contract (the
“Songliao Contract”) (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, the directors of the
Company estimated the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the Qil
Production Assets belong (the “Qil Production
CGU"). As the carrying amounts of the Oil
Production CGU exceeded its recoverable
amount, impairment losses of approximately
HK$62,801,000 (2017:HK$170,710,000) and
HK$526,000 (2017: HK$5,469,000) were
recognised for the year ended 31 December 2018
on intangible assets and property, plant and
equipment respectively.

In estimating the recoverable amount of Qil
Production CGU, having taken account of the
legal letter from Mr. A’s representative lawyer in
December 2017, the directors of the Company
consider that the Songliao Contract continues
valid, thus the Group’s oil production business will
continue in operation throughout the Songliao
Contract period and executed as planned since
there is no longer any charge by any prosecution
authority that would lead to the Stated-owned
Enterprise to impose any potential claim or to
question the validity of the Songliao Contract
since the adjudication of the Charge.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a going concern basis which
notwithstanding that (i) the Group incurred a
loss of HK$73,847,000 (2017: HK$201,430,000)
during the year; (ii) as at 31 December 2018,
the Group had net current liabilities of
HK$228,926,000 (2017: HK$1,075,777,000);
(iii) as at 31 December 2018, included in
current liabilities were the total outstanding
construction costs of HK$344,955,000 (2017:
HK$484,044,000), that are repayable within one
year after the reporting date, in which amounts
of HK$307,223,000(2017:HK$403,946,000
) and HK$37,732,000 (2017: HK$80,098,000)
were recognised under other payables (note
26) and other borrowings (note 29) respectively
and capital commitments for construction costs
were HK$2,452,000 (2017: HK$3,078,000) (note
42); and (iv) as at 31 December 2018, included
in current liabilities were other borrowings of
HK$42,795,000 (2017: HK$30,054,000) that
have been overdue for repayments. These
conditions indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubts about the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore, that it may be unable to realise its
assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business. The directors of the Company
have prepared the consolidated financial
statements based on a going concern on the
assumptions and measures that:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii) Going concern basis (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsequent to the reporting date,
on 28 February 2019, the Group has
successfully obtained a new long-term
credit facility from a financial institution
in the PRC amounted to RMB150,000,000
(approximately HK$171,000,000) to
repay the outstanding construction costs
and bank and other borrowings that are
required to repay within one year after
the reporting date, in which an amount
of RMB90,000,000 (approximately
HK$102,600,000) is expected to be
drawdown in the first quarter of 2019,
if necessary, and repayable in February
2022. On 8 March 2019, the Group
has further obtained another new
long-term credit facility from another
financial institution in the PRC amounted
to RMB300,000,000 (approximately
HK$342,000,000), with a credit period of
36 months;

In light of the above new credit facilities,
the Group will be able to repay the
outstanding construction costs amounting
to HK$232,903,000 in the coming twelve
months after the reporting period. For the
remaining balances of total construction
costs, based on the good relationship
with the contractors, it is assumed that
the contractors will extend the repayment
dates over twelve months after 31
December 2018;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii) Going concern basis (Continued)

(c)

The directors of the Company are of the
view that the Qil and Liquefied Chemical
Terminal segment since fully operated
in May 2018, is able to contribute and
generate a significant and consistent
operating cash inflow to the Group in
the coming twelve months after the
reporting date which mainly derived from
its rental income receipt amounting to
RMB125,000,000 before value-added
tax (approximately HK$142,500,000) as
stipulated in the lease agreement;

The directors of the Company are of the
view that the loan receivables amounted to
HK$72,098,000 (note 23) will be recovered
without default in the coming twelve
months after the reporting date under the
loan agreements and the management
assessment of its recoverability; and
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii) Going concern basis (Continued)

(e)

During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Company paid an amount
of RMB100,000,000 (approximately
HK$114,000,000) as refundable deposits
under the terms of memorandum of
understanding, which entered between
the Company and the potential vendors,
pursuant to which the Company proposed
to invest in not less than 45% issued
shares in a target company. The directors
of the Company are of the view that
the investment is still under preliminary
negotiation and uncertain of the
completion of the transaction with the
potential vendors before the lapse date of
the memorandum of understanding (i.e.
30 April 2019), therefore, the balance
will be recovered in the coming twelve
months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(ii)

Going concern basis (Continued)

The directors of the Company have reviewed
the Group's cash flow projections prepared by
management. The cash flow projections cover a
period of not less than twelve months from 31
December 2018. After taking into account the
above assumptions and measures, the directors
of the Company consider that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its
operations and to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within twelve months
from 31 December 2018 and believe that the
Group will continue as a going concern and
consequently have prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to continue in
business as a going concern, adjustments would
have to be made in the consolidated financial
statements to reduce the values of the assets
to their estimated realisable values, to provide
for any further liabilities which may arise and
to reclassify non-current assets and liabilities as
current assets and liabilities respectively. The
effects of these adjustments have not been
reflected in the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai Forest
Source Mining Industry Developing Company
Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner Mongolia
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“IMFSMI”) and de-
consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Ms Leung Lai Ching (“Ms Leung”)’s legal status as
director and legal representative in QHFSMI and
IMFSMI remained unchanged in the absence of
her cooperation

Ms Leung was a director and legal representative
of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI. In September 2009,
the sole shareholder of QHFSMI and IMFSMI (i.e. a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) resolved
to remove Ms Leung’s capacity as director and
legal representative of both QHFSMI and IMFSMI
with immediate effect. However, the respective
members of the board of directors and legal
representative of QHFSMI and IMFSMI were not
officially changed up to the date of authorisation
for issue of the Group’s financial statements as
Ms Leung, being the legal representative, was not
cooperative and failed to provide the requested
documents and corporate seals.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and de-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

Transfer of exploration licence without the
Company'’s knowledge, consent or approval

The Group acquired QHFSMI from Ms Leung in
2007. QHFSMI was the holder of an exploration
licence, which conferred QHFSMI the rights
to conduct exploration work for the mineral
resources in the titanium mine at Xiao Hong
Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC. In 2010, the
board of directors of the Company discovered
that the exploration licence held by QHFSMI was
transferred to a company known as W5 & /NAL
ILRFRIEZEER A A (in English, for identification
purpose only, Inner Mongolia Xiao Hong Shan
Yuen Xian Mining Industry Company Limited)
("Yuen Xian Company”) at a consideration of
RMB8,000,000 (the “Change of Exploration Right
Agreement”) without the Company’s knowledge,
consent or approval. Ms Leung is one of the
directors and the legal representative of Yuen
Xian Company. Without the exploration licence,
QHFSMI no longer had the rights to, among
other things, carry out exploration of the mineral
resources of the titanium mine, access to the
titanium mine and neighbouring areas and has
no priority in obtaining the mining rights of the
titanium mine.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and de-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

Final decision on the Change of Exploration Right
Agreement

As soon as the Group had discovered the loss
of QHFSMI’'s exploration licence, the Group
commenced the legal proceedings against Ms
Leung for getting back the exploration licence.
In March 2016, the Company received the final
decision letter from the Qinghai Procuratorate
that the Change of Exploration Right Agreement
was invalid. As Yuen Xian Company had already
obtained the mining licence on the titanium mine
at Xiao Hong Shan in Inner Mongolia, the PRC,
the Group is now seeking for the legal advices to
resolve this matter.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a) Basis of preparation (Continued)

(iii)

Loss of controls over assets of Qinghai
Forest Source Mining Industry Developing
Company Limited (“QHFSMI”) and Inner
Mongolia Forest Source Mining Industry
Developing Company Limited (“IMFSMI")
and de-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI
(Continued)

De-consolidating QHFSMI and IMFSMI

Given that (i) the discovery of the loss of
significant assets of QHFSMI; (ii) Ms Leung’s legal
status as director and legal representative in
QHFSMI and IMFSMI remained unchanged; and
(iii) the Group was unable to obtain the financial
information of QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the directors
of the Company considered that the Group had
no power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI, exposure,
or rights, to variable returns from QHFSMI and
IMFSMI and the ability to use its power to affect
those variable returns. The Group appointed the
PRC lawyers to handle the matters in regaining
its controlling power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the aforesaid legal proceedings have no material
impact on the financial position and operations of
the Group as the Group is still in the process of
regaining the controlling power over QHFSMI and
IMFSMI which had already been de-consolidated
since 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the dates of acquisition or up to the
dates of disposal, as appropriate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line
with those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition
is measured at the aggregate of the acquisition-date
fair value of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are
principally measured at acquisition-date fair value. The
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree
is re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs incurred
are expensed unless they are incurred in issuing equity
instruments in which case the costs are deducted from
equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(c)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, profit or
loss on disposal is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
received and the fair value of any retained interest and
(ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
are accounted for in the same manner as would be
required if the relevant assets or liabilities were disposed
of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount of non-
controlling interests that represent present ownership
interests in the subsidiary is the amount of those interests
at initial recognition plus non-controlling interests’ share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to non-controlling interests even if
this results in non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are present:
power over the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to use its power
to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed
whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there
may be a change in any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—F— \F+=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) Accounting for production sharing
contracts

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement where there is
a contractual arrangement that confers joint control over
the relevant activities of the arrangement to the Group
and at least one other party. Joint control is assessed
under the same principles as control over subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint arrangements as

either:

(i) Joint ventures: where the Group has rights to only
the net assets of the joint arrangement; or

(i) Joint operations: where the Group has both the

rights to assets and obligations for the liabilities of
the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in joint
arrangements, the Group considers:

(i) The structure of the joint arrangement;

(ii) The legal form of joint arrangements structured
through a separate vehicle;

(iii) The contractual terms of the joint arrangement
agreement; and

(iv) Any other facts and circumstances (including any
other contractual arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint operations
by recognising its share of assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses in accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
At the reporting date, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the reporting
date retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HKS.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$ at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and expenses
have been converted into HK$ at the exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the exchange
rates do not fluctuate significantly. Any differences
arising from this procedure have been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in the
exchange reserve in equity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e)

(f)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
on or after 1 January 2005 are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign operation and translated at
the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of reporting
period. Exchange differences arising are recognised in the
foreign exchange reserve.

When a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are reclassified from equity to profit or loss as
part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill

Where the fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities
exceed the aggregate of the fair value of consideration
paid, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree,
the excess is recognised in profit or loss on the acquisition
date, after re-assessment.

Goodwill is measured at cost less impairment losses. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill arising from
an acquisition is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit is
the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets. A cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing its carrying
amount with its recoverable amount (see note 3(v)), and
whenever there is an indication that the unit may be
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Goodwill (Continued)

For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a financial year,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment before the end of
that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of
the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit
first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount to each asset in the
unit. However, the loss allocated to each asset will not
reduce the individual asset’s carrying amount to below its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or its value-
in-use (if determinable), whichever is the higher. Any
impairment loss for goodwill is recognised in profit or loss
and is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment (other than construction
in progress (“CIP")) are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an asset comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.

Other than oil properties, depreciation is provided to
write off the cost less their estimated residual values, if
any, over their estimated useful lives, using straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Buildings The shorter of lease
terms and 29 years
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements,
furniture, office equipment

10 to 15 years
3 to 10 years

and motor vehicles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Depreciation on oil properties is provided to write off the
cost of oil properties using unit of production method
utilising only proved developed oil reserves as the
depletion base.

The assets’ estimated useful lives, depreciation methods
and estimated residual values are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance, are charged to
profit or loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

CIP represents property, plant and equipment under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs
incurred during the periods of construction, installation
and testing. CIP is reclassified to the appropriate category
of property, plant and equipment and depreciation
commences when the construction work is completed
and the asset is ready for use.

An asset is written down to its recoverable amount if
its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s estimated
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(h)

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income or for capital appreciation or for both but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Such properties are measures
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of
the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are recognised in the profit or loss
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the profit or loss in
the year of the retirement or disposal.

When the Group holds a property interest under an
operating lease to earn rental income or for capital
appreciation, or for both purpose, the interest is classified
and accounted for as an investment property on a
property-by-property basis. Any such property interest
which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease
(see note 3(l)), and the same accounting policies are
applied to that interest as are applied to other investment
properties leased under finance leases. Lease payments
are accounted for as described in note 3(l).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

()]

(k)

Prepaid land lease payments

Upfront payments made to acquire land held under
an operating lease are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation
is calculated on straight-line method over the term of
lease/right of use except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the time pattern of benefits to be
derived by the Group from use of the land.

Sea area use rights

Upfront payments made to acquire the maritime space
held under an operating lease are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Sea area use rights are amortised on straight-line method
over the terms of the right of use.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially
recognised at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is fair value at the date
of acquisition. Subsequently, intangible assets with
finite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses. Amortisation is
charged in other operating expenses in profit or loss and
is provided as follows:

- Exploration and evaluation assets under oil
production business is amortised on unit of
production method.

- Interests in oil production sharing contracts under
oil production business is amortised on unit of
production method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(1

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use
a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such
a determination is made based on an evaluation of
the substance of the arrangement and is regardless of
whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group
are classified as operating leases with the following
exceptions:

- property held under operating leases that would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property is classified as investment property on
a property-by-property basis and, if classified as
investment property, is accounted for as if held
under a finance lease (see note 3(h)); and

- land held for own use under an operating lease,
the fair value of which cannot be measured
separately from the fair value of a building
situated thereon at the inception of the lease, is
accounted for as being held under a finance lease,
unless the building is also clearly held under an
operating lease. For these purposes, the inception
of the lease is the time that the lease was first
entered into by the Group, or taken over from the
previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

V)

Leases (Continued)

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments (the “Initial Value”), of such
assets are included in property, plant and equipment and
the corresponding liabilities, net of finance lease charges,
are recorded as finance lease liabilities.

Subsequent accounting for assets held under finance
leases corresponds to those applied to comparable
acquired assets. The corresponding finance lease liability
is reduced by lease payments less finance lease charges.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the
same as owned assets

A sale and leaseback transaction involves the sale of an
asset and the leasing back of the same asset. The lease
payment and the sale price are usually interdependent
because they are negotiated as a package. If a sale and
leaseback transaction results in a finance lease, the
previous carrying value is left unchanged, with the sales
proceeds being shown as a liability.

Operating lease charges as the lessee

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as
operating lease. Where the Group has the right to use
of assets held under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to profit or loss using
straight-line method over the lease terms except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the time
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period which they are incurred.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

() Leases (Continued)

Operating lease charges as the lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the lease term.

(m) (A) Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018)

(i) Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (A)

(i)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There is one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal and
interest are measured at amortised cost. These are
subsequently measured using effective interest
rate method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (A)

(i)

(ii)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
the investment’s fair value in other comprehensive
income. This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments at FVOCI
are measured at fair value. Dividend income are
recognised in profit or loss unless the dividend
income clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investments. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income and are not reclassified to profit or loss.
All other equity instruments are classified as
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for ECLs
on trade receivables and other financial assets
measured at amortised cost. ECLs are measures
on the basis as described in full details in note 2(a)
B(ii).

Interest income on credit impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ =%

3.

—NF+ZR=+—RHILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (A)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
costs are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
bills and other payables, accruals, amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders, bank and
other borrowings and finance lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds issued by the Group that
contain both the liability and conversion option
components are classified separately into their
respective items on initial recognition. Conversion
option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity
instruments is classified as an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (A)

(iv)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest of similar non-convertible debts.
The difference between the proceeds of the
issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value
assigned to the liability component, representing
the conversion option for the holder to convert
the bonds into equity, is included in equity
(convertible bonds equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of
the convertible bonds is carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method. The equity
component, represented by the option to convert
the liability component into ordinary shares of the
Company, will remain in convertible bonds equity
reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible
bonds equity reserve will be transferred to share
capital and share premium. Where the option
remains unexercised at the expiry dates, the
balance stated in convertible loan notes equity
reserve will be released to the accumulated losses.
No gain or loss is recognised upon conversion or
expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the
convertible bonds are allocated to the liability and
equity components in proportion to the allocation
of the proceeds. Transaction costs relating to
the equity component are charged directly to
equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability
component are included in the carrying amount of
the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible bonds using effective interest
method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (A)

(v)

(vi)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Effective interest method

This is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest expense
over the relevant period. Effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the expected
life of the financial asset or liability, or where
appropriate, a shorter period.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at their
fair value on the date the financial liability or
part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B) Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017)

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively, but
has elected not to restate comparative information.
Accordingly, the comparative financial information
provided continues to be accounted for in accordance
with the Group's previous accounting policy.

(i) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified as loans
and receivables and financial assets at FVTPL.
Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending on
the purpose for which the financial assets were
acquired and where allowed and appropriate, re-
evaluates this designation at every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. Regular
way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade date. When financial assets
are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

De-recognition of financial assets occurs when the
rights to receive cash flows from the investments
expire or are transferred and substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. These are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using
effective interest method, less any impairment
loss. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B)

(i)

(i)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL include financial assets
held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Subsequent to
initial recognition, financial assets at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

Impairment loss on financial assets

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment. Financial
assets are impaired if there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events
that has occurred after the initial recognition
of the assets and that event has an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of
impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the
debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B)

(ii)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

- granting concession to a debtor because
of debtor’s financial difficulty; or

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows from the group of financial
assets. Such observable data includes but not
limited to adverse changes in the payment status
of debtors in the group and, national or local
economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the assets in the group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables has been incurred,
the amount of loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s
original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). The
amount of loss is recognised in profit or loss of the
period in which the impairment occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B)

(ii)

(iii)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
extent that it does not result in a carrying
amount of the financial asset exceeding what
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date
the impairment is reversed. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in profit or loss of the period
in which the reversal occurs.

Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include bills
and other payables, accruals, bank and other
borrowings, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders, finance lease liabilities and
convertible bonds.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All interest related charges
are recognised in accordance with the Group'’s
accounting policy for borrowing costs (see note
3(w)).

A financial liability is de-recognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss.

Bills and other payables, accruals and amounts
due to non-controlling shareholders

These are recognised initially at their fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted to
share capital at the option of the holder, where
the number of shares that would be issued on
conversion and the value of the consideration that
would be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability and an equity
component.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B ERARMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B)

(iv)

Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

Convertible bonds (Continued)

Convertible bonds that contain both financial
liability and equity components are classified
separately into respective liability and equity
components on initial recognition. On initial
recognition, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using the prevailing
market interest rate for similar non-convertible
debts. The difference between the proceeds
of the issue of the convertible bonds and the
fair value assigned to the liability component,
representing the call option for conversion of
the bonds into equity, is included in equity as
convertible bond equity reserve.

Liability component is subsequently carried at
amortised cost using effective interest method
whilst equity component will remain in equity
until conversion or redemption of the bonds.

When the bonds are converted, the convertible
bond equity reserve and the carrying value of the
liability component at the time of conversion are
transferred to share capital and share premium
as the consideration for the shares issued. If the
bonds are redeemed, the convertible bond equity
reserve is released directly to accumulated losses.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of
the convertible loan notes are allocated to the
liability and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of the proceeds. Transaction costs
relating to the equity component are charged
directly to equity. Transaction costs relating to the
liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over
the period of the convertible loan notes using the
effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(m) (B) Financial instruments (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017) (Continued)

(v) Borrowings

These are recognised initially at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost;
any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities
unless the Group has an unconditional right to
defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting date.

(vi)  Finance lease liabilities

Finance lease liabilities are measured at initial
value less the capital element of lease repayments
(see note 3(1)).

(n) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of coal was determined using
weighted average method. All other cost was determined
using first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling prices in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the statement
of cash flows presentation, cash and cash equivalents
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the
issue of shares are deducted from share premium (net
of any related income tax benefit) to the extent they
are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

(A) Revenue recognition (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018)

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction
of any trade discounts.

(p)

(a)

BeEkBEEEEER

AekREEFEERRBRBITER
RFBEAE  RITEMERARRE
FNEAEA=1E A AT BRTRER 5
BROCARBEREEEDRER
TRZERBIEERIRE - 27
AemnERms B kREF
HEBREEREEABKAEE
R ERAERID ZRITEX °

e

BARRBROBERESER - BRAIZ
BERTRO < EEEE - HEE) 3
TR AR SRR D5
BB ERBBAEHNE)
B MHAREREARERXHMmE
HEZIBEBRA o

A) MARRB(BE=R
—N\F—-—A—HEE
Rz a5t lE)

KA EP A KU ST 7 an 2R TS
MERIREETEPRER %2
R R AL B IR R E
mEA R ERESHRE (TR
REEF=ZDRBRHEHE) - WET
BREEERKEMBEER - LLEM
BRAEME ST -

HREEREERERAT @ —Z— \FFEHK

135



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

BEARSFBEREM &)

(A) Revenue recognition (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws that
apply to the contract, control of the goods or service may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control
of the goods or service is transferred over time if the
Group's performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amounts receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. For contracts where
the period between the payment and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

136 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018

(q)

A BHARB(BEZF
—N\F—-—A—REE
RZEsTHE) &)

5 on SRS RO P R R — B
NERX—BHRHHER - BURREH
RS EE RN A HEERRE
AR B ERELBIER TS T 5K
- Bl RIS HIE T — B
B fE) QB

= RE2EHE - MEFTRE
FUERIAEFES BAR & -

= AREBEARAIZRB/CH
BEPEHNEE X

- WEEFHAEEEERA
BWEE  BAREE&H
HITHRAMARREAES
E R BEAIER D HIFIA

11 55 A B AR 75 ) 428 Il R A — BB
MEB - RIS TIRBEA S HIRE
R2ETKBITROEENEERE
R B WREREPERFSEMRK
IR 795 42 151 2 RO B T R R RS

EANBEERERDLAEF M
HE—FREEEmAMBTETR
BEMEANGER - WARBKFES
iz fE e BIEF 2 - U EARE
BERAE - BRARAXBRAEE
HEPsBZBIMERSTR
BR o L% PN R BB A GE B
KRR ZBME S —FRARNE
% RBEEREBFBHREEL
FSRATRENE - TEHREX
BERDHFE T IAHE o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(A) Revenue recognition (accounting
policies applied from 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Sale of crude oil

Customer obtains control of crude oil when the crude oil
is delivered to and have been accepted. Revenue is thus
recognised from the Group’s share of income (including
cost recovery oil, investment recovery oil and share
oil) according to the terms stipulated in the contract,
details of which are set out in note 36, upon when the
customer accepted the crude oil. There is generally only
one performance obligation. Invoices are usually payable
within 30 days.

Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the respective lease terms.

Agency income

Agency income is recognised at point in time as contracts
are signed with the ultimate customers. Invoices for
brokerage service are usually payable within 30 days.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using effective interest
method. When a loan receivable is impaired, the Group
reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount,
being the estimated future cash flow discounted at
the original effective interest rate of the instrument,
and continues unwinding the discount as interest
income. Interest income on impaired loan receivables is
recognised using original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q)

(r)

(B) Revenue recognition (accounting
policies applied until 31 December
2017

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods, lease of
properties and the use by others of the Group’s assets
yielding interest, and dividends, net of rebates and
discounts. Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and revenue and costs,
if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised as follows:

(i) sale of crude oil is recognised from the Group's
share of income (including cost recovery oil,
investment recovery oil and share oil) according
to the terms stipulated in the contract, details of
which are set out in note 36;

(ii) rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the respective lease terms; and

(iii) interest income is recognised on time proportion
basis using effective interest method.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Government grants
related to depreciable assets are recognised as deferred
income in the consolidated statement of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss over the useful
lives of the related assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ISR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that
affect neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred
tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised or settled and
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at fair
value under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business
model whose objective is to consume substantially all the
economic benefits embodied in the property over time,
rather than through sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥R R B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits

Retirement benefits to employees are provided through
defined contribution plans.

Defined contribution plans

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF scheme. Assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

Retirement benefits costs and short-
term employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plans (Continued)

According to the relevant regulations in the PRC, the
subsidiaries of the Group operating in the PRC are
required to participate in central pension schemes
operated by the respective local municipal governments,
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a
certain percentage of the basic salaries of their employees
to the scheme to fund their retirement benefits. The
scheme is responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to the retired employees and the Group has
no further obligations for the actual pension payments
or other post-retirement benefits beyond the employer
contributions. Contributions under the scheme are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they are accrued to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the reporting date. Non-accumulating compensated
absences such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans for remuneration of its employees
and directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the grant
of any share-based compensation are measured at their
fair values. These are indirectly determined by reference
to the share options awarded. Their value is appraised
at the grant date and excludes the impact of any non-
market vesting conditions (for example, profitability and
sales growth targets).

For other goods or services received by the Group in
exchange for the grant of any share-based compensation,
they are directly measured at the fair value of the goods
or services received.

All share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in profit or loss over the vesting period if vesting
conditions apply, or recognised as an expense in full
at the grant date when the equity instruments granted
vest immediately unless the compensation qualifies for
recognition as asset, with a corresponding increase in
the share option reserve in equity. If vesting conditions
apply, the expense is recognised over the vesting period,
based on the best available estimate of the number of
equity instruments expected to vest. Non-market vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of equity instruments that are expected to vest. Estimates
are subsequently revised, if there is any indication that
the number of equity instruments expected to vest differs
from previous estimates. No adjustment to expense
recognised in prior periods is made if fewer share options
ultimately are exercised than originally vested.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

Share-based compensation (Continued)

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. After vesting
date, when the vested share options are later forfeited
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated losses.

Impairment of assets (other than
financial assets)

The Group’s goodwill, property, plant and equipment,
prepaid land lease payments, sea area use rights,
intangible assets and the Company’s interests in
subsidiaries are subject to impairment testing. Goodwill
and intangible assets with indefinite useful life or those
not yet available for use are tested for impairment
annually by comparing their carrying amounts with their
recoverable amounts, irrespective of whether there is
any indication that they are impaired. All other assets are
tested for impairment whenever there are indications that
the asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value-in-use) of an asset
is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease under
that HKFRS.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Impairment of assets (other than
financial assets) (Continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation increase under that HKFRS.

Value-in-use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset or cash-
generating unit (“CGU") discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU. A CGU is the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows
that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—F— \F+=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x)

(y)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation. All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Group, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the executive directors
of the Company for their decisions about resources
allocation to the Group’s business components and for
their review of the performance of those components.
The business components in the internal financial
information reported to the executive directors of the
Company are determined following the Group’s major
product lines.

EX

(x)

(y)

BRI ®)

BERIREE

BERASEARESMHMELA
BEHCEESMEE) - RBEAEH
BN BB EGER - B
FETEMEFRTUER - MEE
2R FEEBEEAR - BiE K ixEE
BEEBZZHZEBYE T8
BREANEE®RE B HALAES -
I 4 TR DA R B B 2 S AT o

MBARETTEELENZZ L - %
EeBEIAA S - RIRIERE
Marsz Bz e Rl - & RRESE
EAKABETURE - MRASE
BzBEERARTERKEZRA
S BN T RETE R IE S| 2 KRR E
ENREBETBESSFE
TEREAIARE  EBLENR
2 AT RS IEARAR B BR A ©

2 EHRE

REERBEHARARARMITES
EHRUAHAE DA EREANE B
B0 MR ZE D BRR 2 AE
MEER  BUBEDBERERS
BEK - MARFRTEETREZ
WEBET 75 & Bt 2 7 5 B T iR BR AR
SEFrZERERET °

HREEREERERAT @ —Z— \FFEHK

145



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(y)

Segment reporting (Continued)

The Group has identified the following reportable
segments:

(i) Qil production;
(i) Qil and liquefied chemical terminal;

(iii) Insurance brokerage service (acquired on 31
August 2018 (note 40)); and

(iv) Supply of electricity and heat (discontinued
in 2017 in connection with the disposal of
subsidiaries (note 11)).

Each of these operating segments is managed separately
as each of the product line requires different resources as
well as marketing approaches. All inter-segment transfers
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.

The measurement policies the Group used for reporting
segment results under HKFRS 8 are the same as those
used in its financial statements prepared under HKFRSs,
except that finance costs, income tax and corporate
income and expenses which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segment are
not included in arriving at the operating results of the
operating segment.

Segment assets include all assets but corporate assets
which are not directly attributable to the business
activities of any operating segment are not allocated
to a segment, which primarily applies to the Group’s
headquarter.

Segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities which are
not directly attributable to the business activities of any
operating segment and are not allocated to a segment.

No asymmetrical allocations have been applied to
reportable segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=—F— \F+=A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Related parties

(a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

0)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.
POLICIES (continued)

(z) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group;

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Company.

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(iii) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
rarely equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(i) Operating lease commitments — Group
as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property lease
on its investment properties. The Group has determined,
based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of
the arrangement, that it retains all the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of these properties which are
leased out on operating leases.

(ii) Estimated fair value of investment
properties

The Group appointed an independent valuation firm
to assess the fair value of the investment properties.
In determining the fair value, the valuers have used a
method of valuation which involves input of certain
estimates. The directors of the Company have exercised
their judgement and are satisfied that the method of
valuation is reflective of the current market conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZ ==

4.

—NF+ZA=+—HILLFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

Other than oil properties and CIP, the Group depreciates
its property, plant and equipment using straight-line
method over their estimated useful lives in order to
determine the amount of depreciation expenses to be
recorded. The estimated useful lives reflect the directors
of the Company’s estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the use
of these property, plant and equipment. The Group also
performs annual reviews on whether the assumptions
made on useful lives continue to be valid. Such reviews
take into account the technological changes, prospective
economic utilisation and physical condition of the assets
concerned.

Impairment of financial assets at
amortised cost

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for
trade receivables. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is initially
based on the Group’s historical observed default rates.
The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For other financial assets at amortised cost are measured
by 12-moths ECLs.

At each reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed. The assessment of the
correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant
estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The
Group's historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of
customer’s actual default in the future. The information
about the ECLs on the Group’s financial assets at
amortised cost is disclosed in note 46(a) to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Estimated impairment of intangible
assets and property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is any indication that a non-financial
asset may be impaired. If any such indications exists, the
Group makes an estimate of the recoverable amount
of the asset. The recoverable amounts of the CGUs
to which the asset is allocated are determined based
on value-in-use. These calculations require the use of
estimates about future cash flows, discount rate and
oil reserves. In the process of estimation, management
makes assumptions about future cash flow, costs and
oil reserves which related to the QOil Production Assets.
Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 18
to the financial statements.

Loss of control on QHFSMI and IMFSMI

As described in note 3(a)(iii) to the financial statements,
as soon as the Group had discovered the loss of QHFSMI's
exploration licence, without the Company’s knowledge,
consent or approval, the Group obtained advice from
its legal advisers. Given that (i) the discovery of the loss
of significant controls over QHFSMI; (ii) Ms Leung’s
legal status as director and legal representative in
QHFSMI and IMFSMI remained unchanged; and (iii) the
Group was unable to obtain the financial information
of QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the directors of the Company
considered that the Group had no power over QHFSMI
and IMFSMI, exposure, or rights, to variable returns
from QHFSMI and IMFSMI and the ability to use its
power to affect those variable returns. As the Group is
still in the process of regaining the controlling power
over QHFSMI and IMFSMI, the Group was still unable
to exercise of its power over QHFSMI and IMFSMI.
Accordingly, the directors of the Company consider
that it was inappropriate to consolidate the financial
statements of QHFSMI and IMFSMI into the Group for the
year and these two wholly-owned entities had been de-
consolidated since 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4.
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

BEREFHEFT R E &)

(vii) AHfF#EZ b5

(vii) Estimation of oil reserves

Qil reserves are key elements in the Company'’s
investment decision-making process. They are also an
important element in testing for impairment. Changes in
oil reserves will affect unit of production depreciation,
depletion and amortisation recorded in the financial
statements for oil properties and intangible assets related
to oil production activities. A reduction in oil reserves
will increase depreciation, depletion and amortisation
(assuming constant production) and reduce net profit. Oil
reserve estimates are subject to revision, either upward
or downward, based on new information, such as from
developing drilling and production activities or from
changes in economic factors, including product prices or
development plans. In general, changes in the technical
maturity of oil reserves resulting from new information
becoming available from development and production
activities have tended to be the most significant cause of
annual revisions.

(viii) Taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong
and the PRC. There are certain transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax provisions in the period in
which such final tax liabilities determination is made.

152 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018

AMFEHRRR ZRERKBE
EHEZ  TAETREIAZE
2R - AHHEEZEBRTEY
IR E A EERSEEZA
HMEERBVEEMCECEME
BITE  BRNEE - DHRFEZ
AR IR NI E - BREREHE
(RBIFELE)  LTHFRD -
AmFEEME TR R R E R R A
BRI EMNEREBRLME
NREQLBERRSE(CM LT HE -
ERms  RABEREERDAHRK
2B G G B A 8 I ATAL
AEHRES  SRAFEHAREL
REZREE -

(viii) B8

AEBEEBMNBEBRTEMEH -
RBEEEBEBIET  ETRH KA
HHNETREVIR - ARERE
bt = A& 2 BARR 1 5 I8 1 FE 72
HHRBEZEE MZEEELIR
RURBR/ERETNBARSETR
REEZRRETEBCABAREN
AR EHREZ TSP aE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z= =%

4.

—NE+RA=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(viii) Taxation (Continued)

(ix)

(x)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent it is
considered probable that those assets will be recoverable.
This involves an assessment of when those deferred
tax assets are likely to reverse, and a judgement as to
whether there will be sufficient taxable income available
to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. These
judgements are subject to risk and uncertainty and
therefore, to the extent assumptions regarding future
profitability change, there can be a material increase or
decrease in the amounts recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which the change
occurs.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests on annual basis whether goodwill is
impaired in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 3(v). The recoverable amounts of CGU
are determined based on value-in-use calculation. These
calculations require the use of judgement and estimates
of the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU,
the timeframe for the cash flows forecast and the suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value.
Details in impairment assessment are set out in note 19
to the financial statements.

Valuation of convertible bonds

The directors of the Company use their judgement in
selecting an appropriate valuation technique for the
Group's convertible bonds which are not quoted in the
active market. Valuation techniques commonly used
by market practitioners are applied. The fair value of
the financial liability and equity component varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.
Any change in these variables so adopted may
materially affect the estimation of the fair value of these
components.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(xi)

Fair value measurement

A number of assets and liabilities included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at, and/or
disclosure of, fair value.

The fair value measurement of the Group's financial
and non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs used
in determining fair value measurements are categorised
into different levels based on how observable the inputs
used in the valuation technique utilised are:

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2:  Observable direct or indirect inputs other than
Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised in
the period they occur.

The Group measures investment properties and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at fair value as
at 31 December 2018. Detailed information in relation to
the fair value measurement are set out in notes 20, 24
and 45.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(xii) Going concern

The directors of the Company have prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that
the Group will be able to operate as a going concern
in the foreseeable future, which is a critical judgement
that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The
assessment of the going concern assumption involves
making a judgement by the directors of the Company,
about the future outcome of events or conditions which
are inherently uncertain. The directors of the Company
consider that, after taking into account of all major
events or conditions, which may give rise to business
risks, that individually or collectively may cast significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in
note 3(a)(ii) to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group has the capability to continue as a going concern.

4,

BEREHEE R A E @)

(xii) FELE

ARBEZNENRAEERAERL
RIREEMITEEE Z BRBRRETE
FHREK - ZBRREBERHE - &
REVBRRANEHERSEARS
FEN - HRHEKERR 2
& FRARBESHRAE T
FEZ B MM Z R AERIEL A
b - KRERBHZA M BRKRME3(a)
(ii) P& Pl RE B B TS A (FT BE
Bl R S| HHFELLERR
BERERE) ZMABEEREHHMR
& ARAEER/AEEBRE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
75 SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND 5.

GAINS

The Group's principal activities are disclosed in note 1 to the

financial statements. Revenue from the Group’s principal
activities and other income and gains recognised are as follows:

W 2 B2 E Ath U A R W s

AEB T EXBNMBERR 2T H
B AKREIZEBZRAEREHEREM

WA RSB HIAT

2018 2017
HKS'000 HK$'000
—2-N\F —T—+F
FET FAT
Revenue &
Continuing operations BESEER
Sale of crude oil $HE R 37,247 20,192
Rental income from investment properties & ¥ 2 4 U 115,080 10,146
Agency income from insurance brokerage R4 42 RFGH IR U A
service 1 -
152,328 30,338
Other income and gains Hi g A\ & Wz
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Interest income FLEWA
- Bank deposits —RITIF 1,276 826
— Loan receivables — R E R 618 -
1,894 826
Other tax refunds HAbFRIERE - 1,002
Fair value gain on financial assets REREZHBEEED
through profit or loss ASEETE - 2,290
Exchange gain, net SMEU A FEE - 2,757
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - HE &S EKE
plant and equipment 19 65
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERBRFTE 2B EERS
through profit or loss 76 -
Rental income from sub-letting of HEHEEE 2 HS WA
leased assets 164 =
Government grants (note) AT R B (BT EE) 6,914 -
Sundry income FIEPA 618 155
9,685 7,095
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05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-ZT— \F+=A=1+—HILFE

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

Note:

In April 2018, a subsidiary of the Company has been granted from
the Ministry of Transport a subsidy of RMB5,810,000 (approximately
HK$6,914,000) in respect of usage of clean energy in the operations of
the oil and liquefied chemical terminal in the PRC.

Wk EMmWARKE &)

]

Al

RZZ—N\FWA  ARA—HEHER RN
B {5 R VB R B IR 2 8 i MR BB L B A5 BE
BB REE S A AR S5,810,0007T (49
6,914,000 7T) °

SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 EE B
The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared R EE BRI 5E HA A AN £ [ 5 12 B ' 2R A
segment information based on the regular internal financial HAFEDREREANEF LD KB

information reported to management of the Group for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s business
components and review of these components’ performance. The
business components in the internal reporting to management
of the Group are determined based on the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group has identified the following
reportable segments:

(a) Qil Production segment represents the business of oil
production;

(b) Qil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment represents
the business of leasing of oil and liquefied chemical
terminal, together with its storage and logistics facilities;

(c) Insurance Brokerage Service segment represents the
business of providing insurance brokerage service (new
segment during the year and acquired on 31 August 2018
(note 40)); and

(d) Supply of electricity and heat segment (discontinued in
2017 in connection with the disposal of subsidiaries (note

11)).

N

%Q*BEEEZWuBEM‘kﬁﬂ T HE
DEEREADEER - MAEBEEEE
TR E 2 50 B TR R A S B =
ZEmIIRGEBETE - AEB B #IZIA
NEREDR

T XY
=\

() EHSE  BEHBER:

(b) MmRREE T RIS\ R - R
B MR T miEsEER T
NIRRT

() R IR o B e R IR A& A2
RB(REEHFAORLN —F—N
FNA=+—B % (HE40) :
&

d AEHEIR(ER-_FT—LFK

t%f%'éﬁiﬂj%ﬁﬁ% 7] a 73 (B
11)) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R S

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

THEER (#)

2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ZE—+F
FERT FHET
Revenue from contracts with customer EE I BHELRE 15 HKEER
within the scope of HKFRS 15: REEFEHEA :
Sale of crude oil from Qil Production EmESRT RREE 37,247 20,192
Agency income from Insurance RIS 40 IR TS IR YA
Brokerage Service 1 -
37,248 20,192
Revenue from other source: HiRRKA :
Rental income from leasing of Oil FHAERmEREBCERITEESUA
and Liquefied Chemical Terminal 115,080 10,146

Note:

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 using cumulative effect method.

Under this method, the comparative information is not restated and was

prepared in accordance with HKAS 18.

Sale of crude oil from Qil Production is recognised at point in time when

there is evidence that the control of crude oil has been transferred to

the customer, the customer has adequate control over crude oil and the

Group has no unfulfilled obligations that affect customer accepting the

crude oil.

Agency income from Insurance Brokerage Service is recognised at point in

time as contracts are signed with the ultimate customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6. DEER @)
There was no inter-segment sale and transfer during the year REANTES Rz HERER(ZT—+
(2017: Nil). FE) o
Continuing operations Discontinued operation
BREERE BALEEEE
0il and Liquefied Insurance Brokerage Supply of Electricity
Ol Production Chemical Terminal Service and Heat Total
B BRRERLIRES RREL HEfE it
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 018 2017 018 2017
HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 | HKS'000 |  HKS'000
ZE-NE | ZEAE | ZE3-NE | DR AE | ZE-NE | DR AE | Z3-NE | DRAE | Z3-0E | DR4E
TEn TR Tén ThL ThL T TE1L T Tén T
Reportzble seqment revenue: FEAENE:
From external customers pEL Ll 37,41 20,19 | 115,080 10,146 1 - - - | 19238 30338
Reportable seqment los)profit RE7E(BR)/EH (59635) | (10906) | 94629 (2261) (200) - - (t49) | 34704 | (213616)
Interest income FlSRA b b 1133 820 - - - 5 1139 81
Depreciation i 283) | (509) (146) (509) ) - - - B3| (606
Amortisation of sea area use rights B RERE - - - (1,824) - - - - - (1,824)
Amartisation of intangble assets Bl EERY (870) (1,003) - - - - - - (870) (1,003)
Write-off of property, plant and equipment 7% iz Rk s (1,559) | (13,051) - - - = - - (S| (13050)
Impairment Ioss of property, % - BERAGZAERR
plant and equipment (526) (5,469) - - - - - - (526) (5,469)
Impaiment loss of intangble assets ~ EFAEZFEEE (62801) | (170,710) - - - - - - | (6801 | (170,710)
Fair value loss of investment properties  &ENEATEER - - (5,986) - - - - (5,986) -
Reportable segment assets REVREE 203,633 219993 | 1520475 | 1,695,735 2,1 - - - | 1728829 | 1,975,728
Additions to non-Current seqment KERERGNEEELN
assets during the year 2622 - - | 510091 19 - - - 2641 | 510,091
Reportable segment liabilties #ENESR (195,359) | (247.908) | (977,763) | (1,144879) (630) - - - | (17375) | (1,392,787)
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75 SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (cContinued) 6. TEER (@)
The totals present for the Group’s operating segments reconcile HAEEEEN M2 2 REFEES
to the Group’s key financial figures as presented in the BEBRERFEINNAEBEZZETHHT 2
consolidated financial statements as follows: HERMAT :
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T+
FERT FAT
Revenue &=
Reportable segment revenue and HEDENE kRS W
consolidated revenue 152,328 30,338
Loss before income tax FRETSH A& B
Reportable segment profit/(loss) |ED RN (EE) 34,704 (213,616)
Segment loss before income tax BRI SR
from discontinued operation FT{8 % A5 48 518 - 449
Finance costs B 75 K R (64,155) (8,587)
Other unallocated income Hib R BUA 833 2,378
Other unallocated expenses (note a) Hi R DB ( Hista ) (16,499) (12,163)
Consolidated loss before income tax FEIC S TSR
from continuing operations FriSBiRI4R & 518 (45,117) (231,539)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FET FAT
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets WwEDEEE 1,728,829 1,975,728
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= NREE 3,538 59
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTET 274,824 575
Other corporate assets (note b) Hh 2 EE (MiFEDb ) 209,340 16,884
Group assets REEEE 2,216,531 1,993,246
Liabilities afE
Reportable segment liabilities HwEDEBE 1,173,752 1,392,787
Convertible bonds AR ES 60,508 195,400
Other corporate liabilities HEhEARE 53,000 34,319
Group liabilities REEEE 1,287,260 1,622,506
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6.

Notes:

(a) Other unallocated expenses mainly included unallocated
administrative expenses.

(b) Other corporate assets mainly included unallocated financial
assets at FVTPL, loan receivables and refundable deposits for a
potential investment.

Customers from Qil Production and the Oil and Liquefied
Chemical Terminal segment are located in the PRC (domicile)
whereas those customers from Insurance Brokerage Service
are located in Hong Kong. Geographical location of customers
is based on the location at which the goods are delivered and
the contracts are negotiated and entered with the customers.
No geographical location of non-current assets is presented as
substantial non-current assets are physically based in the PRC.

Revenue from major customers is as follows:

THEER (#)
et -

(a) Hp R DR T2 BEARD RITHFA
% o

(b) HpbtX¥EETZRERDEREAFE
FAABEmZMBEE  BRERNE
REZARERS o

KEEM M m AR BERSEEL AR
FursBE(EEE) - MR8 RBRELIR
BEPUNREE BEFPHENEERE M
R R B P R R AT LA KR o
WHERZIERBDEEMIEMLE - LTIER
REfDIERBEEERANAE -

KEXEFPZWESMT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—+tF
FET FET
Customer A (derived from the Oil and TP A CGRRER B &

Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment) BRI T MG D 48 115,080 10,146

Customer B (derived from the Oil ZEB(RIBREMDLE)
Production segment) 37,247 20,192
152,327 30,338
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75 SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BAERAE
2018 2017
HK$°000 HK$'000
—E2-N\#F —FtF
FET FAT
Continuing operations HEREETL
Imputed interest on convertible bonds RIERES 2 HEE RS (FEE31)

(note 31) 17,414 30,924
Interest on bank and other borrowings R1T M EMIE K Z T B 30,966 23,391
Finance lease charges BMERNER 4,675 28,839
Interest on amounts due to FEAST FE43 IR AR SR R IE 2 F) S

non-controlling shareholders 11,100 4,034

64,155 87,188

Less: Amount capitalised* W B EeEE - (78,601)

64,155 8,587

@ Borrowing costs capitalised in 2017 arose on the specific * RIE—+F  BRRELANEEKA

borrowings and general borrowing pool which were calculated ELXABTEEER—REEHS KA

by applying a capitalisation rate of 10.88%, to expenditure on BRI E10.88% tE @ sF AR B
qualifying assets. BEMZH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging the following:

BR T 15 % Bl B 18

BRPTSTRATE R E R AT R IA

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
A2 —E—+tF
FERT FAT
Continuing operations BESEER
Depreciation (note 15)A e (FizE15) A 3,498 5,624
Amortisation of sea area use rights I8 (5 PR R 6
(note 17)* (FHEE17) * - 1,824
Amortisation of intangible assets A R
(note 18)* (PffzE18) * 870 1,023
Direct operating expenses arising from EEHSRAZKRENFEEEZ
investment properties that generated BEELERETY
rental income * 4,906 4,525
Fair value loss on financial assets BATEFABRMBEEZ
at FVTPL* NFEEE* 920 -
Auditor’s remuneration ZERD & 1,075 1,178
Write-off of property, plant and WEEYZE - BRE ks (MisE15)
equipment (note 15) 1,559 13,051
Exchange loss, net B 3 518 5 58 1,071 -
Operating lease charges on land THREFZEERNER
and buildings 4,923 5,453
Employee costs, including BINA  BIEESHS
directors’ emoluments (note 13) (BfsE13) 23,509 17,003

* Included in “other operating expenses” in the consolidated

income statement.

& Included in “selling and distribution expenses” in the

consolidated income statement.

A Depreciation expenses of approximately HK$2,633,000
(2017: HK$3,623,000) and approximately HK$865,000 (2017:
HK$2,001,000) were included in cost of sales and administrative

expenses respectively for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Bt AGARER L [RMEER] -

Bt AGEREaRZ [HERD HA
X1
RBE-ZE—N\GE+_A=+—HILF
B ERY#2,633,0008 (=%
—+4F : 3,623,000 ) K 49865,000
B (ZZ—+t4 : 2,001,000 7T) 5D
BT ASHE KA RITEFX
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) 9.

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group
had no estimated assessable profits arising in or derived from
Hong Kong for both years.

e, (ER)

HRAKRERMEFREOEETEEHX
EEEMETRERBEN WAL ERAEE
MSHIEL B -

2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E=-N\F T+
FBx TR
Continuing operations HEKEER
Current tax — PRC EHIE -
— Current year —AEE 45 12
— PRC withholding tax — R FEHRL 925 1,395
Deferred tax — PRC RIERITH —
— Current year (note 32) —ANEE (H5E32) 27,760 (41,086)
Income tax expenses/(credit) Fris®im Y (#E%) 28,730 (39,679)

The Group’s PRC subsidiaries and branches are subject to PRC
enterprise income tax at the tax rate of 25% (2017: 25%) for the
year.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, PRC Value-
added Tax Law and other related regulations, non-PRC-
resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10%, 6% and
various tax rate (unless reduced by tax treaties/arrangements)
respectively on interest receivable from PRC enterprises for
income earned since 1 January 2008. The Group has adopted
withholding tax rate of 10%, 6% and various tax rate on
corporate income tax, value-added tax (“VAT") and other taxes
for PRC withholding tax purpose during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-ZT— \F+=A=1+—HILFE

9. INCOME TAX EXPENSES/(CREDIT) (Continued) 9.

Reconciliation between income tax expenses/(credit) and the

FrB®mx (&)@

RERAREAEZAERAS (Ee) R

accounting loss at applicable tax rates: estEE SR ¢
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —tF
FET T
Continuing operations FEREEK
Loss before income tax K P S A ES 18 (45,117) (231,539)
Tax at the applicable rates to loss in the  $RFTF IS Al AR 2
tax jurisdictions concerned EBIRIRERRRFE 2 A (8,958) (54,792)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries A E M EHEEREL 2
operating in other jurisdictions ERIENGIRN S E’J%’i“ 925 1,395
Tax effect of non-taxable income ERMBAZ BB (2,167) (1,412)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses DA A 2 B 2 22,194 12,434
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary AERERF =R 2RI E
differences - 528
Tax effect of unrecognised tax losses AERBISE B2 RS E 16,736 2,168
Income tax expenses/(credit) FTERiAS (B R) 28,730 (39,679)
10. DIVIDENDS 10. &2
The board of directors of the Company did not recommend any FAN - ARBEFEEREDNRNEMMKRR

payment of dividends during the year (2017: Nil).

—tF &)
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75 SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZ ==

11.

—N\F+ZA=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

In 2015, the Group entered into the sale and purchase
agreement with an independent third party, pursuant to which
the Group agreed to sell the issued shares and the sale loan of
Sunlight Rise Limited (together with its subsidiaries referred to
as the “Sunlight Group” engaged in the supply of electricity
and heat) which holds 60% equity interests in Shanxi Zhong
Kai Group Lingshi Heat and Power Limited at a consideration of
HK$1,500,000 (the “Disposal”). The Disposal was completed
on 17 March 2017 (the “Disposal Date”) and constitutes a
discontinued operation under HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held
for Sale and Discontinued Operations” as the supply of electricity
and heat represented one of the major line of business of the
Group.

(@) Analysis of the results of the discontinued operation:

11. BRIEEEEK

REZZE—R1F  AEEHE—FBIE=H
AYVEEWHS B AEEREHESR
BEAERAR (GEREWNBARSE [ AEE
E |- ReEREMHE  ZoRFEELAF
%@%Eﬂﬁﬁﬁ A2 60% k) ME
BIRORFEER - KB /1,500,000
BL((HESHE])  HEFEHR=-Z—+
F=A+tB(THEEBHRDBEEREK - B
BRESTISREERESHR [FIELEZ
%ﬁ@ﬁ?&eﬂmﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁﬁﬁza

IEREER  RASREHESAERSE
E*EIK%%@

(a) ERIERERE 2 EENT

Period from

1 January 2017
to the

Disposal Date
HK$'000
BE-E—+%F
—HA—B&=E
& B HA L AR
THT

Loss for the period
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note b)

HIME1E
HEMEAFERE (KaEb)

Other income
Administrative expenses

Loss for the period

HAb W A
TR

HnEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-ZT— \F+=A=1+—HILFE

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 1. ERLEREXR @)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries: (b) HEH B AR
HK$'000
FHIT
Net liabilities disposed of: HENBEFHE

Property, plant and equipment (note 15) M - BB k&M (i 15) 31,796

Prepaid land lease payments TE{T T i B FRIE 4,516

Inventories TE8 2,047

Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K Ho A AR IE 71,122

Cash and cash equivalents RekRELFEIEE 322

Trade and other payables FERE 5 R HABRIE (42,776)

Bank borrowings HRITIER (51,531)

Amount due to the Group FE A& E /) FRIE (81,388)

Amounts due to a non-controlling shareholder FETIEIR AR AR R A 3K (16,519)

Non-controlling interests FEPEAR AR R A o 22,532

(59,879)
Disposal of amount due to the Group HERNAREBFIE([FEERK])

(the “Sale Loan") 81,388
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal H & B AR BR TE H (10,888)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries & B B A m & 1A (9,121)
Total consideration KBz 1,500
An analysis of the net cash flow arising on disposal of the HEDRIIREEBRELE RSN
discontinued operation was as follows: SFEOWNWT :

HK$'000

FHIT

Cash consideration HERE 1,500

Cash and cash equivalents disposed of HEZReRREEEEA (322)
Net cash inflows arising from the disposal HEMNBAREEZRERAFRE

of subsidiaries 1,178
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B R S

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZ ==

11.

12.

—N\F+ZA=+—HILFE

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued) 1. ERLERBEXK @)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries: (Continued) (b) HERBAR : (8)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities AESENLEAPNEERERE
of the Sunlight Group at the Disposal Date are B BREE 5 54774 109,803,000
approximately HK$109,803,000 and HK$192,214,000 T’ 192,214,000/ 7T - HEFE
respectively. A loss of approximately HK$9,121,000 SEEEEEL,121,0008 T
arose on the Disposal, being the proceeds of Disposal BV i & P75 53 1,500,000 7 7T
of HK$1,500,000 less net asset value disposed of in EFMEEEFEL10,621,0005
the amount of approximately HK$10,621,000, being JC YA TN SR EAEBE()VFEER
the net amount of (i) the Sale Loan of approximately #781,388,000/% 7T (i) A E & E
HK$81,388,000; (i) the equity attributable to the owners A A E(HHEZE#)59,879,000/8 T
of the Sunlight Group of approximately HK$59,879,000 (B8) R(iii) A HSRERRIE K
(in negative); and (iii) the release of the exchange reserve & #%710,888,000/8 T - HEEIE
upon Disposal of approximately HK$10,888,000. No tax WiEEEAAHIEBERS SER -
charge or credit arose from the Disposal.
LOSS PER SHARE 12. BRER
The calculations of basic loss per share attributable to the owners RRFEE AFEEREREETIREA
of the Company are based on the following data: TEURGE
2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T+
FHERT FAT
Loss for the year attributable to the FRAGESREREE
owners of the Company for the ZANEER AEIERNEE
purpose of basic loss per share &8
— From continuing operations — BB ST (76,478) (178,056)
— From discontinued operation — BRI EB - (9,065)
(76,478) (187,121)
Number of shares BRHEE ‘000 ‘000
F R T
(Restated)
(&%)
Weighted average number of FRLAGESRERER
ordinary shares for the purpose 2 AR ANFE T 2
of basic loss per share 6,309,686 3,982,817
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

12.

13.

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 12. EREER®)
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the loss BREREBEBIBRERRAESR ARIEE
attributable to the owners of the Company and the weighted BREBIRNELSHETE -
average number of ordinary shares.
For the year ended 31 December 2017, the weighted average BIE—Z—+&F+_-_A=1+—BHIt&FE -
number of ordinary shares in issue was restated, after adjusting BT ERINEEAHE EY (RIEBERE
for the bonus elements in share issued under the placing (note KRB BTRMIEAREZR) (KIEE33G) °
33(ii)).
For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no adjustment BE_Z—"N\FrK-_ZT—+F+=A
has been made to the basic loss per share amount presented =+ —HIEFE  ARAREBZABRERE
in respect of a dilution as the impact of the convertible bonds SHMEVN 2 BREARNEGIESSE A A R E
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share ERE  WEHREEE 2 FRERE
amount presented. BeBEELHAE -
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING  13. {E £ & 7/ Bl X ( &2 1% & =
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) €)
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—+F
FHET FAT
Continuing operations BESEER
Wages, salaries and allowances TE& - #Fe R 22,422 24,152
Pension costs — defined contribution BRIRE KA — R FRIRETE]
retirement plans 1,087 844
23,059 24,996
Less: Amount capitalised in construction & : fEEZLIEANEAR(L 2
in progress (note 15) e (fFFE15) - (7,993)
23,059 17,003
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75 SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 14. ESERANVE S FM A L BN
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS &
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEEE

Salaries,  Contribution
allowances  to retirement

and benefits benefit
Fees in kind scheme Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e BHER RIAEF
ne BYEF STEIfR @5t
T T T T
2018 “2-N\F
Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Lan Yonggiang 9 Gbiea - 621 - 621
Ms. Wang Meiyan FEYLTT - 386 - 386
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral REBLE - 991 18 1,009
Ms. Jin Yuping SERLL - 120 - 120
Mr. Cao Sheng EREE(R=F—N\&
(appointed on 15 March 2018) —“A+HRBEZE) - 191 - 191
Mr. Yu Zhiyong FEBELE(R=ZB—N\F
(appointed on 15 March 2018) ZA+HEREZT) - 191 - 191
Independent non-executive BYkHTES
directors
Mr. Wang Jinghua FiEEELE 54 - - 54
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan Y BSE(R-B—hE
(Resigned on 1 January 2019) —A—HEHE) 138 - - 138
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BELEE 138 - - 138
330 2,500 18 2,848
2017 ZE-tF
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Lan Yonggiang Exoats - 390 - 390
Ms. Wang Meiyan IR - 739 - 739
Mr. Chan Wai Cheung Admiral ~ BfEE%4E - 650 18 668
Ms. Jin Yuping SERLL - 120 - 120
Independent non-executive BIFHTES
directors
Mr. Wang Jinghua FTREELSE 36 - - 36
Mr. Lee Hoi Yan FHBEE 120 - - 120
Mr. Fung Nam Shan BRI E 120 - - 120
276 1,899 18 2,193
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

14. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 14.

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of
office (2017: Nil).

There were no arrangements under which a director
of the Company waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year (2017: Nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group during the year included 2 directors (2017: 1
director) and their emoluments are included in the above
analysis. Details of the emoluments of the remaining 3

BEERANESEHM A LM
€ )

(a)

(b)

EEME (F)

FR - AEBYEARNRAREEX
MEMME - ER/MARRERR
INERRS 2 BB E Sk AF R BE R E (=
T—LF |-

FA AEEANARBDEETRE
SRERECAHE 2L (=F
—tFE) e

AuESHMAL

FA- AEBLUKSHFHALE
ERMUES(Z2—+tF: —fuzE
F) BEZHEFBELELEXS
e FRN - BRT=C(ZF—tF:

(2017: 4) individuals during the year are as follows: UAL) AL ZBEFFEIBIT
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—B-N\E —T—tF
FE&xT T
Basic salaries, housing benefits, other EA&#H 4 - EEEAf -
allowances and benefits in kind H b2 8L R EET 2,245 3,615
Pension costs — defined contribution  ERE& KA — FEREHER
retirement benefit plans RINEFIEE 35 18
2,280 3,633

Number of the remaining highest paid individuals whose
emoluments fell within the following band is as follows:

M FATEE 28T &= H M
ATHEBEWT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 ZZ 1,000,000 87T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 %75 % 1,500,000 78 7T 1 2

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to the above highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office (2017: Nil).

FR - AR EWE R L& H
AT ERME - (ERINARE
B 30 N BR B 2 BE < Bk M A B BB
BT —LF: 8-
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75 SRR B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. ¥ - MERFZE

Leasehold
0il and improvements,
liquefied furniture, office
chemical Plantand  equipment and Construction
terminal Buildings Oil properties machinery motor vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEMERE
R i BORE
ImiEE BT RmBIE B RAE ERIR @it
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
Year ended 31 December 2017 EHZ-Z—+F
TZREt-HLESE
Opening net carrying amount FREFE - 13,354 24,803 17,579 2,700 860,824 919,260
Additions NE - = = = 4,004 366,431 370,435
Transfer from CIP ERERETE 1,291,826 = = = = (1,291,826) =
Disposals of subsidiaries (note 11) HEMBRE (FizE11) - (13,527) - (16,823) (1,209) (237) (31,796)
Disposals HE - - - - (112) - (112)
Wite-off (note 8) gt (R 8) = - (13,051) - - - (13,051)
Exchange differences EXZR 2,665 173 4,003 (640) (1,575) 65,872 70,498
Depreciation (note 8) & (HizEs) = = (4,855) (116) (653) = (5,624)
Transfer to investment ERERENE (H20)
properties (note 20) (1,294,491) - - - - - (1,294,491)
Impairment loss AEEE - - (4,789) - (212) (468) (5,469)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FAREFE - - 6,111 - 2,943 59 9,650
At 31 December 2017 K=B-tE+=A
SinslH
Cost A = = 432,949 319 28,598 8,126 469,992
Accumulated depreciation ZETERAE
and impairment - - (426,838) (319) (25,655) (7,530) (460,342)
Net carrying amount REFE = - 6,111 - *2,943 596 9,650
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. M%  BERRKRE @)
(Continued)
Leasehold
improvements,
Oil and furniture,
liquefied office
chemical Plantand  equipment and Construction

terminal Buildings  Oil properties machinery  motor vehicles in progress Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HENERE
BRRRRL i BORE

IRER ¥ RHEE BEREE RAE HRIR @zt

TER TAR AR AR AR TAR AR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #HZ=F-\F

TZA=+-ALEE

Opening net carrying amount ~ E)REFE - - 6,111 - 2,943 596 9,650
Additions NE - - 845 - 3,720 1,651 6,216
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—EREAE

(note 40) (Wi 40) - - - - 19 - 19
Disposals He - - - - 2) - 2)
Write-off (note 8) s (HfzEe) - - (327 - 03] (1,230) (1,559)
Exchange differences EHES - - (3.346) - (531) 96 (3.781)
Depreciation (note 8) & (Mie) - - (2633 - (865) - (3,498)
Impairment loss HEEE - - (194) - - (332) (526)
Closing net carrying amount ~ FAREFE - - 456 - 5,282 781 6,519
At 31 December 2018 R=2-N§+=A

Eir=f]

Cost KA - - 412,110 - 32,826 3,926 448,862
Accumulated depreciation 2iTERAE

and impairment - - (411,654) - (27,544) (3,145) (442,343)
Net carrying amount REFE - - *456 - 5,282 *781 6,519
@ The balance of HK$1,237,000 (2017: HK$6,977,000) included in * FTAZ S ENAER 1,237,000 7T(=

these amounts represents property, plant and equipment relating ZT— 4 6,977,000 70) A HERE
to the Oil Production CGU. CESBMBANYE - BRE RERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZ ==

15.

—NF+ZA=+—-HIFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The buildings located on the prepaid land lease payments in the
PRC was disposed in 2017 (note 11).

Oil Production:

As a result of the closure of certain oil wells at the request of
the municipal government to protect the natural environment,
property, plant and equipment relating to the infrastructure
of the affected oil wells, approximately HK$13,051,000 were
written off in 2017.

During the year, provision for impairment loss of the property,
plant and equipment relating to the Oil Production CGU
of approximately HK$526,000 (2017: HK$5,469,000), was
recognised in profit or loss to write down to its recoverable
amount due to the accumulative decrease in the projected
volume of drilling and extraction and decrease in the projected
crude oil price (note 18(i)).

Qil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal:

In late September 2017, the carrying amount of CIP of
approximately HK$1,291,826,000 relating to the Group's
oil and liquefied chemical terminal facilities, which together
with all necessary land-forming and reclamation construction
and facilities installation, were completed and transferred
to oil and liquefied chemical terminal in property, plant and
equipment. On the same date, this amount was transferred
to investment properties due to the change of actual use at
the time of commencement of the lease. Additions in 2017
included capitalised interest and staff costs of approximately
HK$78,601,000 (note 7) and HK$7,993,000 (note 13)
respectively.
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15.

ME -  BERSEE @)

BFEMRPE BN A ER
—ZET—tFEE(HFE11) -

I R

B

EEBAiszEzFﬂ% B AREER 5 4 8
P& Tt — 5 B MEH R AR R
HZE **ﬂmaﬁazm% B 55 B A 4
13,051,000 7T ©

FA ERRSELEMREBRERY
526,000 7T (=& — 4 : 5,469,000 %
TL)  DRERBERAAMRAZEETRE £
7 REASEAEREFARERTIRD M
TEOR R B 1% T (KTEE18(0))

R B T A S eR

RZZBE—TFAAR EREIRERAER
£ 5491,291,826,000 7% 7T £2 72K & [
mAEREC T RISEREEBNERE - &%
EREERMBME LT ERIEGER
&nxﬁm;z TR EEREYE - BRE

HEzBmRREILTIMREE- - KNFE

B ZeREREREME  RERZRHF
REEREERBAENE - R-FT—+
FOAERRENMAMEREIRAD R

#978,601,00078 7T (FI7E7) % 7,993,0007%
7t (BEE13) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R M =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 16.

The Group's interests in leasehold land and land use rights in the
PRC was disposed in 2017 (note 11).

BA T HEERIE

AEERFEFEZHE TN L E A
BzEEN T —tFHE (ME11) -

17. SEA AREA USE RIGHTS 17. BEERRE

2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\E —E—+tF
FET FHET
Opening net carrying amount FHRREFE - 106,367
Exchange differences b 2= - 9,381
Amortisation (note 8) #H ( fIzEs) - (1,824)

Transferred to investment properties RS EYE ( MIEE20)
(note 20) - (113,924)
Closing net carrying amount FIRAREFE - =

Sea area use rights were acquired through acquisition of
Shandong Shundong Port Services Company Limited (“Shundong
Port”) in 2015.

In 2017, the balance of HK$113,924,000 (note 20) was
transferred to investment properties due to the change of actual
use at the time of commencement of lease.

BEERAENEBRN_E—RAFREILR
IEsREB AR AR ([NERAER ) BRIG

R-ZT—+F - £88113,924,000% T (K
E20) EEEREYE  RAATHEEME
BrERRREEE -
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B REER R M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. B EE

Interests in

Exploration  oil production

and evaluation sharing
assets contract Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(note (i) (note (ii))

BRR ERXBLE
MEEE Bz ES Bt
TR TET TET

(FI3E () (B2 (ii))

1 January 2017 n=F—tF—A—H 198 388,886 389,084
Amortisation for the year (note 8) REEEE (HS) (12) (1,011) (1,023)
Impairment loss REEE (266) (170,444) (170,710)
Exchange difference i 5 =5 418 - 418
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 RZZ—+F+-_A=+—HK

“E-\$—-A—H 338 217,431 217,769
Amortisation for the year (note 8) AEEEHE([ES) (21) (849) (870)
Impairment loss REEE (107) (62,694) (62,801)
Exchange difference X = 43 - 43
At 31 December 2018 R=Z2-NE+ZA=+-H 253 153,888 154,141

All intangible assets relate to the Oil Production CGU.

Notes:

(i) Exploration and evaluation assets are mainly classified as
exploration and evaluation assets arising from the Qil Production
segment when the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting the oil resource had been determined and that the
commercial production commences are recognised initially at cost.

(i) Interests in oil production sharing contract were recognised at fair
value on business combination and are charged to profit or loss on
unit of production method. Details of the oil production sharing
contract are set out in note 36.

176 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018

FE IR E S MR S E L BAER -

BT

(i) BEREFHEEREERFROAERZK

M RS ATIE R PR IR T 3 AR A R
feREERD B BRI EEEE

B DTIRRATER

(iy EmEBHES
q:{gﬁgﬁm

B ERHREBRAES

36 °

B
EITD

N2 ERIREBEHZA
ILA EE EME: BiEmx
2 FEIBE AT




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 H#Z= =%

18.

—NFTZRA=t—HIHFE

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment testing as at 31 December 2018,
the recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
exploration and evaluation assets and interests in oil production
sharing contract relating to the Oil Production CGU was
determined based on the higher of fair value less cost of disposal
and value-in-use calculation. Value-in-use calculation is derived
by using discounted cash flow analysis which adopts cash flow
projection for a period of 13 years up to 2031 (2017: 14 years
up to 2031) with a growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%) for direct
cost and cash expenses. The growth rate reflects the long-term
average growth rate for the country in which the entity of the Qil
Production CGU operates. Having reflected specific risks relating
to the Oil Production CGU, the pre-tax discount rate used to
determine the value-in-use in 2018 is 15% (2017: 18%).

In order to determine the recoverable amount of the Oil
Production CGU, management made reference to the valuation
report on the Group’s Oil Production CGU issued by APAC Asset
Valuation and Consulting Limited, an independent qualified

18.

B EE (&)

RR=B—N\E+=A=+—0ZREN
Wﬁa'ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁi§$$u2%%\
BERSE  BERT G EERERLS

,\;.:l,"]ZV*Z—M&@%ﬁﬁiizﬁ””‘quﬁ
BEERAREREERSETE  EH
BEAEERFARRCREIN Tﬁiﬁfi
ERENMRABE _T=—FIL+=F

BE(CZE—tF HE2E T =—F |+
FHE)ZRESRERN  EERARES
P 2R R E3% (ZT—+HF :3%) °

BEERRMERRCEEEMNBERCEA
EERzEHFHEER - BRMRAEBE
HASELBEMBERR  R-T—N\F
AUEEFERAEEZGRATITRER15%
—E—tF:18%) °

RETEHRRSELASEM A REISHE
ERESEBISEREEMHERBIA
BENGEEEMERARABAEEER
ReELBN 2 HERSEREMEREZE

professional valuation firm together with other variables and BHEHLRBEMETE - REESRET
assumptions related to the operations. Key assumptions used for EMFEFE/REBUOT :
discounted cash flow calculations are as follows:
2018 2017

—E-N\F —F—rF
Pre-tax discount rate BRBLATHTIA = 15% 18%
Growth rate R R 3% 3%
Key assumptions also include budgeted gross margin based on FERZNEEREBERIAMEEZTE

past performance, estimated crude oil reserve of technical report
and management expectations of market development. The
discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects specific risks relating to
the QOil Production CGU.

During the year, recoverable amount of HK$155,378,000 for
the Qil Production CGU is derived from value-in-use calculation,
resulted in impairment loss of approximately HK$63,327,000
(2017: HK$176,179,000) and is charged pro rata to the assets
related to the Oil Production CGU. Impairment losses in respect
of property, plant and equipment, exploration and evaluation
assets and interests in oil production sharing contract of
approximately HK$526,000 (2017: HK$5,469,000) (note 15),
HK$107,000 (2017: HK$266,000) and HK$62,694,000 (2017:
HK$170,444,000) respectively, are recognised as expenses
in profit or loss as the assets’ carrying amounts exceed their
recoverable amounts.

BENEX - RiiRE 2 batFn#EERE
BEBRHZMBER - EMRTEREE IR

BiE > RRREZEETLEERBIBE
R
FA EMREELEEMAINDSE

155,378,000/ T ' HEAFEAEBETFE

Z o BEURMERE#)63,327,000/87T (—F
—t 4 :176,179,000/8 7t ) » Wizl 5+
ABRERRSELBUCZEE - §BY
¥ BEESE DEERTEEERES
EBHZEOZERNREBESINE
526,000 7T ( =& — £ £ : 5,469,000 7%
70) (B47£15) ~ 107,000/8 7L (—F—+4F :
266,000/87T) 562,694,000/ (= —+
& : 170,444,000 7C) - AR EERMAE
MBUEIRESEmMRAERERARAS
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 18.

As a result of the accumulative decrease in the projected volume
of drilling and extraction and decrease in the projected crude oil
price, the carrying amount of the Oil Production CGU has been
reduced to its recoverable amount of HK$155,378,000 (after
impairment) (2017:HK$224,746,000) as at 31 December 2018.
Any adverse change in the key assumptions used to calculate the
recoverable amount would result in further impairment loss.

BILEE (@)

R TERISE IR & R = 2518 A R T8 R R
BERTRE  RZZ—NF+_A=1+—
B EdRSELSBNMZEAECHRE
H a7 Ug[E] 458 155,378,000 74 7T (FIERRE
%) (ZZT—+% 224,746,000 7T) - B
VAR E AT U B 6 58 2 = BB A& fiw 3R T )
THES) - HeEIuE— S HIURERSIS -

19. GOODWILL 19. BE
2018
HK$'000
—B-NE
FER
At 1 January R—H—H -
Acquired through business combinations (note 40) & @A HHES (B 40) 1,440
At 31 December R+—HA=+—H 1,440

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to the CGU to which the Insurance Brokerage Service segment
belongs (the “Insurance Brokerage Service CGU"), which derived
from the business combination on 31 August 2018 (note 40).

The recoverable amount of the Insurance Brokerage Service
CGU has been determined by value-in-use calculations based on
cash flow projections from formally approved budgets covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using an estimated weighted average growth rate
of 3%, which does not exceed the long-term growth rate for the
insurance brokerage service industry in Hong Kong.

178 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018

RETRENR  BEER-_FT-NA\FAN
A=T—HA7BEEXKE P RERELRK
BoBEME R ELEEM ([RRELER
BREELEM ) AT (&£ 40)

R ELRBASELBEMIA TS AIKE
FERBREDFHEABILEBERE
RenEBRAGENERAEEETE - 88
RAFEHNRERERMGINEFHERE
3% MHE - ZRERXWEBBEBHRR
BRI RAIERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Rk B

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

19.

20.

GOODWILL (Continued) 19. BE @)

2018
Significant unobservable inputs BEXFABEERAE —E-N\F
Discount rate I8 = 19%
Terminal yield R RIS R 3%

The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflect specific risks relating
to the relevant CGU. The operating margin and growth rate
within the five-year period have been based on past experience
and management expectations of market development.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the Insurance
Brokerage Service CGU exceeds to its recoverable amount. No
impairment loss is recognised during the year.

PIBERRXAHAIY RRERRREES
BUBBAFERR AFHERNLEHN
HERREREBELRNEEEHTS
HRHFAHSEE -

R-ZE-—NF+-A=+H RELLR
BReELEMUREAEBRBIKCSHE -
PRF NI EFEROR B ETE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REW=
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FET FHT
Fair value NEE
At 1 January R—H—H 1,500,000 -
Additions NE 5,732 3,049
Transferred from property, plant and HEAYIZE - BB REE (FFEE15)
equipment (note 15) - 1,294,491
Transferred from sea area use rights B g R (FIRE17)
(note 17) - 113,924
Fair value adjustment upon the P E At 2 U R AR 2 B R A
transfer recognised in other ZAFERAE
comprehensive income - 88,536
Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss RIBz R HERA A FEERE (5,986) -
Exchange difference P H Z5E (74,746) -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~8” 1,425,000 1,500,000
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5 R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EHZ ==

20.

—NF+ZA=+—HILLFE

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

In October 2016, the Group entered into a conditional lease
agreement relating to oil and liquefied chemical terminal with an
independent third party, in which the rent payable by the lessee
to the Group before VAT is RMB125,000,000 (approximately
HK$148,750,000) per annum. Initial terms of the lease were for
five years running from 1 April 2017 to 31 March 2022 (subject
to further renewals).

The change of application procedures of permits for operation of
port in second half of 2017 resulted in further postpone of the
5-years lease period. Nevertheless, certain portion of the port
was able to rent out under trial permit for operation of port in
late September 2017. The Group obtained the formal permit for
operation of port in late March 2018 to replace its trial one.

In May 2018, all leasing conditions were fulfilled and the
Company has received a full rental income stipulated in the lease
agreement.

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
(i.e. sea area use rights) to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
purposes are measured using fair value model and are classified
and accounted for as investment properties. In light of the
commencement of the lease of the oil and liquefied chemical
terminal, the oil and liquefied chemical terminal under the
property, plant and equipment and the sea area use rights were
transferred to investment properties on 30 September 2017 (the
"Date of Transfer”).

With respect of the passage of a short period of time, the
directors of the Company were of the opinion that the change
in the fair values of the investment properties between the Date
of Transfer and the year ended date of 31 December 2017 was
considered as minimal.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties
as at reporting date have been determined by income approach
carried out by APAC Asset Valuation and Consulting Limited,
an independent professional valuer who holds recognised and
relevant professional qualifications.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 20.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3 recurring fair
value measurement. During the year, there were no transfers
into or out of level 3 or any other level. The Group’s policy is
to recognise transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in which they occur. A
reconciliation of the opening and closing fair value balances is
provided below:

BEWE w)

REMENRNFERE=FLEEQTE
B FA - MEFBARBHE =-RNE
] AR Bl o AN B 2 BUSR AR B 43
ZHREPRERARTFESRE 2 ER - F
RFL A EERZHIROT

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
A2 —T—+F
FHET FAT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FOER(F=REELELTE)
fair value) 1,500,000 -
Initial recognition G R - 1,500,000
Addition NE 5,732 -
Fair value change NEEZE (5,986) =
Exchange difference M H R (74,746) =
Closing balance (level 3 recurring FREERG (F =T HERFE)
fair value) 1,425,000 1,500,000

As at 31 December 2018, fair value is determined by applying the
income approach, using the discounted cash flow method, based
on the contractual rental value of the properties. The fair value
measurement also includes the estimated terminal value at the
end of the projection period.

Except the rental value derived from the lease agreement

RZB-—NE+=R=+—H 2FES
REZEMEZAEHNEEBEERRKIRE
SREE  BREANEETE - AETRERE
BRIHERZ G RE&EE -

B aHEREHEEBEI  EME

mentioned above, other significant unobservable inputs are ATAER@ABRT :
disclosed as follow:
2018 2017
—EB-N\F —TtF
Rent growth rate per annum HeFRER 0% to 6% Nil
Discount rate B IR & 8% 8%
Capitalisation rate BEAR = 4.5% 4.5%
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20.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of
ownership over the asset’s life including terminal value. This
method involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a
property interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to
the projected cash flow in order to establish the present value of
the income stream associated with the asset. The capitalisation
rate is separately determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by the lease period of the lease
agreement signed on 24 October 2016. The periodic cash flow
is estimated as gross income less non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs and other
operating and management expenses if any. The series of
periodic net operating income, along with an estimate of the
terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period, is
then discounted.

A significant increase/decrease in the rental value in isolation
would result in a significant increase/decrease in the fair value of
the investment properties. A significant increase/decrease in the
discount rate and capitalisation rate in isolation would result in
a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties. Generally, a change in the assumption made for the
rental value is accompanied by a directionally similar change in
the rent growth per annum.

The fair value measurement is based on the above properties’
highest and best use, which does not differ from their actual use.

All investment properties have been pledged to secure banking
facilities granted to the Group (note 28(i)) and finance lease
liabilities (note 30) as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.
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20.

REWZE ()

REBRRREREE A FEDEARR
BERMBENNENABEBREEZSS
BREEREE)ETHT - ZITDESREY
EEnz —BRRSRE A - W5
EZBRREFEANBEARSRE - AEHE
VHEEERBZBARRZEE BEAXL
KEFETAGHMNERIRE -

REeRMENFERBERAMT LN AR
BEJIIBER-_F—R"F+H - +HARKA
WHEERAE ZBHRTE - EMRERER
YA AR E R - WEUESE -
TRE) #EERREMKEMEERX
5t o Z—RIERRERANFE - EF
B RIS AR SR EBEMT S
TLARRIR -

HEEBEAREBEM M EERREME
RFEANEEN, B - BRERIEAR(E
RERBEN B EEBRENERF
BERERD Eme —RME - HEEE
BEFHNRRNESSERHS FERD
WIRLTT S

RHEREDER LAY ERITE2RS
=R (EEERREER) -

RZE—NEFER_ZE—+tF+=_A=+—
B FTEREMEABER  UALEE
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21.

TRADE RECEIVABLES 21. EWEZRE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
FET FAET
Trade receivables FEUE 5 R18 15,211 8,372

The Group normally allows trading credit terms of 30 days
(2017: 30 days) to its established customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. For certain customers with long
established relationship and good past repayment history, a
longer credit period may be granted. Trade receivables are non-
interest bearing.

As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables of approximately

HK$11,874,000 (2017: Nil) have been pledged to secure the
finance lease liabilities (note 30).

Ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date,

AEB KRG TERLBEZEP30HZ
BHEEH(ZZF—+LF:300) - #EAF
FREFELR - piE TERIKMAR
BRERMERCENEFME » AIEER
HEBEENEEH - BRESRARRREY
PEEE -

MW-ZE—NE+-_A=+—0 EK=
SEEIE#)11,874,000/8 L ( —Z 2 —+ £ ¢
/) ZREEARBERES G 2K
(PsE30) °

FEME 50 1B M RIBIR BT B2 IRk

is as follows: O -
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
FERT FET
1 -90 days 1£90H 15,211 8,372

At 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no trade receivables
that were individually determined to be impaired. The Group did
not hold any collateral over these balances.

KRB NEFR_FT—tF+_H=1—
B WEEWE 5 ARIAE R EE RR(E
AEEWEAZS SR A EMNERR -

HREEREERERAT @ —Z— \FFEHK

183



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 R B EE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-A=+—HIFE

22.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22. EfRFE SN HMEY
RECEIVABLES g
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —ZE—+F
FERT FHET
Current: ENER :
Prepayments TRRTEIE 1,219 1,221
Deposits %e 426 4,152
Refundable deposits for BEREN TRERS (M)

a potential investment (note i) 114,000 -
Advances to staff BT #K 14,766 4,803
Other receivables (note ii) H W ks (B EE i) 20,380 57,911

150,791 68,087
Non-current: JEBNER :
Deposits "& 1,375 -
Other receivables (note ii) H At e Y k8 (BT sE i) 55,829 66,116
57,204 66,116
Notes: BdsE -

(i)

On 30 October 2018, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (the “MOU") with the vendors, independent
third parties, pursuant to which the Company proposed to invest
in not less than 45% issued shares of a target company with an
estimated consideration of RMB675,000,000 (approximately of
HK$769,500,000). Under the terms of the MOU, the Company
paid to the vendors a refundable deposit of RMB100,000,000
(approximately of HK$114,000,000). Should the parties to the MOU
not proceed to the signing of the formal investment agreement
within six months after the date of the MOU, the deposit shall be
refunded to the Company. The directors of the Company are of
the view that as this potential investment is still under preliminary
negotiation and uncertain of the completion of the transaction
with the vendors before the lapse date of the MOU, the balance
is classified as current asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position. When the MOU proceeds to the signing of the
binding agreement with the venders, the refundable deposit will be
reclassified as a non-current asset.

Other receivables comprises VAT recoverables of approximately
HK$68,784,000 (2017: HK$80,980,000), of which an amount
of approximately HK$12,955,000 (2017: HK$14,864,000)
will be used to offset output VAT within one year and hence
is accounted for as a current asset whereas the remaining
VAT recoverables of approximately HK$55,829,000 (2017:
HK$66,116,000) is classified as a non-current assets. Other
receivables in 2017 comprised an amount of HK$41,258,000 due
from an employee of a subsidiary of the Company who held the
deposits on behalf of the Group for the pledge of bill payables
(note 26(ii)).

184 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018

—E—N\FTA=1H ' ARFHEES
(BB =7 ) 5] R 8% ([ FR R S
TEE]) B AAREREEREZER
AITDRA5% BEITRD @ FrHRESR
AR 675,000,000 5T (49 769,500,000
BIL)  BEFRBESEGER &
ARIAEFIHAEREREARE
100,000,000 7T ( 49 114,000,000 7T )
o MRFRMEE TR BB AEAR » &7
W EETEREN A R - 12
SRREFAAR - ARREERE
HRZBEREEENSHES @ BT
FERERBETHRIBEE I ZRS
RN - BEREETHERRARADEE
BRBEE - BmfE I TR RS
FEIMNAHNR NN - ARERS K
PIERIERBEE °

B 15 AT Uk [B] 35 8 7 A2 A A0 L b 8 U 5K
T8 #)68,784,000/8 L ( =T — L F ¢
80,980,000/ 7T ) * EH 49 12,955,000
BIL(ZZT —+F : 14,864,000/8 7T )
SAREE —FREEEER Bt
PIBR BMENEE - ek T Al 4= E
% #955,829,000% L ( =T — £ F -
66,116,000/ 87C) DERIERBEE °
—T - FHMERRESERRAA
A—HMEBAR —REE (RRAEE
A S ) 718 41,258,000 7T B A K
TR (BT 5E 26(i0) °
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23.

24.

25.

LOAN RECEIVABLES

The balance as at 31 December 2018 represents loans to
independent third parties, which bear fixed interest rate ranging
from 4% to 10% annually and are repayable within one year.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

These represented investments in the listed equity securities held
for trading purposes. The balances at the reporting dates are
stated at fair values which have been determined by reference to
their market prices at the reporting dates.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AND
BANK BALANCES

23.

24,

25.

FE K & 5K

R-ZTE—N\E+-A=+—H2Z&EHIER
BYF=FREZER  BETFEFEN
F4% E10% 5T BEX R —FREE -

%ﬂ¥ﬁﬁlﬁ§2%ﬁﬁ

ZEBENRNE LTREZSZKE -
KIEXZAE - ARWE AR ZHBERA
FEEZ2®R  AFE2REANBRERHZT

EERRITERUARRER
RITHER

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\F —FLF

FERT T

Cash and bank balances BE RIRITEF 276,531 5,699

As at 31 December 2018, included in cash and bank balances
of the Group were approximately HK$158,757,000 (2017:
HK$4,514,000) of bank balances denominated in RMB placed
with banks in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group pledged its bank deposits of
HK$51,360,000 in order to fulfil collateral requirements for bills
payables (note 26).

Pledged bank deposits of HK$51,360,000 as at 31 December
2017 were denominated in RMB, earned interest at rates ranging
1.3% to 1.56% per annum. Cash at banks earns interest at the
floating rates based on the daily bank deposits rates.

RZZE—N\F+ZA=+—H A5ER
& MR 1T 45 1F #9158,757,0008 T (==&
—+t4F 1 4,514,00087T) * BREUAREK
FHEILF AR B3R AZKIRIT 2 &1 ©

R-ZE—+E+-_A=+—H A&EEE
I EER1TIF X 51,360,000 7 7T LA 7 & FE
NEEBEFRBER (FE26) °

R-_E—+F+-_A=1+—8  BiHFR
17175%51,360,000 7T - AARBEEHE -
BEMBNF13%E1.56%18 © $RIT4
FIRES BRI TR A R Z BRI RET 8, o
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26. BILLS AND OTHER PAYABLES AND 26. ENEBEREMENREN
ACCRUALS KBt RIE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FERT T
Construction cost payables FE TR EE K AN 307,223 403,946
Amount transferred from other B H b fE ke p 1 (FIsEi)
borrowings (note i) 29,000 -
Bills payables (note ii) FERT AR (M= i) - 92,618
Other payables Hh FE T 5RI8 21,169 11,145
Amounts due to a shareholder (note iii) & —4 B 78 (FEE i) 1,335 1,325
Other tax payables H {th &~ 7518 5,212 4,681
Accrued salaries and pension costs FEET i & KRS AS (FitaEiv)
(note iv) 10,843 17,015
Accruals FEET R IE 14,315 12,246
389,097 542,976
Notes: B

(i)

(iii)

The balance was transferred from other borrowings (note 29
(vii)). On 31 December 2018, the Company entered into a non-
legal binding memorandum of understanding with a third party,
which is independent and not connected with the Company,
in relation to the proposed disposal of the Group’s entire or
partial shareholding interest in a wholly-owned subsidiary, China
Era. The parties to the memorandum of understanding on 31
December 2018 agreed that the Group indebted to this third
party amounted to HK$29,000,000 (included in Loan N in note
29(vii)) will be re-assigned as a deposit for a potential disposal of
Chia Era. Details of which can be referred to the announcement
of the Company dated 31 December 2018.

The balance as at 31 December 2017 was secured by
pledged bank deposits and other receivables amounting to
HK$51,360,000 (note 25) and HK$41,258,000 (note 22(ii))
respectively.

The balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

As at 31 December 2018, approximately HK$5,800,000 has been
reclassified from amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
(note 27(ii)) since the parties ceased to hold any equity interest in
a subsidiary of the Group during the year.
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(iii)

ZAE R B H A AR (B EE 29 (vii)) ©
R=ZF—N\F+=ZA=+—8 " ' £27
2B E=7 (BIRARR AR
RNA R ) S L RN ESERAORN
RERERS  RAERERLEAEE
—ME2ENRBARFREREI B
- R=ZT—N\F+=A=+—8"
REGBRSSTRAEAEEBRMNZE
=7729,000,000 7 7T 2 7RI (B HE M 5E
29(vii) BERN) B EF D EERABEL S
FRERZES - AAFBERESHEEAD
AIBYAE=Z—/\F+=-A=+—HI

A -

RZF—+tF+=A=1+—BZ&HE
2Rl BEARITF51,360,0007% 7T
(M$5E25) J H th fE U IEA 1,258,000
7C (B &EE 22(i)) 48 -

ZEBREER  REREERER

RZZE—N\FE+=-_A=+—8" 4%
5,800,000/ 7T Z &84 E B B I AR
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27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING

27. BE¥REZERRRRE

SHAREHOLDERS
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—+F
FET FAT
Current: BNER :
Due to non-controlling shareholder B FE - FEFE AR AR 3R B 3K
(notes ii and iii) (Fﬁax’tll&ﬁﬁailn) - 5,872
Due to non-controlling shareholder B FEAS FE4E AR AR 3R B 7B
(notes i and iii) (P i R BT 5E i) - 6,421
Due to non-controlling shareholder B FE A< FEFE AR AR 5 B FRIE
(notes i and iv) (P& R Mt et |v) - 44,662
Due to non-controlling shareholder C FE FEFERRARER C 3R
(notes i and iv) (B5Ei BB aE |v> - 17,858
Due to non-controlling shareholder D FEASFE4E AR AR 3R D 7038
(notes i and iv) (i B P aEiv) - 26,787
- 101,600
Non-current: JERNER :
Due to non-controlling shareholder A FEAST FERE AR AR R A FRIE
(note i) (KsED)
259,418 =
259,418 =
Notes: BT -

During the year, non-controlling shareholders B, C and D
transferred all their equity interests (in aggregate 49%) in
a subsidiary of the Group to a company, non-controlling
shareholder A (“NCI-A"). Non-controlling shareholders A, B, C
and D agreed that except the balance under note (ii) as below,
the Group currently indebted to non-controlling shareholders B,
C and D was to be assigned to NCI-A. In addition, the Group and
NCI-A agreed that all amounts due to NCI-A are repayable on 30
June 2020.

During the year, the Group, NCI-A and a lender of the Group
also entered into a debt assignment agreement such that other
borrowings of RMB42,659,000 (approximately HK$50,765,000)
which granted by the lender during the year are now assigned to
NCI-A. Accordingly, it is included in the amount due to NCI-A as
at 31 December 2018. This balance is unsecured, interest-bearing
at 7% per annum and repayable on 30 June 2020.

A JEERR R RB CRDEE K
ERAEE—HMEB AR ZEBRE
(6#49%) F— A B FEERBIRA
(TNCI-A]) o FEF=RRARTEA B C KD
B Z bR R ST 5 (i) Z A5 BRSD - AEER
RASIEIRBEARERB - CRD ZFRBEET
NCI-A ° lE5) - REE RNCI-AE R EFT
BEMNCI-ABRRIER T _ZTFXH
=+HEE-

FERN - AREE  NCI-ARKERZ %
*hEJTETﬂEi&EE;%%Tﬁ%% Sl
RAFARBE ZEMERARE
42,659,0007u(%@50,765,000/§7z>£%$§
ETNCI-A- Bt RZZE—N\F+=
A=+—8  Hit AEFINCI-AZ K
o ZEFEER  BREMNERTI%F L
YR=ZZE-_TFA=1THEE-
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27. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 27.

SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)
(i) (Continued)

During the year, NCI-A further entered into two loan agreements
with the Group with terms set out as follows:

(a) Principal amount of RMB9,800,000 (approximately
HK$11,200,000) is unsecured, interest-free, and
repayable on 30 June 2020.

(b) Principal amount of RMB86,000,000 (approximately
HK$98,000,000) is unsecured, interest-bearing at 7%
per annum and repayable on 30 June 2020.

All the above are now classified as non-current liabilities.

(i) This balance has been reclassified to other payables (note 26(iv))
as non-controlling shareholder B no longer holding any equity
interest in a subsidiary of the Group pursuant to the arrangement
as set out in (i) above.

FE 15 IF 422 B% A% 3R FX0E (#)

M : (&)

(i) (%)

FRN - NCI-ABEKREEE—F

FEF M - HERAT

T3 T P

@) AR#9,800,0007T(4711,200,000

BIL) 2 A S REEA

ER_ZB_TFXA=
B o

@
+HBE

(b) AR #586,000,0007T(4798,000,000

BIL) Z A S REEA

1ZEF

KI%TEWR T _ZTFNA

=tHEZ-

PrE LSRR B RIERB BE

(i) ZEFEEN DB REMENK

78 (B

FE26(1v))  REBREER Lt () 2%
BE o JEEERARRBE T HEF A A EEK

B R B{E IR -

(iii) These balances were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on (iii) ZERERERR AR RRERER
demand.
(iv) These balances were unsecured, interest bearing at 5% per (iv) ZEERERR  RFERES%FER
annum and repayable on 31 March 2018. RZZE—N\F=A=+—HEE-
/= i %
28. BANK BORROWINGS 28. MITER
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —F—tF
FERT FHIT
Current BP A
Bank loans, secured (notes i and ii) RITER - BEA (FeEi i) 157,320 68,984
Non-current JE BN HA
Bank loans, secured (note i) RITEF - A (HFED) 77,520 225,600
234,840 294,584
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28. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued) 28. RITER (@)

At 31 December 2018, total current and non-current bank
borrowings were scheduled to repay as follows:

R-E—

NE+ZA=+—8  BIHAHE3E

BIRRERITIERTREEEW T

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E-N\E T —+F

TR TAET

Due within one year R—FREH 157,320 68,984
Due in the second to fifth years MNE_ZEREFH 77,520 225,600
234,840 294,584

Notes: BisE :

(i) The balances of HK$136,800,000 (2017: HK$68,984,000) 0) R-E—NE+-_BA=+—8 -
and HK$77,520,000 (2017: HK$225,600,000) are under 136,800,000 T( = & — £ £ :
current liabilities and non-current liabilities respectively as 68,984,000 ) &% 77,520,000 % 7T
at 31 December 2018 are denominated in RMB, charged (ZZ—+4 :225,600,000570) 2 %
at a fixed interest rate of 6.5% (2017: 6.5%) per annum Z A RFRRE B ERIEREEE
pledged by entire investment properties of HK$1,425,000,000 BT UARESE RHETEHE
(2017:HK$1,500,000,000) (note 20) and guaranteed by 6.5%: B8 (ZE—+%:65%) A
independent third parties. These are under the Oil and Liquefied 045 & W) % 1,425,000,0008 T ( =&
Chemical Terminal segment. —+4F : 1,500,000,000% 7T ) (F3E20)

TEEIRL S =5 R - ZREARIIRN
H SR TmiSSADRIE T »

(ii) The remaining balance of HK$20,520,000 as at 31 December (i) —N\E+—A=+—8 &T4&
2018, also denominated in RMB, is charged at a fixed interest #:20,520,0008 T INAA REEEHE - 4%
rate of 15% per annum, guaranteed by independent third parties BEEFE15%t8  WHBIE=H
and repayable within one year. ERWR—EREE o

All of the bank borrowings do not contain a clause that provides R-ZE-—NER_ZE—+FE+=-_A=+—

the lenders with an unconditional right to demand repayment at
any time at its own discretion as at 31 December 2018 and 2017.

= Fﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬂﬁ?ﬂ BEERT A RGN
RERIBE R BB RSB Z IR -
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29. OTHER BORROWINGS 29. HAEK
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F T+
FET FAT
Current: ENHR :
Obtained from independent BEBIYE=RH
third parties:
Loan A (note i) ERA (MIFED) 5,415 5,880
Loan B (note i) BB (FIzED) 873 1,039
Loan C (note i) B C(FEED) 15,094 16,309
Loan D (note i) B D (D) 1,539 1,620
Loan E (note i) EFRE (KIsED) 340 1,090
Loan F (note i) B (MsED) 4,265 4,116
Loan G (note i) ERG (KaEi) 7,413 10,939
Loan H (note i) EEGICEDD) 2,793 2,940
Loan | (note ii) B (FIsEi) 456 -
Loan J (note iii) E5x) (BisEii) - 36,165
Loan K (note iv) ERK(MF5Eiv) 83,056 =
Loan L (note v) ERL(FaEv) - 12,725
Loan M (note vi) ERM (HFEvi) 5,633 5,058
Loan N (note vii) BN (P E vii) - 61,075
126,877 158,956
Non-current: JEBNHR :
Obtained from independent WMEBIYE=H:
third parties:
Loan | (note ii) EENICIEAD) - 480
Loan M (note vi) BRM (FizEvi) - 556
Loan N (note vii) fﬁN (B =E vii) 34,170 =
Loan O (note viii) B30 (KI=E viii) 10,479 =
44,649 1,036
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29. OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

These loans totalling to approximately HK$37,732,000 (2017:
approximately HK$30,054,000) were interest-free and repayable
on demand as at the reporting dates. As at 31 December 2017,
loans amounted to HK$13,879,000 were interest-free and
repayable in July 2018.

This loan was interest-free and repayable in 2019.

This loan was charged at fixed interest rate of 15% per annum
and had been repaid during the year.

This loan was charged at fixed interest rate of 9.6% per annum
and repayable in June 2019, which was also pledged by the entire
paid up capital of Shundong Port (note 38(a)).

This loan was interest-free and had been repaid during the year.

An amount of approximately HK$5,063,000 (2017: HK$4,544,000)
was charged at fixed interest rate of 4.75% per annum and
repayable on demand as at reporting dates. The remaining
balance of approximately HK$570,000 (2017: approximately
HK$1,070,000) is repayable in 2019.

An amount of HK$29,000,000 carried forward from 2017 has
been transferred to other payables (note 26(i)) as at 31 December
2018. The remaining balance of approximately HK$34,170,000
(2017: Nil) as at 31 December 2018 was charged at a fixed
interest rate of 5% per annum and repayable in July 2020.

On 26 April 2018, the Company issued a three-year corporate
bond to an independent third party with a principal amount of
HK$10,000,000. The bond is denominated in HK$, unsecured,
interest bearing at 7% per annum. Interest is due for repayment
annually.

As at 31 December 2018, weighted average interest rate of all
other borrowings was 6.15% (2017: 2.61%) per annum.

29. HMER @)

GG

()

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)
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30. FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES 30. MEMHESEEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FET FAT
Total minimum lease payments: RIEAS S REAE

Due within one year R—F R E|Hf 40,725 157,857
Due in the second to fifth years RE_ZFERFFH 527 71,595
Due after five years RAFEEH 5,392 5,953
46,644 235,405
Future finance charges on finance leases RIEHEZ RKFEEE A (4,601) (19,548)
Present value of finance lease liabilities  FI&HAEBEZHE 42,043 215,857
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
FET T

Present value of minimum lease REEAENRZEE

payments:

Due within one year R—F R H 39,584 146,863
Due in the second to fifth years REZZZRFIH 474 66,747
Due after five years KA F1% 55 1,985 2,247
42,043 215,857

Less: Portion due within one W ETARBIABEIET

year included under current R—F A2 H

liabilities ZED (39,584) (146,863)

Non-current portion included under STAERBABENZ
non-current liabilities JEBNHRER > 2,459 68,994

The Group entered into finance leases for investment properties
under the Oil and Liquefied Chemical Terminal segment. The
leases run for an initial period of one to three years (2017: one
to three years) and do not have any contingent rental provisions.
The Group has the right to purchase the assets outright at the
end of the minimum lease term by paying a nominal amount.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, sea area use rights as
included in the Group's investment properties are classified as a
finance lease and are included in the above analysis. The lease
runs for an initial period of 50 years and does not have any
contingent rental provisions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_-_A=+—HBILFE

30.

31.

FINANCE LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Finance lease liabilities are secured by the underlying assets as
the rights to the leased asset would be reverted to the lessor in
the event of default by repayment by the Group. The underlying
assets are investment properties of HK$1,425,000,000 (note
20); and trade receivables of HK$11,874,000 (note 21) (2017:
investment properties of HK$1,500,000,000 (note 20) and equity
interests of Shundong Port (note 38(a)).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

CB2 and CB4

According to the sale and purchase agreements dated 8 July
2007 and 8 April 2008, zero-coupon convertible bonds with
face value of HK$400,000,000 (“CB2") and HK$380,780,000
("CB4") will be issued on the fifth business day following the
date of receipt of mining licence in respect of the underlying
mine. CB2 and CB4 are convertible into shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.60 and HK$0.25 per share
respectively. As mentioned in note 3(a)(iii), as the exploration
licence was transferred without the Company’s knowledge,
consent or approval, the Company is now seeking for legal
opinion on this matter.

CB6 and CB7

In December 2010, the Company issued zero coupon convertible
bonds (“CB6"”) in the principal amount of HK$526,880,000
as a part of the consideration for the acquisition of China
International Energy. CB6 bore no interest and was due to
mature on 31 December 2015. According to the terms of CB6,
any bond principal which remained outstanding at maturity on
31 December 2015 shall be converted automatically into the
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.08 per
share (subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating to
share sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and
rights issues).

30.

31.

MmEHEEE@w)

MEHEEERUEEEEFEER  RE
BiNEAEBERENIER  HEEEY
EFESEETHAA HEEEAKRE
Y2 FRIE A1,425,000,0005 7T (Hi3E20)
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ET (2N (ZE—+&FE: BEYE
1,500,000,000 7 7t (Bt 5E 20) K JEER &7
f&#E (M9 sk 38(@a)) ©

] IR AR 2
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5 3(a)(iii) Friit - BRI BIEAR QBT
BRAEARA R RESSE 21BN T8
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BEEELHRES

R-ZE—ZT&+—F ARAR{TEE
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FEBERRER D RE - AT BRRESF
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=+— A2 RIBFATBRKRESFEHE
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31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

CB6 and CB7 (Continued)

As a part of the consideration for the acquisition of China
International Energy, the Company issued zero coupon
convertible bonds (“CB7"”) in the principal amount of
HK$526,880,000 during the year ended 31 December 2010.
CB7 carried no interest and was due to mature on 31 December
2015. According to the terms of CB7, any bond principal which
remained outstanding at maturity on 31 December 2015, shall
be converted automatically into the shares of the Company
at the conversion price of HK$0.08 per share (subject to the
standard adjustment clauses relating to share sub-division, share
consolidation, capitalisation issues and rights issues).

On 4 January 2018, the Company has reached a settlement with
the Defendants (note 3(a)(i)) pursuant to which CB6 and CB7 are
eligable for conversion during the year. Full conversion of CB6
and CB7 to 785,200,000 ordinary shares of the Company has
been made during the year.

CB8

In September 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds
("CB8") with a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 due in
2018. CB8 are denominated in HK$, unsecured, bear interest
at 5% per annum and mature on the date falling on the third
anniversary of the issue of CB8. Interest will be payable annually.
Neither the Company nor the holders of CB8 may demand early
redemption of the CB8 in any event. CB8 are convertible into
approximately 1,898,734,000 shares of the Company at the
holder’s option before maturity at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.158 per share (subject to adjustments).

The fair value of the liability components of CB8 was calculated
using market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The residual amount, representing the value of the equity
conversion component, was included in convertible bonds equity
reserve in the owners’ equity.
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31.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

CBS8 (Continued)

During the year, part of CB8 has been converted into
999,999,996 shares of the Company. As certain CB8 holders
did not exercise their conversion upon maturity date in 2018, a
payable amount of approximately HK$35,258,000 was recorded
under current liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

CB9

In September 2018, the Company issued convertible bonds
("CB9") with a principal amount of HK$449,000,000, in which
HK$200,000,000 and HK$249,000,000 were issued to Giant
Crystal, a substantial shareholder of the Company, and
independent third parties respectively. CB9 are denominated in
HK$, unsecured, bear interest of 3% per annum and mature on
the date falling on the second anniversary of the issue of CB9 at
their principal amount or can be converted into approximately
1,760,784,000 ordinary shares of the Company at the holder’s
option at the conversion price of HK$0.255 per share of the
outstanding principal. The Company may at its own discretion
redeem the CB9, in whole or in part, at any time commencing on
the date of issue of CB9 and ending at maturity on 16 September
2020. The early redemption price shall be equivalent to the
principal amount of the redeemed CB9 plus interest of 3% per
annum calculated from the date of issue of the CB9 up to and
including the date of redemption. According to the terms of CB9,
any bond principal which remained outstanding at maturity on
16 September 2020, shall be converted automatically into the
shares of the Company at the conversion price of HK$0.255 per
share (subject to the standard adjustment clauses relating to
share sub-division, share consolidation, capitalisation issues and
rights issues).

The fair value of the liability component of CB9, which is
included in non-current liabilities, was calculated using market
interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bonds. The
residual amount, representing the value of the equity conversion
component, is included in convertible bonds equity reserve in the
owner'’s equity.

31.
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 31. AIRKRES @)
CB6, CB7, CB8 and CB9 recognised in the consolidated REEMBMRARPERN A BIRESSE
statement of financial position are calculated as follows: NES  TRRESFELHES TR
REHFENHRES RATRKRESENLE
FIRAT RS ¢
CB6 CB7 CB8 CB9

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RRES WERRESR 2 TRREZ TERRES
BEAftEE StHESF FNAMES ShAHES

FHIT FHT THT FHIT
Face value of convertible BETARRES 2 HE

bonds issued 526,880 526,880 300,000 449,000
Proceeds of issue (fair value BT (HRIERZ

on initial recognition) NFE) 342,557 342,557 300,000 441,601
Equity component EmE (342,557) (342,557) (87,358) (416,628)
Liability component BEHdD - - 212,642 24,973
Movements of liability component EEI o 2T
Movements of liability component for the years ended 31 Hr—_2—NEN-_ZFT—+EFE+_A8
December 2018 and 2017 is as follows: =t+—HIFEEZEESSEEWT :

2018 2017

CB8 CB9 Total CB8

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—+F

AEmRES WEREE —E-NFE | IBRRES

FNMES FAMES wmEr | FHES

FET FET FET FH&7T

At 1 January R—H—H 195,400 - 195,400 165,476

Initial recognition EPNiT - 24,973 24,973 -
Imputed interest expenses HERSER (ME7)

(note 7) 17,137 277 17,414 30,924
Interest paid [ERREIES) (4,191) - (4,191) (1,000)
Conversion during the year FRH (173,088) - (173,088) -
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 35,258 25,250 60,508 195,400
Current portion BUEREE 5 (35,258) - (35,258) (195,400)
Non-current portion FEBNERER - 25,250 25,250 =
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31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (continued) 31. TERES &)
Movements of equity component R o EE
Movements of equity component for the years ended 31 BE_ZT—NFr_ZT— Jci +=A
December 2018 and 2017 are as follows: =+ —HIEFEZEREHWELBT
CB6 CB7 CB8 CB9 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ARKRES TRRES TERESR TRKRES
EAMES FtHESF B/HESF FARES @t
THL THIL THIL THL THL
1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 W=Z—+F—F—F -
and 1 January 2018 —E+HETZA=T-AK
—T-)\%—A—H 137,106 271,299 54,303 - 462,708
Initial recognition (note 34(b)) BIRRER (i 34(b)) - - - 416,628 416,628
Issuance of shares upon conversion RE AR E 50 2T IR D
of convertible bonds (note 34(b)) (B &E 34(b)) (137,106)  (271,299) (45,158) - (453,563)
Release upon maturity of convertible AR &% 2| 6%
bonds (note 34(b)) 75 (BisE 34(b)) - (9,145) - (9,145)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\§+=A=+-H - - - 416,628 416,628

The fair value of liability component of CB8 at the date of issue
amounted to approximately HK$208,708,000. Interest expense
was calculated using effective interest method with interest rate
of 18.5% per annum to the liability component of CB8.

The fair value of liability component of CB9 at the date of issue
amounted to approximately HK$24,973,000. Interest expense
was calculated using effective interest method with interest rate
ranged from 3.3% to 4.2% per annum to the liability component

of CB9.

RETH  JBRRESFE/\BELFEES
» 2 AF{EHE208,708,000/8 T ° ﬂ
BRI E%*‘J+/£LX¢7F‘J$18.5%EJE
BRESFE )/ \MEFBELIFEH -

N = T#Hﬂi%%nﬁtﬁﬁ‘%ﬁi
D2 AN FEX 524,973,000 7T | B E
Rz ERF R IEAE R EN ?3.3%i
42% sl REHFENABESFBEIS DT
§ o
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32. DEFERRED TAX 32. ELEHIE
Details of deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised and RAEENMBAFENECERELEHIBEE
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: FEaBEREZFBMT ¢

Fair value
Fair value  adjustment

Accelerated  adjustment on
capital on business  investment
allowances combination properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
mE  EBEftz REWEZ
BAREE DEERAE DEERE #st
FHT FHT FHBIT THAT
At 1 January 2017 R-FE—+E—H—H 49,724 (120,511) = (70,787)
(Charged)/credited to profit or loss (BEZEEZNR),FTA
(note 9) BaEk (HFE9) (2,160) 43,246 - 41,086
Charged to equity for the year BF AR R - - (22,134) (22,134)
Exchange differences bE R 2,820 (2,373) - 447
At 31 December 2017 and N_ZT—+&+=-A
1 January 2018 =t—BR=-Z—N\F
—H—H 50,384 (79,638) (22,134) (51,388)
(Charged)/credited to profit (BRERTNE),FTA
or loss (note 9) Bak (HE9) (5.773) 41,166 (63,153) (27,760)
Exchange differences BE Y =R (1,422) - 3,759 2,337
At 31 December 2018 R=ZZE-N\F+=A
Er=1¢ 43,189 (38,472) (81,528) (76,811)
For the purpose of presentation in consolidated statement of 2GR EMBHRARMS - AT AR
financial position, the following is the analysis of the deferred tax T4 B ¥R i 1 IR E R IE A BR D AT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F ==
TET FAT
Deferred tax assets FEBIEE E 43,189 50,384
Deferred tax liabilities B IEAE (120,000) (101,772)
(76,811) (51,388)

198 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HE—-T— \F+_A=+—HBILFE

32.

33.

DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investment enterprises established in the PRC effective from
1 January 2008. The Group is liable to withholding taxes on
dividends distributed by the subsidiaries established in the PRC
in respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. As at
31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries
are in accumulated losses position and no withholding tax is
recognised.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred
tax assets in respect of the tax losses of HK$74,076,000 (2017:
HK$59,883,000) as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the tax losses can be utilised will be available in the
relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses will be expired
within five years under current tax legislation.

32.

EEBIE (&)

RIFPBEBERMETOE - MBI
BEEEIRZBREAL10% 2 T E G #
BHH BT NF A —HEEXK -
AEBARZFR T BEKLZ KB R E R
—EENF-A-HRBELZZANM DK
ZBRBHRIBHN c R—F—-N\FR_F
—tHE+-A=t—R FEBEZPEM
BABRR R BREMRER Y EEREN
w5

R=_ZFE—NF+=-_A=+—H0 ' x5£E
I £ 51 74,076,000 8 T2 FRIBEE(ZF
—+ 4 : 59,883,000/ T ) MR IE LT I8
BE G AREATEIEEREREHEER
IR2R 2R FE SR B A ZE B F 5% B 8 DA ME
2 e K - BIRRITREER] - B
HEBEBRAEFAEE -

SHARE CAPITAL 33. A&
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —T—tF
Number of Number of
shares shares
‘000 HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
RIDEA RINEE
T TER T AT
Authorised: EERA :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each BREE.1 BT TBR
At 1 January R—A—H 5,000,000 500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Increased in authorised capital (note i) 21 AT A (FizEi) 10,000,000 1,000,000 - -
At 31 December R+-—A=+—H 15,000,000 1,500,000 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BB RARIRA -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each FREEO.1 BTz LB
At 1 January R—B—H 3,049,705 304,970 3,049,705 304,970
Issuance of shares upon share placing R EESRZETRH
(note ii) (B zEin) 609,940 60,994 - -
Issuance of shares upon conversion RER AR E AR TG
of convertible bonds (note iii) (PR zEii) 1,785,200 178,520 = -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 5,444,845 544,484 3,049,705 304,970
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33. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(i) By an ordinary resolution dated 11 June 2018, the
authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$500,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each to HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 15,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each by the creation of an additional
of 10,000,000,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each ranking
pari passu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares of the
Company.

(i) On 14 February 2018, the Company completed a share placing
for an aggregate for 609,940,000 shares at a placing price of
HK$0.143 per share to independent investors. Net proceeds
(after deducting all applicable costs) from the placement were
approximately HK$85,096,000. Details of the placement are set
out in the Company’s announcements dated 22 January 2018
and 14 February 2018.

(iii) During the year, 785,200,000 shares have been converted under
CB6 and CB7 and 999,999,996 shares have been converted
under CB8.

34. RESERVES

(@) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements
therein during the year are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Share premium

(i) the difference between the combined net asset
value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group reorganisation in 2001, over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued
in exchange therefor;

(i) the premium arising from the capitalisation issue
in the previous years;
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34. RESERVES (continued)

(a)

Group (Continued)

(iii) issue of shares of the Company at a premium net
of the transaction costs associated with the issue
of shares; and

(iv) amount transferred from other equity reserves
upon exercise of share options and conversion of
convertible bonds.

Capital reserve

Capital reserve mainly arose from the Company’s capital
reorganisation in 2005 and represented the reduction of
share capital of the Company.

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising from the translation of
the net assets of the Group’s foreign operations from
their functional currencies to the Group’s presentation
currency (i.e. HK$) are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in exchange
reserve. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with the
accounting policy of foreign currencies set out in note
3(e).

Convertible bonds equity reserve

Under HKAS 32, convertible bonds issued are split into
liability and equity components at initial recognition
by recognising the liability component at its fair value
determined using market interest rate for equivalent
non-convertible bonds and attributing to the equity
component the difference between the proceeds from
issue and the fair value of the liability component. The
liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost whilst equity component is recognised in convertible
bonds equity reserve until the bonds are either converted
(in which case it is transferred to share premium) or the
bonds are redeemed (in which case it is released directly
to accumulated losses).
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34. RESERVES (Continued) 34. &)
(b) Company (b) AAF
Convertible
Share bonds equity  Accumulated
premium  Capital reserve reserve losses Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRRES
RAEE 0N Rt 2itER @3t
TAT TAL TEL TAL AL
1 January 2017 W=E2—tF-F—H 2,363,920 157,960 462,708 (2,918,074) 66,514
Loss for the year ENER - - - (176,559) (176,559)
At 31 December 2017 RZF—+F+-f=1-H 2,363,920 157,960 462,708 (3,094,633) (110,045)
Issuance of share upon placing PROEERETRG
(note 33) (P333) 26,227 - - - 26,27
Share issue expenses RETER (2,125) - - - (2,125)
Release upon maturity of AR B 55 R R
convertible bonds (note 31) (W5£31) - - (9,145) 9,145 -
Issuance of share upon conversion ~ RER IR EFKET
of convertible bonds (note 31) o (HrsE31) 432,130 - (453,563) - (21,433)
Recognition of equity component AR ESERTABR
of convertible bonds (note 31) (FitzE31) - - 416,628 - 416,628
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (49,318) (49,318)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-N\F£+=A=1-A 2,820,152 157,960 416,628 (3,134,806) 259,934
Details of share premium and convertible bonds equity RRRRGD R B R AR ESERFHEZ
reserve of the Company are set out in note 34(a) above. EBEEN LallfisE34(a) - EARREERE A
Capital reserve arose from the Company’s capital RANRZZEERF=A T HETHELRSE
reorganisation on 10 March 2005 and represented the =R =P N/NGT &N A

reduction of share capital of the Company.
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35.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

The Company has a share option scheme, which was adopted
by the shareholders on 24 June 2013 (the “Scheme”) and unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the date of adoption. Eligible participants of the
Scheme include the Company’s directors, independent non-
executive directors, other employees of the Group, suppliers of
goods or services to the Group, customers of the Group, any
person or entity that provides research, development or other
technological support to the Group and any non-controlling
shareholder in the Company’s subsidiaries.

Pursuant to the extraordinary general meeting passed on
24 June 2013, the general scheme limit of the Scheme is
set to 1,746,849,000 shares, which have been adjusted to
174,685,000 shares pursuant to the share consolidation in 2014,
representing 10% of the Company's issued share capital on the
date of meeting, with the passing of ordinary resolution, which
allows the Company to grant further options carrying the rights
to subscribe for a maximum of 174,685,000 shares. This is also
the maximum unexercised share options currently permits to be
granted under the Scheme at any time.

Maximum number of shares issuable under share options to each
eligible participant in the Scheme within any 12-month period, is
limited to 1%, of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
Any further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject
to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their associates, are
subject to approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. In addition, share options granted
to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at any time or
with aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of the grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
advance in a general meeting.
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35.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within
14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise
period of the share options granted is determinable by the
directors of the Company, and commences after a certain vesting
period and ends on a date which is not later than 10 years from
the date of the offer of the share options or the expiry date of
the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by the
directors of the Company, but may not be less than the higher
of:

(@) the Stock Exchange closing price of the Company’s shares
on the date of the offer of the share options;

(b) the average Stock Exchange closing price of the
Company'’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of the offer; and

(c) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

There has been no share option granted or exercised since the
Scheme was adopted in June 2013. As at 31 December 2018 and
2017, the Group has no outstanding share option.
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36.

OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -
SONGLIAO CONTRACT

In August 2007, China Era, previously owned by Mr. A and
subsequently sold to the Group as a subsidiary in 2010, entered
into the Songliao Contract with the State-owned Enterprise to
develop and produce crude oil in Liangjing Block on Songliao
Basin in Jilin, the PRC (the “Songliao Oil Basin”).

In accordance with the Songliao Contract, China Era provides
funds and applies its technology and managerial experience to
cooperate with the State-owned Enterprise for the development
and production of crude oil in the Songliao Qil Basin. The
production period will be ended in 2031, unless extended.

China Era bears all costs required for the evaluation operations
and development operations. Operating costs incurred are paid
by the State-owned Enterprise and China Era in accordance
with 51% and 49% respectively. However, the State-owned
Enterprise’s portion of operating costs are advanced by China Era
and recovered from the production of crude oil.

Under the terms of the Songliao Contract, evaluation costs,
development costs and operating costs are to be recovered
according to a mechanism of cost recovery oil and investment
recovery oil. Remaining oil, after cost recovery, all applicable
taxes and royalty that might apply in the PRC, is shared in the
proportion of 51% and 49% by the State-owned Enterprise and
China Era respectively.

In December 2009, the approval of Overall Development
Program from the State Development and Reform Commission
was obtained. The technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting oil are demonstrated. The State-owned Enterprise is
the holder of oil exploitation licence.

Set out below is the summary of assets, liabilities and results for
the year recognised in the consolidated financial statements in
relation to the Group’s interest in the Songliao Contract under
joint operation:
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36. OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT -

(a)

(b)

36. EMEBHAZEN-NES

SONGLIAO CONTRACT (continued) & &)
Results for the year () FEXEE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
FERT FHT
Revenue Wz 37,247 20,192
Other income H AU A 4 41
Expenses X (32,332) (58,472)
Profit/(loss) before income tax BETE R AR, (E518) 4,919 (38,239)
Income tax expense S Bl (5,905) (2,160)
Loss for the year NEREEE (986) (40,399)
Assets and liabilities (b) BEEREE
2018 2017
HKS$'000 HK$'000
—ZE-N\#F T —tF
FET FHT
Property, plant and equipment ME - W= REE 1,237 6,228
Intangible assets mREE 252 338
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 43,056 50,383
Current assets TRENEE 4,212 3,786
Current liabilities mBEE (155,927) (179,154)
Non-current liabilities ERBAaRE - (1,036)
Net liabilities BEFH (107,170) (119,455)

206 Energy International Investments Holdings Limited ‘ Annual Report 2018




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
05 Rk B =

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ=-ZT— \F+=A=1+—HILFE

36. OIL PRODUCTION SHARING CONTRACT - 36. EHERKHES

H-NES

SONGLIAO CONTRACT (Continued) 2 (&)
(c) Other commitments (o) HbEiE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—tF
FET FET
Contracted but not provided for in EEJHERMERE
respect of administrative fee RIE BB
and training fee 42,973 46,919
Operating lease commitments in EBEHEELHRETF
respect of leasehold land and LAREERE &
buildings and equipment rental T A HE 1,274 2,016
44,247 48,935
As detailed in note 3(a)(i), in 2015, the directors of the WETEE3(a) (i) FTaFal - R=—Z—H
Company was informed that Mr. A was formally charged FARAESTGEBALEET
by prosecution authorities in the PRC for illegal operation, B e P22 M R 1E SU4% = SRR & 5k

possibly involved allegations about improper conduct in HEArlge s R ERNEBRES K
EREITIR RZE—LtF+=
A NEBBEEAGEZRIEBEZRM
B ZER R - S MR T RERT

SMZIETE 2 BIRFIRIE - ZI5TE

obtaining of the Songliao Contract. In December 2017,
the Group received a legal letter from the representative
lawyer of Mr. A that the Charge was acquitted after
the Municipal Court issued the first adjudication of the

Charge. As Mr. A is not guilty in respect of the Charge,
Songliao Contract should continue to be valid to the
Group since then. The directors of the Company consider
that the Songliao Contract will continue to be valid
and will be executed as planned as the Group has close
working relationship with the State-owned Enterprise
which able the Group to carry out business relating to
oil production as stipulated under the Songliao Contract
without the questioning of its validity.

TR T ° AR A AL IR
WREMETE - MBS NHRNEE R
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KR AR S IR T &) T AT
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37.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE HOLDING COMPANY

37. BERABBBARRE

2018 2017
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —E—+F
hE=s FERT FHT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENERE 3,502 13
Interests in subsidiaries NP 794,065 414,483
797,567 414,496
Current assets TEEE
Financial assets at fair value AT EFABR MG EE
through profit or loss 14,407 15,809
Prepayments, deposits and other TBAFRIE -~ RE READERK
receivables RIE 1,033 666
Loan receivables FEWE X 35,618 -
Cash and bank balances e RIRITEF 104,962 514
156,020 16,989
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables and accruals H{th JE (< 518 K JE T ER IR 34,809 4,658
Amount due to a subsidiary FER — MR A RIFIE 43,373 36,502
Convertible bonds Al R E 35,258 195,400
113,440 236,560
Net current assets/(liabilities) RBEE(BRE) =5 42,580 (219,571)
Total assets less current EELERRBAER
liabilities 840,147 194,925
Non-current liabilities FRBAME
Convertible bonds AR E S 25,250 =
Other borrowings HifER 10,479 -
35,729 -
Net assets EEZFE 804,418 194,925
EQUITY Ea
Share capital N 33 544,484 304,970
Reserves s 34 259,934 (110,045)
Total equity MR 804,418 194,925
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38. SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

38. ffIELA
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December (a) R-E—N\F+-_A=+—HzZ=
2018 are as follows: ZNBAGFEET ¢
Percentage of
Place of ownership interests/
incorporation/ Paid-up share/ voting rights/ Principal activities and
Name establishment registered capital profit share place of operation
faERs/
e/ R/
ARER R BARA/ERER NEAHEA  IEXHREE4E
Indirectly held
BiEEE
Treasure Tone Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
EHBERAR 3 LaR AT 100%  REBR FR
Hong Kong Forest Source Mining Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$70,000,000 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Industry Holding Company Limited
BERREFERERAT & £1%70,000,000/57 100%  REER FE
Mission Achiever Limited Samoa Ordinary share US$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Mission Achiever Limited EED TARIET 100%  REBR FR
Mid-Ocean Hong Kong Investment Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1 100% Investment holding, Hong Kong
Limited
HEEAREERAA & LRR AT 100%  RERR &%
China Era Energy Power Investment Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$10 100% Oil production, the PRC
Limited
REERERRERRAA & LAR10%T 100%  RHEE -8
Shandong Shundong Port Services PRC RMB204,081,633 51% Leasing of oil and liquefied chemical
Company Limited*" terminal, the PRC
IRERABERAR Gk AR 204,081,633 70 51%  BERGRARLIAEE
iECO Financial Consulting Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share HK$1,200,000 80% Insurance Brokerage Service, Hong
Kong
RREHREHERAR 3 £7R1,200,000%7 80%  RBRELEE &R
& Established in the PRC as a Sino-foreign equity enterprise. * RAEBKZ BRI ERE

n

The entire paid-up capital is pledged for the Group’s

finance lease liabilities as at 31 December 2017 (note 30)

and pledged for the Group’s other borrowings as at 31
December 2018 (note 29(iv)).

. RZBE—+F+=ZA=1+—8 ' 23BH
ERAAREE 2 ERE A EERA
(IEE30) RR=F—N\F+=ZA=+—
B - AEMEKEER (T 29(v))
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38. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(a)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December
2018 are as follows: (Continued)

The above tables list the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the year.

Particulars of the wholly-owned entities de-consolidated
since 2010 are as follows:

38.

V== NGIRE )

(@ R-E-NFt+-HA=+—HzZ=E
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(b) BE-_ZE—%

N

Fuia]
3
%\IP
it
=+
=

ETBHEEARZE

Percentage of
ownership interests/
Paid-up share/ voting rights/ Principal activities and
Name Place of establishment registered capital profit share place of operation
FaRER/
RRE/
AFEB RS BlREK/RER NESREAM TEERRAEHY
Indirectly held
BEKE
QHFSMI (note 3(a)fii) PRC, wholly-owned foreign enterprise HK$40,000,000 100% Exploration of mine, the PRC
("WOFE")
BIEARR (i3t 3(a) (i) hEEBELE (EFELE]) 40,000,000 %7 100% BRF +F
IMFSMI (note 3(a)fiii) PRC, WOFE Not yet paid up 100% Not yet commenced business
AEEFAEEEI) hE EEERE HAHR 100% HARREEEH
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39. NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS 39. FEERKRRER

IBSRERS (RNEEHESE 51% 2 HIERR]) G
BEARFERERES © R LA - RNE
BYE2ERAZAAEMMBRRZIE
ERRRERY TERX -

Shundong Port, a 51% owned subsidiary of the Group, has
material non-controlling interests. Except the above, non-
controlling interests of all other subsidiaries of the Group that are
not 100% owned by the Group are considered to be immaterial.

BRAIERES (REBEFS1% ZHER
Bl) SFIRAR R s 2 S A ML E (fFh
SEARRBHIHER) 25010

Summarised financial information in relation to non-controlling
interests of Shundong Port, a 51% owned subsidiary of the
Group, before intra-group eliminations, is presented below:

2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F “T—+F
FHET FHET
For the year ended 31 December BE+-—A=1t—HILEE
Revenue W zs 115,080 10,146
Profit/(loss) for the year RNEHF(EE) 5,488 (28,171)
Total comprehensive income ZHEWA AR 2,845 (62,163)
Profit/(loss) allocated to DA EIEE AR R A =
non-controlling interests 2w H,/ (E18) 2,689 (13,804)
For the year ended 31 December BE+-—A=1t—HLEE
Cash (used in)/generated from (AR),/ KEEEBEZRE
operating activities (120,278) 7,331
Cash generated from/(used in) ®E /(AL Tz RE
investing activities 50,932 (359,675)
Cash generated from financing activities KRB & ES) 2 H ¢ 26,031 125,236
Net cash outflows IR B F R (43,315) (227,108)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H
Current assets RENVEE 39,913 127,004
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,368,826 1,489,905
Current liabilities mMEBER (663,257) (933,657)
Non-current liabilities FERBAE (407,084) (342,009)
Net assets BEF 338,398 341,243
Accumulated non-controlling interests ZET IR AR R 165,815 167,210
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40.

BUSINESS ACQUISITION

On 31 August 2018, the Group acquired 80% of the equity
interests of iECO Financial Consulting Limited (“iECO"), a

company incorporated in Hong Kong and its principal activity is

provision of insurance brokerage service.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities of iECO as at the

date of acquisition was:

R

R-ZE—NENA=1+—8  KE=EKE
ZeBUBERER AR ([ZEoEEER])
(REBFMALZBRAR  HEBEK
BIRRBR AL RS ) 80% ki -

ZeBUERERARAIHAEERAR
AR B ER R FEMT

HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHBT
Property, plant and equipment (note 15) W - B KR (FEE15) 19
Other receivables H o FEURIE 178
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRESEER 247
Accruals FEET /A (160)
Deposit paid and other payables BE e REMEMNTKIE (95)
Amount due to non-controlling FETIERR R RIA
shareholders (21)
Income tax payables e TS (5)
Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities ~ Al g EE R B BEATE 163
Non-controlling interests FFERRRER (49)
Less: fair value of consideration transferred: & : BEZEREHATEME :
Cash e 1,554
Goodwill (note 19) e (fI5E19) 1,440
Net cash outflow arising from acquisition WHEMBRREEFRERL
of subsidiary:
Cash consideration HerE 1,554
Cash and cash equivalent acquired BEUENRE KA SEEER (247)
Purchase consideration settled by cash DHeHEEERE 1,307
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40.

BUSINESS ACQUISITION (continued)

The carrying amount of all assets and liabilities are considered
to be approximately to their fair value. No contractual amount is
expected to be uncollectible.

The goodwill of approximately HK$1,440,000, which is not
deductible for tax purposes, comprises the acquired workforce
and the value of expected synergies arising from the combination
of the acquired business with the existing operations of the
Group.

The Group recognises non-controlling interests in an acquired
entity either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquired entity’s net identifiable
assets. The Group elected to recognise the non-controlling
interests in at its proportionate share of the acquired net
identifiable assets. Non-controlling interest at the acquisition
date amounted to approximately HK$49,000.

Since the acquisition date, iECO has contributed approximately
HK$1,000 and loss of HK$290,000 to the Group’s revenue
and profit or loss respectively. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2018, the Group’s revenue and loss would have
been approximately HK$152,335,000 and HK$74,006,000
respectively. This pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would have been
achieved had the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2018,
nor is it intended to be a projection of future performance.

The acquisition-related costs of approximately HK$115,000 have
been expensed and are included in administrative expenses.

40.
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41. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 41, REHLHRIE
(a) As Lessor (a) EAHHEA

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenant falling due as follows:

R-E-N\F+-A=+—0 &
5.8 7A T ) 4F B 0 v 2 T AT
EERH 2 RRELAER KRS
mF :

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—2-N\F —T—tF

FET FAT

Within one year —FR 128,378 101,345
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E-FZ2FRHF (BEEEMF) 427,933 540,541
After five years FaRGEE - 33,790
556,311 675,676

The Group leases its investment properties (note 20)
under an operating lease arrangement, with leases
negotiated for terms of five years (2017: Five years). The
operating lease do not include contingent rentals.

(b) As Lessee (b)

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating lease falling due as follows:

AEERBEQLEMOLHBEEER
BEWE(HEE20) APEAARSF
(Z2—+1F : IF) - KEHLHT
BRFIAEE °

FEREBAA

R=E—N\F+=A=+—8 &
S5 8010 T 5148 H8 0 7 2 TR AT
WERK 2 AR BEN KB
M -

2018 2017

HK$’'000 HK$'000

—E-N\EF —E—+F

FER TR

Within one year —F R 7,966 1,709
In the second to fifth years, inclusive S _-EZERE(DEEERE) 12,381 1,308
20,347 3,017

The Group leases certain leasehold land and buildings
and equipment under operating leases. The leases run for
an initial period of one to five years (2017: one to eight
years), with an option to renew the lease and renegotiate
the terms at expiry date or at dates as mutually agreed
between the Group and respective landlords/lessors.
None of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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42.

CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 42. EXR HMEARE
2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —FT—tF
FET FHT
Capital commitments for construction S an Kok Be b T SR As BE s SR A AR
cost of oil and liquefied chemical BRI
terminal 2,452 3,078
Other commitments in respect of MEIEE RIZIIE 2 H A A E
administrative fees and training fees 42,973 46,919
45,425 49,997
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 43. BEALXRS

43,

Apart from the balances and transactions with related parties
disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had
the following transactions with its related parties during the
year:

Compensation of key management personnel

Included in employee costs are key management personnel
compensation (including directors’ emoluments) and comprises
the following categories:

B S SR L 1 3 50 P R 2 A T L
BATZZSI R ARERLMHE
ATHEMTRS ¢

TEEBEABZHE

TETEABZAE(BREEEMS) o5t
ABTITRA - BIEATER

2018 2017

HK$'000 HK$'000

—E2-N\F —T—+F

FHT T

Short-term employee benefits % EE B & T 2,830 2,175
Contribution to retirement benefit RIRERETE 2 5K

scheme 18 18

2,848 2,193
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44, NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 44, FRERERBRME
OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) XREBMETEZEBYHIR
financing activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TREIAEEREBEEDEE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- ZEEFHE DREEERIFRSE
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities g o REMEETBNEENHRESR
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash EXRARREREBRAEEBLA
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated RemneEXRANEDRRE/MEED
statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing BenREz8E -
activities.
Amounts
due to non-
Bank Other Finance lease ~ Convertible controlling
borrowings  borrowings liabilities bonds  shareholders Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 28) (note 29) (note 30) (note 31) (note 27)
A HFER
RITEX HitfE HERESE ARRES BRRFE @t
FET FET FET FET TER TER
(K 28) (H&E29) (K3 30) (H3E31) GEFY))
At 1 January 2018 R-Z-\¥-A-H 294,584 159,992 215,857 195,400 101,600 967,433
Financing cash inflows/(outflows) BEZR&HA/(Fit)
Interest paid BAFE (15,810) (157) (4,675) (4,191) - (24,833)
Proceeds from issue of BT ERES Wa
convertible bonds - - - 441,601 - 441,601
Proceeds from new non-controlling [ FEIEAR AR 3R & TR s
shareholders’ loans - - - - 246,044 246,044
Proceeds from new borrowings a2 EE 21,420 143,357 - - - 164,777
Repayments of non-controlling BEFERRRER
shareholders' loans - - - - (132,315) (132,315)
Repayments of borrowings BBED (67,830) (61,321) - - - (129,151)
Repayments of obligations under ~ BEREREZ BN
finance lease - - (167,372) - - (167,372)
Other changes Hitt 28
Recognition of equity component of AR EFERDS
convertible bonds 2 - - - (416,628) - (416,628)
Conversion of shares ERG - - - (173,088) - (173,088)
Accrued salaries G %A - - - - 1,190 1,190
Rental expense HEEH - - - - 208 208
Debt assignment from other BEMEZRERER
borrowings - (50,765) - - 50,765 -
Reclassified to a deposit EXir Y
(note 26 (i)) (B 26(( ) - (29,000) - - - (29,000)
Reclassified to other payables ENABEAMENTE - - - - (6,650) (6,650)
Interest expenses (note 7) FBREZ (FiE7) 15,231 15,735 4,675 17,414 11,100 64,155
Exchange adjustments ERAR (12,755) (6,315) (6,442) - (12,524) (38,036)
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N\&
+=B=+-H 234,840 171,526 42,043 60,508 259,418 768,335
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44. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 44.
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

GERERERWTE @)

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (a) RERETH2EBEYHIR
financing activities (Continued) (&)
Amounts
due to non-
Bank Other Finance lease Convertible controlling
borrowings borrowings liabilities bonds shareholders Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(note 28) (note 29) (note 30) (note 31) (note 27)
JEf
R
RITER Hilgs  mAMSARE HARES TRER A B @it
TAT TAT TAT THL TAL TAT
(HizE28) (MizE29) (MizE30) (BizE31) (WizE27)
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+t5—R—-8 214,627 171,418 132,000 165,476 100,071 783,592
Financing cash inflows/(outflows) — EEREEA/(Fi)

Interest paid TS = = - (1,000) = (1,000

Proceeds from new borrowings MBS ZFEE 343,200 41,754 = = = 384,954
Proceeds from new finance leases ¥R EMAE ZFi{35E - - 132,000 - - 132,000
Repayment of borrowings BEEx (229,793) (70,040) - - - (299,833)
Repayment of obligations under REREREAR

finance lease - - (82,800) - - (82,800)
Other changes Hip g
Capitalised borrowing costs (note 7) A& EFAA (i 7) 4,573 14,834 24,236 30,924 4,034 78,601
Capitalised staff costs BRICBIRA - - - - 5,800 5,800
Additions to investment properties  AEREYE - - 2,885 - - 2,885
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 11) HERBAR (HE11) (51,531) - - - (16,519) (68,050)
Interest expenses (note 7) FIERS (M7) 3,984 - 4,603 - = 8,587
Exchange adjustments B BE 9,524 2,026 2,933 = 8,214 22,697
At 31 December 2017 RZZ—t5+=A

=+-H 294,584 159,992 215,857 195,400 101,600 967,433

(b) Non-cash transaction (b) ¥EBLEXH

As disclosed in note 26, the lender of Loan N has entered
into a non-legal binding agreement with the Group to re-
assign part of the Loan N amounted to HK$29,000,000
under other borrowing (note 29(vii)) to bills and other
payables and accurals (note 26(i)) as a deposit paid to
the Company for a potential acquisition of China Era. It
is considered as a significant non-cash transaction of the

reporting period.
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45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45, RO BE D Z2HBEERY
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BKEEmE
2018 2017
—E-N\% —EtF
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair value amount Fair value
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
REE AR EE ATE
TERT THER TAT TAT
Financial assets BBEE
Financial assets measured at REEAA /B RERFE
amortised cost/Loan and receivables HECHEEE
~ Cash and bank balances -ReRBTHER 276,531 276,531 5,699 5,699
~ Pledged bank deposits ~BEBRITER - - 51,360 51,360
- Trade and bills receivables -EWEFEEREE 15,211 15,211 8,372 8,372
— Deposits and other receivables — e REMEREIE 137,992 137,992 52,002 52,002
- Loan receivables -EURER 72,098 72,098 - -
Financial assets at fair value through BRTEG ARG HBEE
profit or loss 14,407 14,407 15,809 15,809
516,239 516,239 133,242 133,242
Financial liabilities BEaE
Current liabilities nBAE
Financial liabilities measured REHNAGECOBAR
at amortised cost
- Bills and other payables and accruals —ERERREMENTE
AR RT3 389,097 389,097 542,976 542,976
— Amounts due to non-controlling — ERFEERAR R IR
shareholders - - 101,600 101,600
- Bank borrowings —RITIER 157,320 157,320 68,984 68,984
- Other borrowings —Hi AR 126,877 126,877 158,956 158,956
- Finance lease liabilities -BEREAE 39,584 39,584 146,863 146,863
~ Convertible bonds — AR ES 35,258 35,258 195,400 195,400
Non-current liabilities FRBasE
Financial liabilities measured at RBERAGECHKRRE
amortised cost
— Amounts due to —ENEERRR B
non-controlling shareholders 259,418 259,418 = =
— Bank borrowings —RITIER 77,520 77,520 225,600 225,600
~ Other borrowings — A fth ik 44,649 44,649 1,036 1,036
~ Finance lease liabilities -RERERE 2,459 2,459 68,994 68,994
- Convertible bonds —ABRES 25,250 25,250 - -
1,157,432 1,157,432 1,510,409 1,510,409
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45,

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY
(Continued)

Due to their short-term nature, the carrying amounts of cash
at cash and bank balances, pledged bank deposits, trade and
other receivables, loan receivables, bills and other payables and
accruals, bank and other borrowings, finance lease liabilities and
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders approximate to
their fair value.

The fair value of non-current portion of bank and other
borrowings, finance lease liabilities and amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders for disclosure purposes has been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit
risk and remaining maturities and is classified as level 3 in the
fair value hierarchy. Significant inputs include the discount rate
used to reflect the credit risks of the borrowers or the Group.
The fair value of the liability portion of the convertible bonds is
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
an equivalent market interest rate for a similar convertible bond
with consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk and
is classified as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. The following
table provides an analysis of financial instruments carried at fair
value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 2:

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Level 3:

45.
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45. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 45. RO BE o 2 BEERE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY BEEME @)
(Continued)
The financial assets measured at fair value as at 31 December R-ZE—NFER_E—+tF+_A=1+—
2018 and 2017 in the consolidated statement of financial B REEUBRAREAFEFENH
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: BEED R TATERA
2018
—E-N\F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
E—R EHR £ w@at
FTER TR FTET FET
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABRR
through profit or loss ZOBEE
— Listed equity investments — EiRAERE 14,407 - - 14,407
2017
—E—+F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
F—H E-R E=M Bt
FET FHET FET FET
Financial assets at fair value RAFEFABRR
through profit or loss ZEBKEE
— Listed equity investments — EmRAEKE 15,809 = = 15,809
There were no transfers between levels during the year. FRNDRFR 2 FIWEEITEAER
46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 46. B E B EE

The Group does not have written financial risk management
policies and guidelines. However, the board of directors of
the Company meets periodically to analyse and formulate
strategies to manage the Group’s exposure to credit risk,
market risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk)
and liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs conservative
strategies on its risk management. The Group’s exposure to
market risk is kept at @ minimum level. The Group has not used
any derivatives or other instruments for hedging purposes. The
Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes.
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations and its investing
activities.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at amortised
cost presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position are net of impairment losses, if any. The Group
minimises its exposure to the credit risk by rigorously
selecting the counterparties, performing ongoing credit
evaluation on the financial conditions of its debtors and
tightly monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances on
an ongoing basis. In addition, management monitors
and reviews the recoverable amount of the receivables
individually or collectively at each reporting date to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In respect of trade receivable,
deposits and other receivables and loan receivables,
individual credit evaluations are performed on all debtors
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the debtors’ past history of making payments
when due and current ability to pay, and take into
account information specific to the debtors as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
debtors operate. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from its customer. The Group's exposure
to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each debtor.

46.
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46.

—NF+ZA=+—HILLFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

As the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy counterparties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

Default risk of the industry in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
As at 31 December 2018, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 78% (2017: 66%) and
100% (2017: 100%) of total receivables was due from
the Group’s largest trade debtor and the three largest
trade debtors respectively.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different
loss patterns for different customer segments, the
loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 5 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables. The
Group concluded that impact of ECLs on trade receivables
are insignificant as at 31 December 2018.
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46.

—NE+RA=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a)

Credit risk (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost of the Group
includes deposits and other receivables, loan receivables,
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances.
Since there is no increase in credit risk, the loss allowance
recognised during the year was therefore limited
to 12-months expected credit losses. Management
considers the probability of default is low on deposits
and other receivables and loan receivables since the
counterparties are in good credit quality and no historical
default noted. Besides, management considers the
probability of default is low on pledged bank deposits
and bank balances since they are placed at the financial
institutions with good credit rating. The Group concluded
that impact of ECLs on other financial assets are
insignificant as at 31 December 2018.

Prior to 1 January 2018, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment (see note 3(m)(B)(ii)). As at 31 December
2017, none of the trade receivables was determined to be
impaired.

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
related to two customers for whom there was no recent
history of default.

Based on past experience, management believed that
no impairment allowance was necessary in respect of all
financial assets as there had been no significant change
in credit quality and the balances were considered fully
recoverable.

The credit policies are considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, there is no financial
guarantees issued by the Group.

46.
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Foreign currency risk

Revenue and expenses of the Group are mostly in US$
and RMB. Exposures to currency exchange rates arise
from certain of the Group’s cash and bank balances
which are denominated in US$. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign currency
exposures regularly and does not consider its foreign
exchange risk to be significant.

The following table details the Group’s exposure at the
reporting date to foreign currency risk from the above
stated items denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of relevant group companies.
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BREREE &)

(b)

SMEE LB

AEEZWSEIAXEENETR
ARKTIE - SNERB KB AEH
RETIMEZE THES RRITHE
fro REEURERTERHTE
b EIMERR o AEEE R
HOMERR - WHRAHINERRIL
REKX -

TRFFVNNHRE B HAAEE LR
B EHEEB AR ZEEE KA
ZEBIEZINERR

2018 2017
HK$’'000 HK$'000
—E-N\F —T—tF
FBx TR
Cash and cash equivalents RETIEZRS MRS
denominated in US$ £@EIEAR 19 19

By assessing foreign currency risk on cash and bank
balances, the effect arising from a reasonably possible
change in the exchange rates of HK$ against US$ in
the next twelve months was not material to the loss
for the year and accumulated losses at each of the
reporting date, on the basis that all other variables remain
constant.
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk for changes
in interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank
balances which subject to floating interest rates. The
Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge
its exposure to interest rate risk. However, management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need arise.

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group's loss after income tax and accumulated losses
in response to reasonably possible changes in the interest
rate, to which the Group has significant exposure at the
reporting date.
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(c)
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A 2= @b

REB RN R BB A 2 FXME,
REERAEEZIBHFEGFEZ
RITHEFEH - AEELRERE
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- EEEHMEERETEE
YRFBEREEZEHPERNFER

LA
fa
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TR EE 2 BB AR
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(AEERFEADEZEARR)
M 2 S B -

2018 2017

Effect on loss
after income

tax and
accumulated

Effect on loss
after income

tax and
accumulated

losses losses

HK$’'000 HK$'000

—EBE-N\E —E—+F

HERFTSBI% HRATISHE

EBEREER EEEEES

2 -7

FET FAT

Increase in interest rate by 0.1% FMEEF0.1% 132 43
Decrease in interest rate by 0.1% FETFE0.1% (132) (43)

The sensitivity analysis above is determined assuming
that the change in interest rate had occurred at the
reporting date and had been applied to the exposure to
interest rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
(i.e. bank balances) in existence at that date. The 0.1%
increase/decrease represents management’s assessment
of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date.
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46.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk in
respect of settlement of its financial obligations, its cash
flow management. As mentioned in note 3(a)(ii), the
Group's ability to meet its financial obligations when they
fall due is dependent upon the sustainability of the cash
flow forecast with underlying assumptions. Management
of the Group is satisfied that the Group will be able to
meet in full their financial obligations as and when they
fall due in the foreseeable future.

The Group maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
assessed as adequate by management to finance
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on internally
generated funding and borrowings as significant sources
of liquidity.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the reporting dates, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, were as follows:
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46. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 46. BB EREE @)

(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) #"EBESESR &)
2018
—E-N\E
Total
contractual Within More than
Carrying  undiscounted 6 monthsor 6 months to More than
amount cash flow on demand 12 months 1 year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
RHUEESR ~MIAUR  BRAEREZE
REE BeRELE FREXR T=fiA —F0E
e TERL TAR TET TARL
Other payables and accruals Hit e SIEM R 3R 389,097 389,097 389,097 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling  ENFEERRRERFE
interests 259,418 280,638 - - 280,638
Bank borrowings RITER 234,840 246,607 74,733 93,179 78,695
Other borrowings A AR 171,526 178,597 130,891 1,759 45,947
Finance lease liabilities HEMEERE 42,043 46,644 30,187 10,538 5,919
Convertible bonds AR ES 60,508 62,198 35,258 - 26,940
1,157,432 1,203,781 660,166 105,476 438,139
2017
“T—tF
Total
contractual Within More than
Carrying  undiscounted 6 months or 6 months to More than
amount cash flow on demand 12 months 1 year
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AHNEmELE ~NEARA  ZRAEAZE
FRE ReREgE HEEX +={8A —ELE
THEL THET THET TET TAL
Bills and other payables ERNZERA RS
and accruals FEAREETFE 542,976 542,976 542,976 - -
Amounts due to non-controlling  JENFERRIRRERZE
interests 101,600 102,629 102,629 - -
Bank borrowings RITfER 294,584 325,127 16,650 70,027 238,450
Other borrowings R 159,992 162,943 147,929 13,930 1,084
Finance lease liabilities REREAR 215,857 235,405 94,618 63,239 77,548
Convertible bonds ARRES 195,400 215,447 - 215,447 -
1,510,409 1,584,527 904,802 362,643 317,082
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47.

48.

49.

—NF+ZA=+—HILLFE

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group's objectives when managing capital are:

(@) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and
benefits for stakeholders;

(b) To support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(0) To provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group's risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns, taking into consideration the future capital requirements
of the Group. The Group currently does not adopt any formal
dividend policy. Management regards total equity as capital, for
capital management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2018 amounted to approximately HK$929,271,000
(2017: HK$370,740,000), which management considers as
satisfactory having considered the projected capital expenditures
and the forecast strategic investment opportunities.

LITIGATION

Transfer of the exploration licence

Details of litigations are set out in note 3(a)(iii).

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Subsequent to the reporting date, the Group has successfully
obtained two credit facilities of RMB300,000,000 (approximately
HK$342,000,000) and RMB150,000,000 (approximately
HK$171,000,000), which are guaranteed by a related party and
an independent third party respectively. These credit facilities are
generally due for repayments in 2022 and 2024 respectively. In
light of these, the directors of the Company consider that the
Group will have sufficient working capital to meet the liabilities
as and when they fall due within the next twelve months. Details
are set out in note 3(a)(ii)(a).
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